
Treasury Board Secretariat

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 
OF ONTARIO

Financial Statements 
of Government 
Organizations

VOLUME 2A  | 2015-2016













GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATIONS 





Management’s responsibility for financial reporting 

_______ 



Independent Auditor’s Report

To Agricorp 
and to the Minister of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Agricorp, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at March 31, 2016, and the statements of operations and fund balances, remeasurement gains and 
losses and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that I comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Agricorp 
as at March 31, 2016 and the results of its operations, remeasurement gains and losses and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Toronto, Ontario Susan Klein, CPA, CA, LPA 
June 27, 2016 Assistant Auditor General 
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Statement of financial position

(In thousands of dollars)
General 

Fund
Production

Insurance 2016 2015

Assets

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances

Total liabilities

Total liabilities, fund balances and  
accumulated remeasurement gains

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Statement of operations and fund balances

(In thousands of dollars)
General

Fund
Production

Insurance 2016 2015

Revenue 
Funding – Ontario (note 8) 
Funding – Canada (note 8) 
Premiums from producers 
Sales, consulting and other services 
Investment income 
Total revenue 

Expenses 
Claims 
Reinsurance (note 10) 
Administration (note 15) 
Bad debts 
Total expenses 

Excess of revenue over expenses 
Fund balances, beginning of year 
Fund balances, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Statement of remeasurement gains and losses 

(In thousands of dollars) 2016 2015

Accumulated remeasurement gains, beginning of year

Unrealized (losses) gains on investments 
Realized (gains) reclassified to the statement of operations and fund balances 
Net change for the year 
Accumulated remeasurement gains, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Statement of cash flows

(In thousands of dollars)
General

Fund
Production

Insurance 2016 2015

Cash provided by operating activities 
Excess of revenue over expenses 

Items not requiring an outlay of cash 
Realized (gains) on investments 
Amortization of capital assets 
Total 

Changes in non-cash working capital 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Accrued pension asset 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Unearned premiums and revenue 
Provision for claims 
Total 

Investing activity 
Net proceeds (purchase) of investments 

Capital activity 
Purchase of capital assets 

Increase in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements

1-6 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2015-16



Notes to the financial statements

1. Nature of operations
The AgriCorp Act 1996

Government – Production Insurance
Agricultural Products

Insurance Act (Ontario, 1996).

Government – Other Business Risk Management

Other

Farm Registration and Farm Organizations Funding Act 1993

2. Significant accounting policies
a) Basis of accounting

b) Capital assets
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c) Employee future benefits

i) Pension plan

ii) Accumulated sick leave

d) Revenue recognition

e) Financial instruments
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f) Use of estimates

g) Provision for claims

3. Funds under administration

a) AgriStability
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b) Risk Management Program (RMP)

RMP: Grains and Oilseeds (RMP-GO)

RMP for livestock (RMP-LS)

RMP - Self-Directed Risk Management:  Edible Horticulture (RMP-SDRM)

c) General Top-Up Program (GTUP)

d) Beekeepers Financial Assistance Program (BFAP)

e) Marketing and Vineyard Improvement Program (MVIP)

f) Vintners Quality Alliance (VQA) Wine Support Program (VQA-WSP)

g) Other Programs
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Farm Business Registration (FBR)
Farm Registration and Organizations Funding Act 1993

(In thousands of
dollars)

Opening
balance

2016
Federal
funding

Provincial
funding Other Payments

Closing
balance

2016
AgriStability 
RMP–GO 
RMP–LS 
RMP–SDRM 
GTUP 
BFAP 
MVIP 
VQA–WSP 
Other Programs 
Total 

(In thousands of 
dollars)

Opening
balance

2015
Federal
funding

Provincial
funding Other Payments

Closing
balance 2015

4.
Accounts receivable

(In thousands of dollars) 2016 2015
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5. Investments

a) Portfolio profile

(In thousands of dollars) 2016 2015
Short-term

Long-term
Province of Ontario 
Other provincial governments 
Provincial utilities 
Financial institutions 

Total

b) Maturity profile of the investment portfolio

(In thousands of dollars) 2016 2015
< 1 Year  
1 – 3 Years 
4 – 5 Years 
Total 

c) Fair value hierarchy

(In thousands of dollars) Level 2016 2015

Total

There were no transfers of investments between Level 1 and Level 2.

6. Capital assets

(In thousands of dollars) Cost
Accumulated 
amortization

2016
Net book 

value

2015
Net book 

value
Furniture and fixtures 
Computer hardware 
Leasehold improvements 
Computer software 
Total 

7. Financial instruments risk management
a) Market risk
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b) Interest rate risk

c) Credit risk

8. Funding – Ontario and Canada

9. Unearned premiums and revenue

10. Reinsurance agreement
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11. Pension

(In thousands of dollars) 2016 2015

Accrued benefit obligation
Balance, beginning of year

Balance, end of year

Plan assets

Fair value, end of year

Funded status

Accrued pension asset

2016
%

2015
%

(In thousands of dollars) 2016 2015
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization of unrecognized loss 

Net benefit plan expense 
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Security type
2016

%
2015

%

Total plan 

Regulations to the Pension Benefits Act 1990 (Ontario)

12. Commitments and contingencies
a) Commitments

(In thousands of dollars)
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
Thereafter 
Total 

b) Contingencies

13. Related party transactions

14. Board remuneration and salary disclosure
The Public

Sector Salary Disclosure Act 1996
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Name Position Salary
Taxable 
benefits

15. Administration

(In thousands of dollars) 2016 2015

16. Comparative figures
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AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH INSTITUTE OF ONTARIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

2016 2015
(schedule 2)

REVENUES
Research

Grants - provincial (note 10) $ 1,850,000 $ 1,850,000
Grants - federal 2,000,000 0
Grants - other 378,000 378,000
Intellectual property 1,451,748 1,384,318

5,679,748 3,612,318
Property

Grants - provincial - minor capital (note 10) 5,100,000 5,100,000
Recognized capital contributions - OMAFRA (note 11) 7,000,000 0
Rental income - provincial 837,463 837,787
Rental income - private industry 754,223 781,032
Grants - provincial - prior year operating

funding (note 12) 2,150,000 0
Transfer payments - payments in lieu of taxes (note 10) 750,000 750,000
Payments in lieu of taxes 212,326 210,069
Amortization of deferred capital contributions 2,961,695 2,457,191

19,765,707 10,136,079
Other

Investment income 441,171 474,381
25,886,626 14,222,778

EXPENDITURES
Research

Research project\program 2,584,521 3,629,183
Intellectual property (note 9) 940,361 1,057,373

3,524,882 4,686,556
Property

Payments in lieu of taxes 972,355 983,069
Minor capital (note 12) 8,216,828 4,066,418
Transfer payments - University of Guelph (note 11) 7,000,000 0
Operations and maintenance 805,878 769,204
Loss on disposal of tangible capital asset 12,985 51,888
Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,961,695 2,457,191

19,969,741 8,327,770

23,494,623 13,014,326

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES for the year 2,392,003 1,208,452

NET AMOUNT TRANSFERRED (TO) FROM
UNCLAIMED EXPENDITURES (127,407) 2,499,637

2,264,596 3,708,089

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 26,625,053 22,883,477

NET REMEASUREMENT (LOSSES) GAINS for the year (30,807) 33,487

FUND BALANCES, end of year $ 28,858,842 $ 26,625,053

See notes to the financial statements
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Algonquin Forestry Authority Act.



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Algonquin Forestry Authority 
and to the Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Algonquin Forestry Authority, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, and the statements of 
operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Algonquin Forestry Authority as at March 31, 2016 and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards. 

Toronto, Ontario Susan Klein, CPA, CA, LPA 
July 22, 2016 Assistant Auditor General 
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Statement of Financial Position
2016

Assets

$ 1,606,560   
8,657,659   

328,608      
7,401          

10,600,228 

275,257      

$ 10,875,485 

Liabilities

$ 1,283,815   
80,007        

292,876      
25,849        

1,682,547   

436,834      
-              

2,119,381   

Net assets 
2,935,404

275,257
5,545,443
8,756,104   

$ 10,875,485 

Algonquin Forestry Authority

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Algonquin Forestry Authority

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Statement of Operations
2016

   

$  $ $ 21,203,665  $
1,802,007

  212,645
  2,541,080  

25,759,397

19,376,839
2,941,724

275,180
274,151

  33,515  
  22,901,409  

  2,857,988  

1,438,221
142,914
107,786
56,339
37,392
34,988
34,270
31,220
11,551

  1,628  
  1,896,309  

$  $  $ 961,679  $
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Algonquin Forestry Authority
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

2016

$ 7,794,425 

961,679    

-            

$ 8,756,104 

2015

$ 8,048,050 

(253,625)   

-            

$ 7,794,425 

Total

 Total 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Algonquin Forestry Authority
Statement of Cash Flows

2016

Cash flows from operating activities:
$ 961,679    

142,914    
(17,280)     
(22,811)     
17,326      

1,081,828 

290,055    
(158,162)   

(5,439)       
(12,582)     
13,706      
88,790      
25,849      

1,324,045 
Cash flows from financing activities

-            

Cash flows from capital activities
(129,149)   

22,811      
(106,338)   

1,217,707 

388,853    

$ 1,606,560 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Algonquin Forestry Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

Fund accounting

Revenue recognition

Inventories held for sale
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Algonquin Forestry Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Capital assets

Asset Rate

Financial instruments

Employee future benefits

Public Service of Ontario Act
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Algonquin Forestry Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Measurement uncertainty

2. Accounts receivable 2016

$ 8,267,725     
427,848        

8,695,573     
(37,914)        

$ 8,657,659     

3. Capital assets

Cost

- 
            51,682 
          112,494 
            91,139 
              5,087 
              6,052 

- 
- 

              8,803 

          275,257 

2016
Accumulated 
amortization

Net book 
value
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Algonquin Forestry Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Capital assets (continued)

Cost

4. Deferred contributions

2016 Total

$ -   
     1,884,209 
    (1,858,360)

$           25,849 

5. Employee future benefits

2015
Accumulated 
amortization

Net book 
value
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Algonquin Forestry Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements

5. Employee future benefits (continued)

6. Deferred capital contributions

2016

$ 17,280          
(17,280)        

$ -               

7. Forest renewal fund

Public Service Act of Ontario
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Algonquin Forestry Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements

8. Invested in capital assets 2016

$ 275,257        

-               

$ 275,257        

$
17,280          

(142,914)      
$ (125,634)      

$ 129,149        

9. Interfund transfer

10. Road maintenance funding

11. Remuneration of appointments
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Algonquin Forestry Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements

12. Financial instruments risk management

13. Demand line of credit

14. Due to Consolidated Revenue Fund

15. Comparative figures

Credit risk

Liquidity risk
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June 16, 2016 

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Information

Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the financial statements and all other information 
presented in this financial statement. The financial statements have been prepared by management in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and, where appropriate, include amounts based 
on management’s best estimates and judgements.

Cancer Care Ontario is dedicated to the highest standards of integrity and patient care. To safeguard Cancer 
Care Ontario’s assets, a sound and dynamic set of internal financial controls and procedures that balance 
benefits and costs has been established. Management has developed and maintains financial and management 
controls, information systems and management practices to provide reasonable assurance of the reliability of 
financial information. Internal audits are conducted to assess management systems and practices, and reports 
are issued to the Audit Finance Committee.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, Cancer Care Ontario’s Board of Directors, through the Audit Finance 
Committee, was responsible for ensuring that management fulfilled its responsibilities for financial reporting 
and internal controls.  The Committee meets regularly with management, the internal auditor and the Auditor 
General to satisfy itself that each group had properly discharged its respective responsibility, and to review 
the financial statements before recommending approval by the Board of Directors.  The Auditor General had 
direct and full access to the Audit Finance Committee, with and without the presence of management, to 
discuss their audit and their findings as to the integrity of Cancer Care Ontario’s financial reporting and the 
effectiveness of the system of internal controls.

The financial statements have been examined by the Office of the Auditor General of Ontario. The Auditor 
General’s responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the financial statements are fairly presented in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The Auditor’s Report outlines the scope of the 
Auditor’s examination and opinion.

On behalf of Cancer Care Ontario Management,

Michael Sherar, PhD Elham Roushani, BSc, CPA, CA 
President and CEO  Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To Cancer Care Ontario 
and to the Minister of Health and Long-Term Care 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cancer Care Ontario, which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at March 31, 2016 and the statements of operations, changes in fund balances, and cash flows 
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit 
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that I comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cancer 
Care Ontario as at March 31, 2016 and the results of its operations, and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Toronto, Ontario        Bonnie Lysyk, MBA, CPA, CA, LPA 
June 16, 2016   Auditor General 
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Cancer Care Ontario 
Statement of Financial Position 
As at March 31, 2016 

(in thousands of dollars) 

Approved by the Board of Directors 

___________________________________ Director ________________________________ Director 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

2016
$

2015
$

Assets

Current assets

Capital assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Fund Balances

Commitments 

Contingencies

Guarantees
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Cancer Care Ontario 
Statement of Operations  
For the year ended March 31, 2016 

(in thousands of dollars) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Restricted General Total

2016
$

2015
$

2016
$

2015
$

2016
$

2015
$

Revenue

Expenses

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenue over expenses
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Cancer Care Ontario 
Statement of Changes in Fund Balances 
For the year ended March 31, 2016 

(in thousands of dollars) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

2016 2015

Restricted Invested

Endowment
$

Internally
$

Externally
$

General
unrestricted

$

in capital
assets

$
Total

$
Total

$
Fund balances -

March 31, 2015

Excess (deficiency) 
of revenue over 
expenses

Net change in 
invested in 
capital assets 

Interfund transfers 

Fund balances -
March 31, 2016
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Cancer Care Ontario 
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended March 31, 2016 

(in thousands of dollars) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

2016
$

2015
$

Cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities

Capital activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - End of year
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Cancer Care Ontario 
Notes to Financial Statements 
March 31, 2016 

(in thousands of dollars) 

1 Nature of operations 

Cancer Care Ontario (the Organization) is the provincial government agency responsible for driving health 
system performance improvement for Ontario’s cancer and chronic kidney disease health systems. The 
Organization also supports achievement of Ontario’s Wait Time and Emergency Room/Alternate Level of Care 
Strategies through the collection and provision of information that enables the government to measure, manage 
and improve access quality and efficiency of care. With this mandate, the Organization is responsible for the 
funding to continually improve health system performance to ensure that patients receive the right care, at the 
right time, in the right place, at every step of their journey. 

The Organization’s role includes working with healthcare providers in every region across the province to plan 
services that will meet current and future patient needs; to support providers in delivering the highest-quality 
care aligned to evidence-based standards and guidelines; and to work with administrators, doctors and other 
care providers to improve system efficiency and effectiveness. 

The Organization also leads the development and implementation of innovative payment models; implements 
provincial programs designed to raise screening participation rates; translates research and evidence into 
standards and guidelines; puts information into the hands of the provincial policy makers; and ensures 
Ontarians have cancer and renal care systems that are accountable, efficient and of the highest quality by 
measuring and reporting on the performance of services. 

The Organization is primarily funded by the Province of Ontario through the Ministry of Health and Long-Term 
Care (MOHLTC). 

The Organization is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and, accordingly, is exempt from 
income taxes, provided certain requirements of the Income Tax Act are met. Members of the Board of Directors 
and Board Committees are volunteers who serve without remuneration.  

2 Significant accounting policies 

Basis of presentation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards for 
government not-for-profit organizations as issued by the Public Sector Accounting Board. 

Fund accounting 

The Endowment Fund reports contributions subject to externally imposed stipulations specifying that the 
resources contributed be maintained permanently, unless specifically disendowed by the donor. Restricted 
investment income earned on Endowment Fund resources is recognized as revenue of the Externally 
Restricted Fund. 

Investment income is recognized on an accrual basis. Interest income is accrued based on the number of 
days the investment is held during the year. 
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Cancer Care Ontario 
Notes to Financial Statements 
March 31, 2016 

(in thousands of dollars) 

The Internally Restricted Fund reports funds internally restricted by the Board of Directors for education, 
research or other special purposes. 

The Externally Restricted Fund reports donations and grants which have restrictions placed on their use by the 
donor, primarily related to research. The Organization ensures, as part of its fiduciary responsibility, that all 
funds received with a restricted purpose are expended for the purpose for which they were provided. 

The General Fund accounts for the Organization’s MOHLTC and other funded programs. This Fund reports 
unrestricted resources, all restricted grants from MOHLTC, and restricted grants from others for which the 
Organization has no corresponding restricted fund. 

Contributions 

The Organization follows the restricted fund method of accounting for its restricted contributions. 
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the Restricted Fund if the amount to be received can 
be reasonably estimated and ultimate collection is reasonably assured. Restricted contributions for which 
there is no corresponding Restricted Fund (including MOHLTC and other funded programs) are 
recognized as revenue in the General Fund using the deferral method. 

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the General Fund when the amount is reasonably 
estimable and collection is probable. 

Unrestricted contributions received for the purpose of capital assets are recorded as deferred capital 
contributions related to capital assets and are amortized on the same basis as the related capital assets. 

Contributions for endowment are recognized as revenue of the Endowment Fund in the year of receipt. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The Organization considers deposits in banks, certificates of deposit and short-term investments with original 
maturities of three months or less as cash and cash equivalents. 

Financial instruments 

Financial instruments are measured at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, financial 
instruments (including investments) are reported at cost or amortized cost less impairment, if applicable. 
Financial assets are tested for impairment when there is objective evidence of impairment. When there has 
been a loss in value of investments that is other than a temporary decline, the investment is written down and 
the loss is recorded in the statement of operations. For receivables, when a loss is considered probable, the 
receivable is reflected at its estimated net recoverable amount, with the loss reported on the statement of 
operations. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are expensed for those 
items subsequently measured at fair value and charged to the financial instrument for those measured at 
amortized cost. 
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Cancer Care Ontario 
Notes to Financial Statements 
March 31, 2016 

(in thousands of dollars) 

Capital assets 

Capital assets are recorded at cost, less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Third party and internal labour costs are capitalized under software in connection with the development of 
information technology projects. 

All capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis at rates based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

Therapeutic and other technical equipment are amortized over periods ranging from 4 years to 9 years; office 
furniture and equipment are amortized over periods ranging from 3 years to 5 years; and leasehold 
improvements are amortized over the term of the leases. Software is amortized over periods ranging from 
3 years to 4 years. 

Land and buildings for four lodges donated by the Canadian Cancer Society - Ontario Division are recorded at 
nominal value, as the fair value was not reasonably determinable at the time of the donation. 

When a capital asset no longer has any long-term service potential to the Organization, the differential of its net 
carrying amount and any residual value, is recognized as a gain or loss, as appropriate, in the statement of 
operations. 

Expenses 

Expenses are recorded on an accrual basis. 

Pension benefits and post-employment benefits other than pension plan 

i) Pension costs

The Organization accounts for its participation in the Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan (HOOPP), a
multi-employer defined benefit pension plan, as a defined contribution plan, as the Organization has
insufficient information to apply defined benefit plan accounting. Therefore, the Organization’s
contributions are accounted for as if the plan were a defined contribution plan with the Organization’s
contributions being expensed in the period they come due.

ii) Post-employment benefits other than pension plan

The cost of post-employment benefits other than pension plan is actuarially determined using the
projected benefit method pro-rated on services and expensed as employment services are rendered.
Adjustments to these costs arising from changes in estimates and actuarial experience gains and losses are
amortized over the estimated average remaining service life of the employee groups on a straight-line
basis.
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(in thousands of dollars) 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Items subject to such 
estimates and assumptions include accruals and receivables related to drug expenditures. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

3 Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 

Cash and cash equivalents include $420 (2015 - $417), which is restricted, as it relates to a pension plan that 
has been dissolved and is being held in escrow in the event that former members put forth a claim. These funds 
are subject to externally imposed restrictions and are not available for general use. 

4 Investments 

2016
$

2015
$

5 Receivables and prepaid expenses 

2016
$

2015
$
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(in thousands of dollars) 

6 Capital assets 

2016

Cost
$

Accumulated
amortization

$

Net book
value

$

2015

Cost
$

Accumulated
amortization

$

Net book
value

$

The cost of capital assets includes software under development of $3,319 (2015 - $746) and deposits for 
equipment and leasehold improvements of $nil (2015 - $766). Amortization of these amounts will commence 
when the asset is available for use. 

7 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

2016
$

2015
$
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(in thousands of dollars) 

8 Deferred contributions related to capital assets 

Deferred contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized and unspent amount of funds 
received for the purchase of capital assets. The changes in the deferred contributions related to capital assets 
balance for the year are as follows: 

2016
$

2015
$

During the 2014-15 fiscal year, the Organization transferred ownership of radiation treatment equipment and 
related software to the Integrated Cancer Program (ICP) Hospitals, where the equipment had been installed. 
The equipment was fully funded through a deferred capital grant, thus the transfer of ownership was completed 
at net book value. The equipment had a cost of $326,889 and $190,198 in accumulated amortization at the time 
of the transfer. 

The balance of deferred capital contributions related to capital assets consists of the following: 

2016
$

2015
$

9 Pension benefits and post-employment benefits 

a) Pension plan

Employees of the Organization are members of HOOPP, which is a multi-employer contributory defined
benefit pension plan. HOOPP members receive benefits based on length of service and the average
annualized earnings during the five consecutive years that provide the highest earnings prior to retirement,
termination or death.

Contributions to HOOPP made during the year by the Organization on behalf of its employees amounted
to $7,817 (2015 - $7,264) and are included in the pension expenses, which reflect all amounts owing for the
year, in the statement of operations.
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(in thousands of dollars) 

b) Post-employment benefits plan other than pension plan

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Organization offered non-pension, post-employment health and dental
benefits to its active and retired employees. Effective January 1, 2006, the Organization offers non-
pension, post-employment benefits only to its retired employees, who retired prior to January 1, 2006.
Benefits paid during the year under this unfunded plan were $171 (2015 - $176). The actuarial valuation for
the post-employment benefits other than pension plan is dated April 1, 2013 and has been extrapolated to
March 31, 2016.

Information about the Organization’s post-employment benefits other than pension plan is as follows:

2016
$

2015
$

The movement in the employee future benefits liability during the year is as follows: 

2016
$

2015
$

2016
$

2015
$
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(in thousands of dollars) 

The actuarially determined present value of the accrued benefit obligation is measured using 
management’s best estimates based on assumptions that reflect the most probable set of economic 
circumstances and planned courses of action as follows: 

2016 2015

10 Invested in capital assets 

2016
$

2015
$

Change in net assets invested in capital assets is calculated as follows: 

2016
$

2015
$

11 Net investment income 

Net investment income earned on the Endowment Fund resources in the amount of $12 (2015 - $17) is included 
in the Restricted Fund. 
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(in thousands of dollars) 

12 Other revenue 

2016
$

2015
$

13 Other operating expenses 

2016
$

2015
$

14 Interfund transfers 

2016
$

2015
$
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(in thousands of dollars) 

15 Commitments 

a) The minimum rental payments for lease space and computer and office equipment under the terms of the 
operating leases are estimated as follows for the years ending March 31: 

$

b) The Organization has committed $nil (2015 - $3,031) for the purchase of equipment, which is net of
deposits disclosed in note 6. 

16 Contingencies 

The Organization is a member of the Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of Canada (HIROC), which was 
established by hospitals and other organizations to self-insure. If the aggregate premiums paid are not 
sufficient to cover claims, the Organization will be required to provide additional funding on a participatory 
basis. 

Since the inception, HIROC has accumulated an unappropriated surplus, which is the total of premiums paid by 
all subscribers plus investment income less the obligation for claims reserves and expenses and operating 
expenses. Each subscriber which has an excess of premium plus investment income over the obligation for their 
allocation of claims reserves and operating expenses may be entitled to receive distributions of their share of 
the unappropriated surplus at the time such distributions are declared by the Board of Directors of HIROC. 

17 Guarantees 

a) Director/officer indemnification

The Organization’s general by-laws contain an indemnification of its directors/officers, former
directors/officers and other persons who have served on board committees against all costs incurred by
them in connection with any action, suit or other proceeding in which they are sued as a result of their
service, as well as all other costs sustained in or incurred by them in relation to their service. This
indemnity excludes costs that are occasioned by the indemnified party’s own dishonesty, wilful neglect or
default.
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(in thousands of dollars) 

The nature of the indemnification prevents the Organization from making a reasonable estimate of the 
maximum amount that it could be required to pay to counterparties. To offset any potential future 
payments, the Organization has purchased from HIROC directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to the 
maximum available coverage. The Organization has not made any payments under such indemnifications, 
and no amount has been accrued in the accompanying financial statements with respect to the contingent 
aspect of these indemnities. 

b) Other indemnification agreements

In the normal course of its operations, the Organization executes agreements that provide for
indemnification to third parties. These include, without limitation: indemnification of the landlords under
the Organization’s leases of premises; indemnification of the MOHLTC from claims, actions, suits or other
proceedings based upon the actions or omissions of the representative groups of medical, radiation and
gynaecology/oncology physicians under certain Alternate Funding Agreements; and indemnification of the
Integrated Cancer Program host hospitals from claims, actions, costs, damages and expenses brought
about as a result of any breach by the Organization of its obligations under the Cancer Program Integration
Agreement and the related documentation.

While the terms of these indemnities vary based upon the underlying contract, they normally extend for
the term of the contract. In most cases, the contract does not provide a limit on the maximum potential
amount of indemnification, which prevents the Organization from making a reasonable estimate of its
maximum potential exposure. The Organization has not made any payments under such indemnifications,
and no amount has been accrued in the accompanying financial statements with respect to the contingent
aspect of these indemnities.

18 Financial instruments 

The Organization’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, including credit risk, interest 
rate risk, and liquidity risk. There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to 
these risks or in methods used to measure these risks. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and investments held with financial institutions and credit 
exposures on outstanding receivables. Cash and cash equivalents and investments are held at major financial 
institutions that have high credit ratings assigned to them by credit-rating agencies minimizing any potential 
exposure to credit risk. The Organization assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account 
their financial position and other factors. It is management’s opinion that the risk related to receivables is 
minimal as most of the receivables are from federal and provincial governments and organizations controlled 
by them. 
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The Organization’s maximum exposure to credit risk related to accounts receivable at year-end was as follows: 

0 to 30
days

$

31 to 60
days

$

61 to 90
days

$

91 +
days

$
Total

$

As there is no indication that the Organization will not be able to recover these receivables, an impairment 
allowance has not been recognized. 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to 
changes in market interest rates. The Organization currently is only exposed to interest rate risk from its 
investments. The Organization does not expect fluctuations in market interest rates to have a material impact 
on its financial performance and does not use derivative instruments. The Organization mitigates interest rate 
risk on its investments by purchasing guaranteed investment certificates with short-term maturities and 
demand features.  

As at March 31, 2016, a 1% fluctuation in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, will 
approximately increase/decrease the value of investments by $351. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk the Organization will not be able to meet its cash flow obligations as they fall due. The 
Organization mitigates this risk by not incurring debt and monitoring cash activities and expected outflows 
through budgeting and maintaining investments that may be converted to cash in the near term if unexpected 
cash outflows arise. The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted 
contractual cash flows) of financial liabilities: 

0 to 30
days

$

31 to 60
days

$

61 to 90
days

$

91 +
days

$
Total

$

19 Comparative figures 

Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the expense groupings adopted in the current year. 

1-64 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2015-16



PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2015-16 1-65



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees of The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology 
and to the Minister of Tourism, Culture and Sport 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Centennial Centre of Science and 
Technology, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, and the 
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology as at March 31, 2016 and the results 
of its operations, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public 
sector accounting standards. 

Toronto, Ontario Susan Klein, CPA, CA, LPA 
June 22, 2016       Assistant Auditor General 
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology 
Statement of Financial Position 
As at March 31, 2016 

2016 2015 
($ 000) ($ 000) 

ASSETS 
Current 

Cash  11,186 7,321
Accounts receivable (Note 4) 1,353 1,186 
Prepaid expenses 970 1,070 
Inventory of general stores 106 108 

13,615 9,685 
Capital Assets (Note 5) 11,955 18,431 

25,570 28,116 
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,156 3,117 
Deferred revenue  4,032 3,447 
Due to the Province of Ontario 924 876 
Loan payable to Ontario Financing Authority (Note 12) 500 500 

8,612 7,940 
Long-Term Liabilities 

Accrued employee benefit obligation  (Note 11(c)) 3,237 4,125 
Loan payable to Ontario Financing Authority (Note 12) - 500 

3,237 4,625 

Deferred Capital Contributions (Note 6) 8,895 13,071 

Deferred Concessionaire Revenue (Note 7) - 36

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets (Note 8) 3,060 5,360 
Accumulated surplus (deficit) 1,766 (2,916) 

4,826 2,444 

25,570 28,116 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 14) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Approved on behalf of the Centre: 

Trustee Trustee
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology 
Statement of Operations 
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016 

2016 2015 
($ 000) ($ 000) 

Revenue 
Province of Ontario 

Operating grant 15,476 15,476 
Occupancy grant (Note 14) 3,888 3,888 
Other grants 202 78

General Admission and Parking Fees 5,201 4,615 
Revenue from Ancillary Operations (Schedule 1) 12,114 9,925 
Corporate Donations – Agents of Change Project (Note 15) 115 137 

36,996 34,119 

Expenses 
General Operations 

Exhibits and Programs 2,714 2,727 
Marketing and Advertising 1,804 2,162 
Visitor Services 3,116 3,192 
Facility Operations 5,219 5,330 
Program Management 3,641 3,503 
Administration 3,937 4,010 

Occupancy Costs (Note 14) 5,256 5,150 
Expenses from Ancillary Operations (Schedule 1) 8,323 7,336 
Agents of Change project (Note 15) 115 137 

34,125 33,547 

Net income before amortization and undernoted items 2,871 572 
Less: 

Amortization of Deferred Capital Contributions (Note 6) 5,829 5,544 
Amortization Expense (7,206) (6,996) 

(1,377) (1,452) 

Net income (loss) before undernoted items 1,494 (880)
       Add: 
Undernoted items – Curtailment of accrued employee benefit obligation  (Note 11 (c)) 

– One Time Operating Grant from Province of Ontario
– Gain on Sale of Rental Exhibit

888
-
-

-
800

1,326 
888 2,126 

Net income for the year 2,382 1,246 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016 

2016 
($ 000) 

2015 
($ 000) 

Invested in 
Capital Assets 

Accumulated 
Surplus 
(Deficit) 

from 
Operations Total Total 

Balance, beginning of year  5,360 (2,916) 2,444 1,198 

Investment in capital assets (923) 923 - -

Net income (loss) for the year (1,377) 3,759 2,382 1,246 

Balance, end of year 3,060 1,766 4,826 2,444 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology 
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016 

2016 2015 
($ 000) ($ 000) 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Net income for the year 2,382 1,246 
Adjustments for items not requiring an outlay of cash 
• Gain on sale of capital assets - (1,326) 
• Amortization of capital assets 7,206 6,996 
• Amortization of deferred capital contribution (5,829) (5,544) 
• Amortization of long term portion of deferred concessionaire revenue
• Curtailment of accrued employee benefit obligation

(36)
(888) 

(214) 
-

2,835 1,158 

Accrued employee benefit obligation   - (17)
Net change in non-cash working capital 607 1,632 
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,442 2,773 

Cash Flows used in Capital Activities 
Capital Assets acquisitions (730) (2,036) 
Proceeds on sale of capital assets, net - 1,326 
Net cash used in capital activities (730) (710) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Loan repayment – Ontario Financing Authority (500) (500) 
Deferred capital contributions 1,653 1,352
Net cash generated from financing activities 1,153 852 

Net change in cash for the year 
Cash, beginning of year

3,865 
7,321 

2,915 
4,406 

Cash, end of year 11,186 7,321 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology 
Schedule of Revenue and Expenses from Ancillary Operations 
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016      Schedule 1 

2016 
($ 000) 

2015 
($ 000) 

Revenue Expenses Net Revenue Expenses Net 

OMNIMAX® Theatre 1,203 1,291 (88) 1,354 1,205 149 
International Sales and Rentals 2,605 2,197 408 1,466 1,640 (174) 
Educational Programs & Admission 1,153 1,606 (453) 1,302 1,657 (355) 
Recreation & Family Learning   

Experiences 1,127 783 344 988 767 221 
Memberships 2,252 504 1,748 2,217 598 1,619 
Concessions 428 101 327 519 95 424 
Interest 133 - 133 119 - 119 
Adult & Corporate Learning Experiences 716 443 273 554 421 133 
Sponsorship/Donations 2,657 1,152 1,505 1,333 570 763 
Program Support and Other Revenue 42 32 10 151 156 (5)
Bank & Service Fees - 214 (214) - 227 (227) 

12,316 8,323 3,993 10,003 7,336 2,667 
Less: Federal and Provincial Programs (202) - (202) (78) - (78)
Totals 12,114 8,323 3,791 9,925 7,336 2,589 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology 
Notes to Financial Statements 
March 31, 2016 

1. Nature of the Business
The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology, commonly known as the Ontario Science Centre (the Centre), a 
government agency of the Province of Ontario, was incorporated without share capital pursuant to the Centennial Centre 
of Science and Technology Act.  The objectives of the Centre are to: 

a) maintain and operate a science centre and related facilities that will stimulate the interest of the public;

b) conduct a program of education in the origins, development and progress of science and technology, and their
relationship to society;

c) depict the role of Ontario in the furtherance of science and technology; and

d) collect, manufacture, market, exhibit and sell objects and displays.

As an Ontario Crown agency, the Centre is exempted from federal and provincial income taxes. 

2. Basis of Presentation
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Public Sector Accounting Standards, which constitutes 
generally accepted accounting principles for government not-for-profit organizations in Canada (“GAAP”).  The Centre 
has chosen to use the standards for government not-for-profit organizations that include the 4200 series of the Public 
Sector Accounting Standards. 

3. Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies followed to prepare these financial statements are summarized below: 

(A)  REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Government grants are recognized on a monthly basis as they are used for their intended purposes. 

Revenue from exhibits manufactured for sale is recognized on a percentage-of-completion basis. 

Revenues from general admissions, parking and other ancillary operations are recognized when the services are provided. 

Pledged donations, other than those designated for capital purposes, are recognized as revenue when funds are received. 

(B)  ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES 

Expenses are reported in the Statement of Operations on a functional basis. The costs of each function include the salaries 
and benefits, supplies, and other expenses that are directly related to the function. The Centre also incurs general support 
expenses in the variety of activities it undertakes. These expenses are considered a function in their own right and are 
reported as Administration expenses. 

1-72 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2015-16



The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology 
Notes to Financial Statements 
March 31, 2016 

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(C)  DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

Deferred capital contributions represent the amount of donations and government grants received and used, or to be used 
to acquire capital assets that have not yet been recognized as revenue.  Revenue is recognized over the same period as the 
expected life of the capital assets to which they relate. 

(D)  DEFERRED REVENUE 

Deferred revenue is comprised mainly of deferred sponsorships, the unexpired portion of annual membership fees and 
deposits for future exhibit rentals. The Centre has also recorded deferred concessionaire fee revenues relating to an 
agreement described in note 7. 

(E)  CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization.  Amortization begins when capital assets are ready for 
use.  Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as indicated 
below: 

OMNIMAX® Theatre Leasehold Improvements 20 years 
Leasehold Improvements 10 years 
Exhibits 10 years 
Exhibits – Rentals 4 or 5 years 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 5 years 
Computers 3 years 

The land on which the Centre is located is leased from the City of Toronto for $1 per annum on a 99-year lease, which 
commenced July 1, 1965.  The Province owns the buildings, which house the Centre.  For details of occupancy costs see 
note 14. 

(F)  INVENTORY 

General stores inventory is valued at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. 

(G)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Centre’s financial instruments, which include cash, accounts receivable, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities, 
due to the Province of Ontario and loan payable to Ontario Financing Authority, are all valued at cost less any amount for 
valuation allowance.  
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

 (H)  USE OF ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the Public Sector Accounting Standards requires that 
management make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Estimates and 
assumptions may change over time as new information is obtained or subsequent developments occur.  Actual amounts 
could differ from these estimates.  The items subject to the most significant estimates are amortization of capital assets, 
accrued liabilities and accrued employee benefit obligation. 

(I) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

The costs of severance entitlements under the Public Service of Ontario Act and unused vacation entitlements earned by 
employees during the year are accrued for in the financial statements.  The costs of any legislated severance are 
recognized when earned by eligible employees.   

4. Risks Related to Financial Instruments
The risks related to the Centre’s financial instruments are as follows: 

Credit risk – The Centre’s exposure to credit risk is minimal.  The Centre determines on a continuing basis, the probable 
credit losses and sets up a provision for losses, if necessary, based on the estimated realizable value. 

Below the accounts receivable aging is summarized: 

($ 000) 
Current +60 Days +90 Days Total 

General Accounts Receivable 505 - 13 518 
Admissions 193 - - 193 
Facility Rental 6 - - 6
International Sales 609 - 27 636 
Totals 1,313 - 40 1,353 

Currency risk – The Centre realizes approximately 3.93% (2015: 2.29%) of its total revenue in foreign currency.  
Consequently, some assets and revenues are exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations.  Cash, accounts receivable and 
deferred revenue in US dollars are converted into Canadian dollars at year-end.

Liquidity risk – The Centre’s exposure to liquidity risk is minimal as the Centre has a sufficient cash balance to settle all 
current financial liabilities.  As of March 31, 2016, the Centre had liquid current assets of $12,645,000 (2015: $8,615,000) 
to settle current financial liabilities of $4,891,000 (2015: $4,875,000). During the year, the Centre’s liquidity was stable as 
non-recurring cash receipts totaled Nil (2015: $2,126,000). 
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5. Capital Assets
Capital assets consist of the following: 

2016 
($ 000) 

2015 
($ 000) 

 Accumulated Net Book Net Book 
Cost Amortization Value Value 

Leasehold Improvements  34,973  30,565  4,408  7,530 
Exhibits  28,283  22,625  5,658 8,070 
OMNIMAX® Theatre Leasehold Improvements  15,331  15,286  45 853 
Exhibits – Rentals  1,500 968  532 460 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment  1,589  1,152  437 535 
Computers  2,490  1,615  875 983 
Total 84,166 72,211 11,955 18,431 

Net carrying amounts of Capital Assets (work-in-progress) not being amortized as at March 31: 

2016 
($ 000) 

2015 
($ 000) 

Computers 341 174 
Leasehold Improvements   2 762 
Exhibits - Rentals 311 -
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 5 71
Total 659 1,007 
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology 
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March 31, 2016 

6. Deferred Capital Contributions
The changes in the deferred capital contributions balance are as follows: 

2016 
($ 000) 

2015 
($ 000) 

Balance, beginning of year 13,071 17,263 
Net additions/transfers during year 1,653 1,352 
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (5,829) (5,544) 

8,895 13,071 

The ending balance of deferred capital contributions consists of the following: 

2016 
($ 000) 

2015 
($ 000) 

Agents of Change Project 124 3,289 
Health and Safety Initiatives 7,241 7,405 
Exhibits  1,347 1,520 
OMNIMAX® Theatre - 454 
Exhibits – Rentals  183 403 

8,895 13,071 

7. Deferred Concessionaire Revenue
The Centre entered into an agreement in January 2009 with the food services concessionaire, Compass Group Canada Ltd.  
Under the terms of this agreement, it received an upfront payment of $1,500,000 on June 1, 2009 in exchange for reduced 
food services concession fee revenues over the term of the agreement.  The $1,500,000 was spent on food service area 
renovations at the Centre and will be recognized as concessions revenue evenly over the term of the agreement to May 31, 
2016.  Up to March 31, 2016, the Centre has recognized $1,464,000 as concessionaire revenue.  The remainder of 
$36,000 has been deferred and is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 

8. Invested in Capital Assets
Invested in capital assets represents the following: 

2016 
($ 000) 

2015 
($ 000) 

Capital assets, net 11,955 18,431 
Less amount financed by deferred capital contributions (8,895) (13,071) 

3,060 5,360 
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9. Property Maintenance and Repairs
Certain major maintenance and repair expenses of the Centre are absorbed by the Province of Ontario, through Ontario 
Infrastructure and Lands Corporation, and are not included in the Statement of Operations. 

10. Economic Dependence
The Centre is dependent on the Province of Ontario for financial assistance to cover some of the cost of operations. 

11. Employee Benefits

 (A)  PENSION BENEFITS 

The Centre’s full-time employees participate in the Public Service Pension Fund (PSPF) and the Ontario Public Service 
Employees’ Union Pension Fund (OPSEU-PF), which are defined benefit pension plans for employees of the Province 
and many provincial agencies.  The Province of Ontario, which is the sole sponsor of the PSPF and a joint sponsor of the 
OPSEU-PF, determines the Centre’s annual payments to the funds.  As the sponsors are responsible for ensuring that the 
pension funds are financially viable, any surpluses or unfunded liabilities arising from statutory actuarial funding 
valuations are not assets or obligations of the Centre.   

The Centre’s annual payment of $1,289,994 for the current year (2015: $1,311,172), is included in salaries and employee 
benefit costs allocated to various expense categories in the Statement of Operations. See also note 13. 

 (B)  POST-EMPLOYMENT NON-PENSION BENEFITS 

The cost of post-employment non-pension benefits are paid by the Treasury Board Secretariat and are not included in the 
Statement of Operations. 

(C)  ACCRUED EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION 

During the year, the accrued employee benefit obligation was reduced by $888,000, which is shown as the curtailment of 
the accrued employee benefit obligation on the Statement of Operations.  This was a result of the following; 

- $983,000 reduction due to the curtailment of the plan resulting from changes under the Public Service Act of 
Ontario; and 

- $95,000 increase in the accrued employee benefit obligation prior to the curtailment 

The accrued employee benefit obligation was calculated using the projected benefit method based on the following 
assumptions, which are consistent with the Province of Ontario’s December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation: wage and salary 
escalation of 1.86% (2015: 1.92%); discount factor of 0.73 (2015: 0.80); and estimated average years to retirement of 
10.04 years (2015: 10.56 years).  These assumptions are management’s best estimate of future inflation rates, employee 
salary levels and other underlying assumptions. 
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology 
Notes to Financial Statements 
March 31, 2016 

12. Loan Payable to Ontario Financing Authority
In 2005/06, the Ontario Financing Authority (OFA) lent the Centre $10,000,000, at short-term interest rates determined 
by the OFA and payable quarterly.  The Centre had repaid $9,500,000 of the principal loan balance by March 31, 2016.  
The remaining balance is to be repaid by March 2017. 

13. Breakdown of Expenses
Expenses are reported in the Statement of Operations on a functional basis.  Total expenses by type are as follows: 

2016 
($ 000) 

2015 
($ 000) 

Salaries and Benefits 20,287 20,367 
Other Direct Operating Expenses 13,838 13,180 

34,125 33,547 

14. Commitments and Contingency

(A)  OCCUPANCY COST 

The Province, through Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation, charges the Centre an accommodation fee for 
occupying its facilities.  The fee covers rent, taxes, maintenance and certain operating costs.  The lease is being renewed 
on a year-to-year basis until a new agreement is reached between the Centre and the Province.  The minimum lease 
payment for the coming year is $4,831,000.  The Centre received a grant of $3,888,000 from the Ministry of Tourism, 
Culture and Sport to fund a portion of this expenditure. 

 (B)  EXHIBITS AND SERVICES 

The Centre has committed to the rental of several exhibits which have contracts over the next year.  Additionally, the 
Centre has entered into contracts for various maintenance and utility services spanning several years.  Total committed 
costs relating to exhibit rentals and maintenance contracts for the next four fiscal years are as follows;  

($ 000) 
2016/17 2,556 
2017/18 502 
2018/19 262 
2019/20 201 
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology 
Notes to Financial Statements 
March 31, 2016 

15. Pledges for Agents of Change Project and Other Programs
In 2001 the Centre embarked on a capital project called Agents of Change, which focuses on innovation and has renewed
about one quarter of the Centre’s public space, including the creation of seven new Experience Areas.  Up to March 31, 
2016, the Centre has received approximately $45,970,000 of contributions, $16,500,000 of which was received from the 
Government of Ontario and the remainder from private sector companies or individuals.   

As well, the Centre is active in obtaining sponsorships and donations from the private sector to support new projects, 
experiences and operations.  

Amounts pledged and agreed to but not yet received from the private sector have not been recognized as revenue, deferred 
revenue or deferred capital contributions as of March 31, 2016 and are as follows: 

Agents of 
Change 

Other 
Programs 

($ 000) 
2016/17 490 645 
2017/18 490 655 
2018/19 
2019/20 

485 
-

330 
250 

1,465 1,880 

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2015-16 1-79





MMANAGEMENT REPORT 
Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting 

The accompanying financial statements of the Education Quality and Accountability Office 
(EQAO) for the year ended March 31, 2016, are the responsibility of management and have 
been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The 
significant accounting policies followed by EQAO are described in the summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies contained in Note 1 of the financial statements. The 
preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on 
management’s judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting 
period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods. The financial statements 
have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality and in light of information 
available up to May 13, 2016.  

Management maintained a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable 
assurance that the assets were safeguarded and that reliable information was available on 
a timely basis. The system included formal policies and procedures and an organizational 
structure that provided for the appropriate delegation of authority and segregation of 
responsibilities. 

These financial statements have been examined by KPMG LLP, a firm of independent 
external auditors appointed by EQAO’s Board of Directors. The external auditors’ 
responsibility is to express their opinion on whether the financial statements are fairly 
presented in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The Auditor’s 
Report, which follows, outlines the scope of their examination and their opinion. 

EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE 
On behalf of management, 

Bruce Rodrigues Tony Saini 
Chief Executive Officer Director, Corporate and Public Affairs 

Toronto, Canada 
June 9, 2016 
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KPMG LLP 
Yonge Corporate Centre 
4100 Yonge Street, Suite 200 
Toronto ON  M2P 2H3 
Canada 
Tel 416-228-7000 
Fax 416-228-7123 

KPMG LLP, is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the  
Education Quality and Accountability Office 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Education Quality and Accountability 
Office, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, the statements of 
operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Education Quality and Accountability Office as at March 31, 2016, and its results of operations 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

June 9, 2016 
Toronto, Canada 
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE 
Statement of Financial Position 

March 31, 2016, with comparative information for 2015 

2016 2015

Financial Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash $ 2,533,389 $ 1,010,068
Cash - board restricted fund (note 2(b)) 6,062,272 5,571,796 
Accounts receivable (note 3) 658,445 1,297,817 

9,254,106 7,879,681 

Financial Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,420,695 1,602,465 

Net financial assets 6,833,411 6,277,216 

Non-Financial Assets 
Prepaid expenses (note 4) 1,299,480 1,004,486 
Tangible capital assets (note 5) 2,688,445 3,295,290 

3,987,925 4,299,776 

Accumulated surplus $ 10,821,336 $ 10,576,992 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board: 

  Chair

  Chief Executive Officer 
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE 
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 

Year ended March 31, 2016, with comparative information for 2015 

2016 2016 2015 
Budget Actual Actual

(Note 10) 

Revenue: 
Ministry of Education: 

Base allocation payments $ 33,170,847 $ 31,797,210 $ 32,133,580 
Other – 537,532 585,128

33,170,847 32,334,742 32,718,708 

Expenses: 
Service and rental 18,344,408 17,125,105 17,509,674 
Salaries and wages 11,624,226 12,098,864 11,700,123 
Transportation and communication 2,219,258 1,961,348 2,625,810
Supplies and equipment 982,955 905,081 736,887 

33,170,847 32,090,398 32,572,494 

Annual surplus – 244,344 146,214 

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 10,576,992 10,576,992 10,430,778 

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 10,576,992 $ 10,821,336 $ 10,576,992 

Accumulated surplus comprises: 
Externally restricted $ 4,759,064 $ 5,005,196 
Internally restricted (note 2(b)) 6,062,272 5,571,796 

$ 10,821,336 $ 10,576,992 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE 
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 

Year ended March 31, 2016, with comparative information for 2015 

2016 2016 2015 
Budget Actual Actual

(Note 10) 

Annual surplus $ – $ 244,344 $ 146,214 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets – (31,971) (2,914,353) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 639,032 638,816  475,161  

639,032 606,845 (2,439,192) 

Acquisition of prepaid expenses – (1,299,480) (1,004,486) 
Use of prepaid expenses – 1,004,486 779,608 

– (294,994) (224,878) 

Increase (decrease) in net financial assets 639,032 556,195 (2,517,856)

Net financial assets, beginning of year 6,277,216 6,277,216 8,795,072 

Net financial assets, end of year $ 6,916,248 $ 6,833,411 $ 6,277,216 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended March 31, 2016, with comparative information for 2015 

2016 2015

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities: 
Annual surplus $ 244,344 $ 146,214 
Amortization of tangible capital assets which does  

not affect cash 638,816 475,161 
883,160 621,375 

Change in non-cash operating working capital: 
Accounts receivable 639,372 (788,526) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 818,230 (96,679) 
Prepaid expenses (294,994) (224,878) 

2,045,768 (488,708) 

Financing activities: 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (31,971) (2,914,353) 

Investing activities: 
Change to board restricted fund (490,476) 1,947,910  

Increase (decrease) in cash 1,523,321 (1,455,151)

Cash, beginning of year 1,010,068 2,465,219 

Cash, end of year $ 2,533,389 $ 1,010,068 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

The Education Quality and Accountability Office (the "Agency") was established by the Province of 
Ontario by the EQAO Act, June 1996.  The Agency was created to assure greater accountability and 
to contribute to the enhancement of the quality of education in Ontario.  This is done through 
assessments and reviews based on objective, reliable and relevant information, and the timely public 
release of that information along with recommendations for system improvement. 

1. Significant accounting policies:

These financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public 
sector accounting standards, as established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the 
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada ("CPA Canada") and, where applicable, the 
recommendations of the Accounting Standards Board of CPA Canada, reflect the accounting 
policies set out below: 

(a) Revenue recognition: 

The Agency is funded by the Ministry of Education in accordance with established budget 
arrangements.  The Agency receives base allocation payments in accordance with the 
fiscal year's approved budget.  These transfer payments are recognized in the financial 
statements in the year in which the transfer is authorized and all eligibility criteria have 
been met, except when a transfer gives rise to a liability. 

Other revenue is recognized at the time the service is rendered. 

(b) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.  Tangible capital 
assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

Computer equipment 3 to 10 years 
Furniture and fixtures 5 years 

For assets acquired or brought into use during the year, amortization is calculated from the 
month following that in which additions come into operation. 

1-88 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2015-16



EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

The Agency considers the carrying value of tangible capital assets when events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable.  If the 
Agency expects an asset to generate cash flows less than the asset's carrying value, at the 
lowest level of identifiable cash flows, the Agency recognizes a loss for the difference 
between the asset's carrying value and its fair value. 

(c) Measurement uncertainty: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year.  Such estimates include providing for 
amortization of tangible capital assets.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Accumulated surplus:

(a) Externally restricted accumulated surplus: 

The Agency receives base allocation payments in accordance with the year's approved 
budget.  Actual expenses incurred in the year could differ from the budgeted amounts.  The 
difference between base allocation payments received and actual expenses incurred are 
tracked separately as externally restricted accumulated surplus.  

(b) Internally restricted accumulated surplus: 

A board restricted fund was established by a Board of Directors' ("Board") resolution for the 
purpose of examining assessment processes and researching emerging methodologies in 
large scale assessment in order to maintain Ontario's high quality assessment programs as 
best of class.  The fund is currently invested in a Royal Bank of Canada current account. 
The Agency has the authority to retain any revenue that is not provincial funding according 
to the EQAO Act, June 1996, the Agency Establishment and Accountability Directive and 
the Financial Administration Act. 
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

2. Accumulated surplus (continued):

2016 2015

Balance, beginning of year $ 5,571,796 $ 7,519,706 
Appropriation of other income 444,819 462,114
Interest income earned on funds 90,752 122,384 
Cost associated with fee-based administration (note 8) (45,095) (46,032) 
Costs associated to IT strategy – (2,486,376)

Balance, end of year $ 6,062,272 $ 5,571,796 

In the prior year, the Board approved a motion to fully restrict the internally restricted 
accumulated surplus for the Board-approved IT strategy. 

3. Accounts receivable:

Included in accounts receivable is a transfer payment in the amount of $211,988 (2015 - 
$851,490) due from the Ministry of Education. 

4. Prepaid expenses:

Prepaid expenses are paid in cash and recorded as assets before they are used or consumed. 
As at year end, the balance is made up of the following amounts: 

2016 2015 

Prepaid expenses $ 481,200 $ 322,308 
Prepaid secondees 818,280 682,178 

$ 1,299,480 $ 1,004,486 
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

5. Tangible capital assets:

2016 2015
Accumulated Net book Net book 

Cost amortization value value 

Computer equipment $ 5,429,687 $ 2,814,879 $ 2,614,808 $ 3,236,530 
Furniture and fixtures 349,517 275,880 73,637 58,760

$ 5,779,204 $ 3,090,759 $ 2,688,445 $ 3,295,290 

Amortization of tangible capital assets recorded in the current year amounts to $638,816 
(2015 - $475,161). 

6. Lease commitments:

The Agency leases premises under a long-term lease that expires on December 31, 2017. 
Under the terms of the lease, the Agency is required to pay an annual base rent, which is 
predetermined based on square footage rates plus operating and maintenance charges. 
Future minimum annual scheduled payments are as follows: 

2017  $ 1,385,900
2018 994,500
2019 359,300 
2020 329,300 

 $ 3,069,000

7. Financial instruments:

The Agency's financial instruments consist of cash, board restricted fund, accounts receivable 
and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.  Financial instruments are recorded at fair value 
on initial recognition.  The fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying 
values due to their short-term nature. 

It is management's opinion that the Agency is not exposed to significant interest, currency or 
credit risk arising from these financial instruments. 
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

8. Allocation of expenses:

Incremental administration expenses are allocated to fee-based administration revenue. 
Expenses are allocated proportionately based on the number of individual student assessments 
administered. 

9. Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Agency will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely basis or 
at a reasonable cost.  The Agency manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its operating 
requirements.  The Agency prepares budget and cash forecasts to ensure it has sufficient 
funds to fulfill its obligations. 

There have been no significant changes to the liquidity risk exposure from 2015. 

10. Budget:

The budget information has been derived from the budget approved by the Board on 
August 26, 2015. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
eHealth Ontario 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of eHealth Ontario, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, and the 
statements of operations and changes in net deficiency and cash flows for the year 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to 
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 



 
 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of eHealth Ontario as at March 31, 2016 and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards. 

Toronto, Canada 
June 23, 2016     



eHealth Ontario 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
[in thousands of dollars] 

As at March 31 

2016 2015
$ $ 

ASSETS 
Current 
Cash  3,957 18,869
Prepaid expenses 9,921 7,279
Due from Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care 
  [note 3[b]] 54,657 28,010
HST receivable 2,260 4,556
Total current assets 70,795 58,714
Capital assets, net [note 4] 80,980 70,033
Prepaid expenses 2,666 1,206

154,441 129,953 

LIABILITIES AND NET DEFICIENCY 
Current 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [notes 6 and 7[e]] 73,461 75,727
Total current liabilities 73,461 75,727
Deferred capital contributions [note 5] 80,980 70,033
Total liabilities 154,441 145,760 
Commitments and contingencies [note 7] 

Net deficiency [note 1] — (15,807)
154,441 129,953 

See accompanying notes 

On behalf of the Board: 

Raymond V. Hession Cynthia Morton 
Chief Executive Officer Chair of the Board of Direct 



eHealth Ontario 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND 
CHANGES IN NET DEFICIENCY 

[in thousands of dollars] 

Year ended March 31 

2016 2015
$ $

REVENUE 
Government grants [note 3[a]] 295,853 347,519
Amortization of deferred capital contributions [note 5] 21,711 19,259

317,564 366,778

EXPENSES [notes 6 and 8] 
Core business 108,979 194,000
Technology services 112,446 100,161
Corporate functions and shared services 58,621 69,165

280,046 363,326
Amortization of capital assets [note 4] 21,711 19,259

301,757 382,585
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses for the year [note 1] 15,807 (15,807)

Net deficiency, beginning of year (15,807) —
Net deficiency, end of year — (15,807)

See accompanying notes 



eHealth Ontario 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
[in thousands of dollars] 

Year ended March 31 

2016 2015
$ $

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses for the year 15,807 (15,807)
Add (deduct) items not involving cash 

Amortization of deferred capital contributions (21,711) (19,259)
Amortization of capital assets 21,711 19,259

15,807 (15,807)
Changes in non-cash working capital balances 

related to operations 
Prepaid expenses (4,102) 5,083
HST receivable 2,296 4,117
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [note 10] (2,225) 26,992
Due from Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (26,647) (31,308)

Cash used in operating activities (14,871) (10,923) 

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of capital assets [note 10] (32,699) (16,701)
Cash used in capital activities (32,699) (16,701) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Contributions used to fund capital assets 32,658 26,500
Cash provided by financing activities 32,658 26,500 

Net decrease in cash during the year (14,912) (1,124)
Cash, beginning of year 18,869 19,993
Cash, end of year 3,957 18,869

See accompanying notes 



eHealth Ontario 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2016 

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

eHealth Ontario is designated as an operational service agency established under the Ontario 
Regulation made under the Development Corporations Act (O. Reg. 43/02). Subsection 2(3) of O. 
Reg. 43/02 provides that eHealth Ontario is, for all purposes, an agency of Her Majesty within the 
meaning of the Crown Agency Act and its powers may be exercised only as an agency of Her 
Majesty. Subsection 6(1) of O. Reg. 43/02 provides that the Board of Directors is composed of the 
members appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council on the recommendation of the 
Minister of Health and Long-Term Care. The Lieutenant-Governor in Council can appoint up to 
12 members to eHealth Ontario’s Board of Directors. Pursuant to Subsection 7(1) of O. Reg. 
43/02 and subject to any directions given by the Minister of Health and Long-Term Care under 
Section 8, the affairs of eHealth Ontario are under the management and control of the Board of 
Directors. Subsection 9(1) of O. Reg. 43/02 provides that the Chief Executive Officer of eHealth 
Ontario be appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council. 

The objectives of eHealth Ontario are as follows: 

[a] to provide eHealth Ontario services and related support for the effective and efficient 
planning, management and delivery of health care in Ontario; 

[b] to develop eHealth Ontario services strategy and operational policy; and 
[c] to protect the privacy of individuals whose personal information or personal health 

information is collected, transmitted, stored or exchanged by and through eHealth Ontario, in 
accordance with the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, the Personal 
Health Information Protection Act, 2004 and any other applicable law (O. Reg. 339/08, s.4). 

eHealth Ontario is funded by the Province of Ontario through the Ministry of Health and Long-
Term Care [the “Ministry”]. eHealth Ontario and the Ministry entered into an Accountability 
Agreement effective April 1, 2015 for a three-year period ending March 31, 2018. Any excess of 
revenue over expenses must be repaid in the following fiscal year. Any deficiency reduces the 
funding allocation in the following fiscal year. 

As a Crown agency, eHealth Ontario is exempt from income taxes. 



eHealth Ontario 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2016 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Chartered Professional 
Accountants of Canada Public Sector Handbook, which sets out generally accepted accounting 
principles for government not-for-profit organizations in Canada. eHealth Ontario has chosen to 
use the standards for government not-for-profit organizations that include Sections PS 4200 to 
PS 4270. The significant accounting policies are summarized below. 

Revenue recognition 

eHealth Ontario follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Contributions are 
recorded when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated 
and collection is reasonably assured. Contributions with respect to the purchase of capital assets 
are recorded as deferred capital contributions when initially recorded in the accounts and are 
amortized to operations on the same basis as the related asset is amortized. 

Allocation of expenses 

The costs of each function include the costs of personnel and other expenses that are directly 
related to the function. General support and other costs are included in shared services expenses. 

Capital assets 

Capital assets are recorded at cost, net of accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

Computer hardware 3 to 5 years 
Computer software 3 to 10 years 
Furniture and office equipment 5 years 
Leasehold improvements Over the term of the leases 

Capital assets that no longer have any long-term service potential for eHealth Ontario are written 
down to residual value, if any. The excess of the carrying value over the residual value of such 
assets is recognized as amortization in the statement of operations and changes in net deficiency. 

Internal labour costs are capitalized in connection with the development of information technology 
projects. 



eHealth Ontario 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2016 

Employee future benefits 

eHealth Ontario has a defined contribution pension plan for its employees. Under the plan, 
eHealth Ontario contributes an equal match to employees’ contributions up to a maximum of 6% 
of their annual earnings. eHealth Ontario’s contributions to the plan are expensed on an accrual 
basis. 

Financial assets and liabilities 

eHealth Ontario initially measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value. eHealth 
subsequently measures all its financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost, net of any 
provisions for impairment. 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost include cash, due from the Ministry of 
Health and Long-Term Care, HST receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 

3. GOVERNMENT OF ONTARIO

[a] Funding from the Ministry recognized as revenue is calculated as follows: 

2016 2015
$ $

Funding for eHealth Ontario operating/capital expenditures 221,076 210,077
Funding for transfer payments to eHealth Ontario partners 79,580 148,073
Total funding 300,656 358,150 
Amounts used to fund capital assets and recorded 
 as deferred capital contributions [note 5] (32,658) (26,500)
Interest earned during the year repayable to the Ministry 146 289
Funding not received recorded as due from Ministry 27,709 15,580
Amount recognized as revenue 295,853 347,519 

[b] The amount due from the Ministry consists of the following: 

2016 2015
$ $

Due from Ministry for administered programs [note 6[c]] 11,368 12,430
Funding receivable 43,289 15,580

54,657 28,010 
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[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2016 

The amount due from the Ministry is related to the purchase of certain hardware and 
software on its behalf by eHealth Ontario and labour and other operating costs related to 
services provided by eHealth Ontario. 

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

 2016 
Net

 Accumulated book 
Cost amortization value 

$ $ $

Computer hardware 75,447 59,718 15,729 
Computer software 115,657 66,822 48,835 
Furniture and office equipment 6,978 5,876 1,102
Leasehold improvements 5,928 4,772 1,156
Work-in-process 14,158 — 14,158

218,168 137,188 80,980 

 2015 
Net

 Accumulated book 
Cost amortization value 

$ $ $

Computer hardware 66,688 53,262 13,426 
Computer software 92,475 53,776 38,699 
Furniture and office equipment 6,796 5,338 1,458 
Leasehold improvements 5,913 4,210 1,703 
Work-in-process 14,747 — 14,747 

186,619 116,586 70,033 

In the current year, certain assets no longer in use with a total cost of $1,109 [2015 - $2,581], 
accumulated amortization of $1,081 [2015 - $2,228] and a net book value of $28 [2015 - $353] 
were written off and included in amortization of capital assets.  

During the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, there were no impairment charges recognized 
to write-down work-in-process in connection with projects that were redefined.  
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[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2016 

5. DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

2016 2015
$               $  

Balance, beginning of year 70,033 62,792 
Contributions used to fund capital asset purchases [note 3[a]] 32,658 26,500
Amortization (21,711) (19,259)
Balance, end of year 80,980 70,033 

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

eHealth Ontario is controlled by the Province of Ontario through the Ministry and is therefore a 
related party to other organizations that are controlled by or subject to significant influence by the 
Province of Ontario. Transactions with related parties are outlined below. 

[a] Transfer payment agreements 

eHealth Ontario has entered into transfer payment agreements with various related parties. 
Under these agreements, eHealth Ontario makes payments to these parties once defined 
eligibility requirements have been met.  

Core business expenses for the year include transfer payments to related parties as follows: 

2016 2015
$               $  

Hospitals 55,856 76,021
Other health sector agencies and organizations 523 3,515

56,379 79,536 

At March 31, 2016, accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $20,075 [2015 - $5,222] 
payable to related parties under these agreements.  

[b] Other expenses 

During the year, Hydro One, the Ontario Ministry of Government Services and the Ministry 
of the Attorney General charged eHealth Ontario $30,160 [2015 - $30,267], $3,544 [$2015 - 
$2,717] and $79 [2015 - $3], respectively, for the provision of services. In addition, 
Infrastructure Ontario charged $4,276 [2015 - $6,697] for the rental of office space and other 
services during the year. The Ministry of Finance charged $92 [2015 - $50] and Treasury 
Board Secretariat charged $215 [2015 - $95]. Amounts paid to the Ministry of Government 
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[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2016 

Services are included in technology services expenses. All other amounts are included in 
corporate functions and shared services expenses. 

At March 31, 2016, accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $5,665 [2015 - $2,474], 
$2,199 [2015 - $738], $1,160 [2015 - $1,296], $1 [2015 - $3], $nil [2015 - $15] and $197 
[2015 - $95] payable to Hydro One, the Ontario Ministry of Government Services, 
Infrastructure Ontario, the Ministry of the Attorney General, the Ministry of Finance and 
Treasury Board Secretariat respectively. 

[c] Administered programs 

During the year, eHealth Ontario spent $11,368 [2015 - $12,430] on programs that it 
administers on behalf of the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. Amounts spent on these 
programs are recoverable from the Ministry [note 3[b]]. Amounts are recorded net of 
recoveries and included in technology services expenses.  

[d] Prototyping agreement 

Under an arrangement with an Ontario college, eHealth Ontario spent $151 [2015 - nil] to 
develop prototypes and proof of concepts for the organization’s electronic health record 
infrastructure. These costs are included in corporate functions and shared services expenses. 

All related party transactions were measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of 
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. 

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

[a] eHealth Ontario has various multi-year contractual commitments for services. Payments 
required on these commitments are as follows: 

$

2017 54,286 
2018 14,138 
2019 6,746 
2020 2,234 
2021 2,020 
2022 and thereafter 505 

79,929 
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[b] Ontario Realty Corporation, a Crown Corporation of the Province of Ontario, holds leases on 
the office space occupied by eHealth Ontario. eHealth Ontario is responsible for all of the 
operating lease payments. The payments required to the date of expiry are as follows: 

$

2017 5,042 
2018 5,123 
2019 5,139 
2020 5,139 
2021  5,139 
2022 and thereafter 8,458 

34,040 

[c] eHealth Ontario has entered into transfer payment agreements with eHealth Ontario partners 
that require future payments once defined eligibility requirements have been met. Work has 
begun under many of these arrangements and progress against the eligibility requirements is 
monitored regularly. Total future payments in connection with these contracts are 
approximately $47.7 million, of which $44.5 million will be paid to related parties as 
described in note 6[a]. These payments are payable over the period ending December 31, 
2019. Approximately $26.1 million of total future payments is expected to be paid in fiscal 
2017.  

[d] eHealth Ontario participates in the Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of Canada [“HIROC”]. 
HIROC is a pooling of the public liability insurance risks of its members who are all 
Canadian not-for-profit health care organizations. All members of the HIROC pool pay 
annual premiums that are actuarially determined. All members are subject to assessment for 
losses, if any, experienced by the pool for the years in which they are members. No 
assessments have been made for the year ended March 31, 2016. 

[e] In the normal course of operations, eHealth Ontario is subject to various claims and potential 
claims. Management has recorded its best estimate of the potential liability related to these 
claims where potential liability is likely and able to be estimated. In other cases, the ultimate 
outcome of the claims cannot be determined at this time.  

Any additional losses related to claims will be recorded in the year during which the liability 
is able to be estimated or adjustments to any amount recorded are determined to be required.  
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8. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

eHealth Ontario has a defined contribution pension plan for its employees. eHealth Ontario’s 
contributions to this plan during the year amounted to $3,796 [2015 - $3,642]. 

9. BOARD REMUNERATION

Total remuneration paid to members of the Board of Directors during the year was $54 [2015 - 
$94]. Salary paid to members of the Board of Directors who are employees of the Government of 
Ontario are disclosed on the “Public Sector Salary Disclosure” listing on the Government of 
Ontario website. 

10. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The change in accounts payable and accrued liabilities related to the purchase of capital assets for 
the year ended March 31, 2016 of $41 [2015 - $9,799] has been excluded from the statement of 
cash flows. 

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Credit risk  

eHealth Ontario is exposed to credit risk in connection with its accounts receivable because of the 
risk that one party to the financial instrument may cause a financial loss for the other party by 
failing to discharge an obligation.  

eHealth Ontario manages and controls credit risk with respect to accounts receivable by only 
dealing with recognized, creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances are monitored 
on an ongoing basis. As at March 31, 2016, there were no significant amounts that are past due or 
impaired.  

Liquidity risk 

eHealth Ontario is exposed to the risk that it will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations 
associated with its financial liabilities. eHealth Ontario derives all of its operating revenue from 
the Government of Ontario with no firm commitment of funding in future years. To manage 
liquidity risk, eHealth Ontario keeps sufficient resources readily available to meet its obligations.  

Accounts payable mature within six months.  
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12. COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified from statements previously presented to 
conform to the presentation of the 2016 financial statements. 





June 14, 2016 

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting 

The accompanying financial statements of the Forest Renewal Trust (“Trust”) are the responsibility of the 
Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources & Forestry (the “Ministry”) and RBC Investor Services Trust as 
Trustee for the Ministry. The financial position and operations of the Trust, pursuant to the Crown Forest 
Sustainability Act, are included in the financial statements, which have been prepared by management in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The statements include certain amounts 
based on estimates and judgments. Management has determined such amounts on a reasonable basis 
in order to ensure that the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects. 

Management, with the assistance of the Trustee, maintains a system of internal accounting and 
administrative control that is designed to provide reasonable assurance the financial information is 
relevant, reliable and accurate and that the Trust’s assets are properly accounted for and adequately 
safeguarded.

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, a firm of independent external auditors 
appointed by the Trust’s Committee, whose report follows. 

________________________________ __________________________________ 

Peter Henry, R.P.F. Michael Keel 
Manager, Forest Guides and Silviculture Section  Manager, Client Service 

Client Service and Solutions America* 

*Representing RBC Investor Services Trust as Trustee for the Ministry of Natural Resources and
Forestry, Forest Renewal Trust. 
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KPMG LLP, is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

KPMG

KPMG LLP 
Bay Adelaide Centre 
333 Bay Street, Suite 4600 
Toronto ON M5H 2S5 
Canada 
Tel 416-777-8500 
Fax 416-777-8818 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Ontario Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry 
and the Trustee of the Forest Renewal Trust 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Forest Renewal Trust, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, the statements of operations, 
remeasurement gains and losses and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Forest Renewal Trust as at March 31, 2016, and its results of operations, its remeasurement 
gains and losses and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public 
sector accounting standards. 

________________
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

June 14, 2016 
Toronto, Canada 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Statement of Financial Position 

March 31, 2016, with comparative information for 2015 

2016 2015

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 961,127 $ 796,742 
Accrued investment income  814,619 959,325 
Harmonized sales tax recoveries receivable (note 8) 478,339 329,386 

2,254,085 2,085,453 

Investments at fair value (notes 4 and 5) 122,664,427 129,763,665 

$ 124,918,512 $ 131,849,118 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 177,473 $ 303,806 
Holdback on Forest Renewal disbursements 280,024 218,947 
Due to Forestry Futures Trust (note 9) 278,457 173,627 

735,954 696,380 

Net assets: 
Trust settlement 1 1 
Net assets available for project disbursements 126,017,801 130,133,428 
Accumulated remeasurement (losses) gains (1,835,244) 1,019,309 

124,182,558 131,152,738 

$ 124,918,512 $ 131,849,118 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Trust: 

  Trustee

 Ontario Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Statement of Operations 

Year ended March 31, 2016, with comparative information for 2015 

2016 2015

Investment income: 
Interest income (note 7) $ 3,420,682 $ 3,513,077 
Net realized gain on investments 1,094,214 1,076,461 

4,514,896 4,589,538 

Expenses: 
Professional fees 204,590 159,997 
Trustee and investment management fees (note 9) 313,480 303,512 
Audit fee 80,496 75,260 
Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and  

Forestry agency fees 70,313 70,313 
Harmonized sales tax recoveries (note 8) – (254,142) 

668,879 354,940

Investment income over expenses 3,846,017 4,234,598  

Forest Renewal capital funding transactions: 
Forest Renewal charges 47,168,503 43,803,541 
Forest Renewal disbursements (55,130,147) (50,429,254)
Forest Renewal disbursement  

harmonized sales tax recoveries (note 8) – 12,229,405
Net Forest Renewal capital funding surplus (deficit) (7,961,644) 5,603,692 

Surplus (deficit) for the year (4,115,627) 9,838,290 

Net assets available for project disbursements, 
beginning of year 130,133,428 120,295,138 

Net assets available for project disbursements, 
end of year $ 126,017,801 $ 130,133,428 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses 

Year ended March 31, 2016, with comparative information for 2015 

2016 2015

Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses), 
beginning of year $ 1,019,309 $ (1,584,509) 

Change in unrealized gains (losses) 
attributable to investments (1,760,339) 3,680,279 

Amounts reclassified to the statement of operations: 
Net realized gain on investments (1,094,214) (1,076,461)

Net remeasurement gains (losses) (2,854,553) 2,603,818 

Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses), 
end of year $ (1,835,244) $ 1,019,309  

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended March 31, 2016, with comparative information for 2015 

2016 2015

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities: 
Investment income over expenses $ 3,846,017 $ 4,234,598 
Item not involving cash: 

Net realized gain on investments (1,094,214) (1,076,461) 
Change in non-cash operating working capital: 

Decrease (increase) in accrued investment income  144,706 (45,644) 
Increase in harmonized sales tax recoveries receivable (148,953) (329,386) 
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (126,333) (5,732) 
Increase in holdback on Forest Renewal disbursements 61,077 45,457 
Increase (decrease) in due to Forestry Futures Trust 104,830  (140,186) 

2,787,130 2,682,646 

Capital activities: 
Capital receipts - forest renewal charges  47,168,503 43,803,541 
Capital disbursements - project disbursements (55,130,147) (50,429,254) 
Capital disbursement harmonized sales tax recoveries  – 12,229,405

(7,961,644) 5,603,692 

Investing activities: 
Purchase of investments  (119,333,910) (139,039,133) 
Net proceeds of investments sold  124,672,809 129,939,911 

5,338,899 (9,099,222) 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 164,385 (812,884) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 796,742 1,609,626 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 961,127 $ 796,742 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

1. Reporting entity:

Pursuant to the Crown Timber Act, R.S.O. 1990, the Forest Renewal Trust (the "Trust") was 
established by an agreement dated October 4, 1994.  The Trust settlement amount of $1 was 
paid to RBC Investor Services Trust (the "Trustee") by the Crown on that date.  On October 17, 
1997, the agreement was amended by the First Amending Agreement to bring the Trust 
arrangement into accord with the Crown Forest Sustainability Act ("CFSA"), 1994, S.O. 1994. 
The agreement was also amended by the Second Amending Agreement on March 25, 1999, 
effective January 31, 1998, for the purpose of managing the funding of silviculture expenses 
incurred after March 31, 1994 in respect of land where Crown timber has been cut and such 
other terms and conditions as may be specified by the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources 
and Forestry (the "Ministry").  The agreement was further amended by the Third Amending 
Agreement with an effective date of April 1, 2000, the Fourth Amending Agreement with an 
effective date of April 1, 2001, the Fifth Amending Agreement with an effective date of April 1, 
2003, the Sixth Amending Agreement with an effective date of April 1, 2009 and the Interim 
Agreement Amending the Sixth Amending Agreement with an effective date of April 1, 2009. 
The Trust is domiciled in Canada and its registered office is 155 Wellington Street West, 
Toronto, Ontario M5V 3L3.   

Forest managers, including licensees, are required to pay forest renewal charges and are 
invoiced for such charges by the Crown on a monthly basis according to the volume of wood 
harvested and by tree species group.  Forest renewal charges are required to be paid to the 
Trustee who, in turn, credits the payment to the specific forest management unit account in the 
Trust (note 10). 

Throughout the year, forest managers submit claims seeking reimbursement for the costs of 
eligible silviculture work completed to the date of the claim.  Forest managers, including 
licensees, have the option of seeking reimbursement for expenditures they have incurred to 
carry out the eligible silviculture work or they may request that the Trustee reimburse 
silviculture contractors directly for the work that has been completed.  The Trustee has no duty 
or obligation to assess the eligibility of costs claimed as it is the responsibility of the Ministry. 

The Trust was established by the Ministry to provide a funding mechanism independent of the 
provincial treasury to fund specific forestry activities, as defined in the CFSA. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

2. Basis of presentation:

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards ("PSAS"). 

(a) Functional and presentation currency: 

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollar, which is the Trust's functional 
currency.  Except as otherwise indicated, all financial information presented in Canadian 
dollars has been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

(b) Use of estimates and judgments: 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PSAS requires management 
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses.  Actual 
results may differ from those estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in 
any future years affected. 

(c) Liquidity format: 

The Trust presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity.  Current 
assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled within 12 months after the 
reporting date and non-current assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled 
more than 12 months after the reporting date. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

3. Significant accounting policies:

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in 
these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated: 

(a) Interest: 

Interest income, including interest income from non-derivative financial assets at fair value, 
is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method on an accrual basis.  The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments 
and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. 

(b) Realized gain from financial instruments at fair value: 

Realized gain from financial instruments at fair value includes all realized fair value 
changes, but excludes interest and dividend income. 

(c) Fees and other expenses: 

Fees and other expenses are recognized in profit or loss on an accrual basis when due. 

(d) Capital transactions: 

Funds received for renewal and silviculture charges are deposited into the Trust and are 
considered to be capital receipts when received by the Trustee.  Reimbursements are 
considered to be capital disbursements when they are claimed from the Trustee, as 
directed by the Ministry. 

(e) Income taxes, harmonized sales tax ("HST") and goods and services tax ("GST"): 

The Trust is considered to be an asset of the Crown and, as such, the Trustee, under the 
advisement of the Ministry, has taken the position that the income earned within the Trust is 
not subject to income taxes. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

According to the Excise Tax Act interpretation, reimbursements paid to Forest License 
Holders from the Trust are consideration for a taxable supply of silviculture services for 
GST/HST purposes.  As such, claims invoiced by forest managers, including licensees, 
should be subject to GST/ HST, and the Trust, through the Ministry, then files a recovery of 
an eligible rebate.  Accordingly, GST/HST should be paid by the Trust and is accounted for 
with a net offset for GST/HST recoveries.  This treatment has been applied for the year 
ended March 31, 2015 and the subsequent years moving forward (note 8).  

For periods up to and including March 31, 2014, GST/HST was accounted for by the Trust, 
whereby the amounts invoiced by forest managers, including licensees, were paid by the 
Trust and no filings for recoveries were made. The Trust, through the Ministry, 
subsequently filed and accordingly recovered GST/HST during the 2015 fiscal year for 
periods up to and including March 31, 2015 (note 8).  

(f) Financial assets and liabilities: 

(i) Financial assets: 

The Trust initially recognizes loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they 
are originated.  All other financial assets (including assets designated at fair value) are 
recognized initially on the trade date at which the Trust becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 

The Trust derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on 
the financial asset in transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset are transferred.  Any interest in transferred financial 
assets that is created or retained by the Trust is recognized as a separate asset or 
liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement 
of financial position when, and only when, the Trust has a legal right to offset the 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

The Trust has the following non-derivative financial assets: Investments at fair value 
and loans and receivables: 

(a) Investments at fair value: 

Investments are designated at fair value if the Trust manages such investments 
and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance 
with the Trust's Statement of Investment Policies and Goals (the "SIPG").  Upon 
initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as 
incurred.  Subsequent remeasurement of financial assets measured at fair value 
are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses until realized, 
which are then recognized in the statement of operations.  The Trust's bond 
portfolio comprises its financial assets at fair value.  The Trust has elected that all 
investments will be at fair value as they are managed and evaluated on the basis of 
fair value.

Realized gains are recorded in the statement of operations, while unrealized 
gains/losses are recorded through the statement of remeasurement gains and 
losses.

(b) Loans and receivables: 

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market.  Such assets are recognized initially at fair 
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.  Subsequent to initial 
recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method, less any impairment losses. 

Loans and receivables comprise accrued investment income and cash and cash 
equivalents. 

(c) Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and all deposits with original 
maturities of three months or less. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(ii) Financial liabilities: 

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Trust becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions in the instrument. 

The Trust derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or expired. 

Such financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

4. Financial assets and liabilities:

The following table details the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities held by the 
Trust at the reporting date: 

2016 2015

Assets 

Designated at fair value upon initial recognition: 
Investment in: 

Canada treasury bills $ 1,148,477 $ 698,778 
Provincial treasury bills 8,359,754 4,592,155 
Corporate discount notes under one year 8,346,662 3,992,226 
Canada bonds  28,986,395 36,642,753 
Provincial bonds 24,252,859 22,226,495 
Corporate bonds and notes over one year 47,741,009 57,813,055 
Pooled money market funds 3,829,271 3,798,203 

122,664,427 129,763,665 

Cash and cash equivalents 961,127 796,742 
Accrued investment income 814,619 959,325 
HST recoveries receivable 478,339 329,386 

2,254,085 2,085,453

Total assets $ 124,918,512 $ 131,849,118 

Liabilities

Other liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 177,473 $ 303,806 
Holdback on Forest Renewal disbursements 280,024 218,947 
Due to Forestry Futures Trust 278,457 173,627 

Total liabilities, excluding net assets available 
for project disbursements $ 735,954 $ 696,380 

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost presented above represent due to Forestry 
Futures Trust, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and holdbacks on Forest Renewal 
disbursements. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

5. Fair value estimation:

Investments recorded at fair value on the Trust's statement of financial position are categorized 
based upon the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value. 
Hierarchical levels, defined by PS 3450 and directly related to the amount of subjectivity 
associated with inputs to fair valuation of these assets, are as follows: 

 Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets; 

 Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and 

 Level 3 - inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data. 

The valuation of the Trust's invested assets under the PS 3450 hierarchy as at March 31 is as 
follows: 

2016 Level 1 Level 2 Total

Canada treasury bills and 
other discount notes $ – $ 17,854,893 $ 17,854,893

Bonds – 100,980,263 100,980,263
Pooled money market funds 3,829,271 – 3,829,271 

$ 3,829,271 $ 118,835,156 $ 122,664,427 

2015 Level 1 Level 2 Total 

Canada treasury bills and 
other discount notes $ – $ 9,283,159 $ 9,283,159

Bonds – 116,682,303 116,682,303
Pooled money market funds 3,798,203 – 3,798,203 

$ 3,798,203 $ 125,965,462 $ 129,763,665 

There were no transfers between levels during the year, and no investments classified as 
Level 3 were held at each reporting date or during each year. 

The investments are actively managed according to the SIPG for the Trust dated October 2013, 
which includes guidelines with respect to return expectations, asset mix, approved securities, 
constraints and investment strategies. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

6. Financial instruments and associated risks:

The Trust may be exposed to financial risks as a result of its investment holdings.  The Trust's 
risk management practices include the establishment of investment guidelines, as outlined in 
the SIPG and regular monitoring of compliance with these guidelines.  The Trust manages the 
potential effects of these financial risks on the Trust's performance by employing and 
overseeing portfolio advisors who regularly monitor the Trust's positions, market events and 
ensure that the investment portfolio is diversified in accordance with investment guidelines. 

There have been no changes to exposures to financial risks, or the objectives, policies and 
processes in place for managing and measuring the risks.  

Eligible investments include Canadian entities, such as equities, bonds, debentures, notes or 
other debt obligations of government agencies or public corporations, guaranteed investment 
certificates, annuities, cash and money market securities.  The Trust's fixed income securities 
have a quality rating of "A" or better, as determined by a public bond rating agency. 

(a) Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a 
commitment that it has entered with the Trust.  Credit risk is generally higher when a 
non-exchange traded financial instrument is involved because the counterparty for the 
non-exchange traded financial instruments is not backed by an exchange clearing house. 
The Trust's fixed income investments are primarily in Canadian-issued instruments and are 
diversified among federal, provincial, corporate and other issuers.  All transactions in 
listed securities are settled or paid for upon delivery using approved brokers.  There were 
no significant concentrations of credit risk in the portfolio in either 2016 or 2015. 
The maximum credit risk exposure as at March 31, 2016 is $123,957,385 (2015 - 
$131,052,376), which includes investments, accrued investment income and other 
accounts receivable. 

The breakdown of the bond investment portfolio by credit ratings is as follows: 

Credit rating 2016 2015 

AAA 39% 40%
AA 17% 18%
A 44% 42%

 100%  100% 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

6. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued):

The breakdown of the money market investment portfolio by credit ratings at March 31 is as 
follows: 

Credit rating 2016 2015 

R-1 (high)  44%  49% 
R-1 (mid) 37% 32%
R-1 (low) 19% 19%

100% 100%

(b) Market risk: 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of 
changes in market factors, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to an 
individual investment, its issuer, or all factors affecting all instruments traded in the market. 
The Trust's investments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognized through 
income; all changes in market conditions will directly result in an increase or decrease in 
net assets.  Market price risk is managed by the Trust through the construction of a 
diversified portfolio of instruments traded on various markets and across various industries, 
which is actively managed by a third party administrator. 

The Trust's investment in fixed income securities is sensitive to interest rate movements.  In 
general, as interest rates rise, the price of a fixed rate bond will fall, and vice versa.  The 
magnitude of the decline will generally be greater for long-term debt securities than 
short-term debt securities.  An immediate hypothetical 100-basis-point or 1% increase in 
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would decrease net assets by 
approximately $4,799,591 as at March 31, 2016 (2015 - $5,538,591). 

The Trust also invests in pooled funds, which are tracked against the benchmark index, 
Dex 91-day Treasury Bill Index.  An immediate hypothetical decrease of 10% in the above 
index will impact the Trust's investments by an approximate loss of $382,927 at March 31, 
2016 (2015 - $379,820). 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

6. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued):

(c) Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust will be unable to meet its obligations as they come 
due because of an inability to liquidate assets. 

The Trust's fixed income portfolio trades in an active market and can be readily sold and 
the Trust's pooled fund investments can be readily redeemed from the mutual fund 
company.  Although market events could lead to some investment becoming illiquid, the 
diversity of the Trust's portfolios should ensure that liquidity is available for future 
payments.  The duration of investments are summarized below. 

The following tables summarize the fair value of investments by maturity: 

Less than 1 - 3 3 - 10 Greater than 
2016 1 year years years 10 years Total

Canada treasury 
bills and other 
discount notes $ 17,854,893 $ – $ – $ – $ 17,854,893

Bonds – 17,368,872 81,101,220 2,510,171 100,980,263
Pooled money 

market funds 3,829,271 – – – 3,829,271

$ 21,684,164 $ 17,368,872 $ 81,101,220 $ 2,510,171 $ 122,664,427 

Less than 1 - 3 3 - 10 Greater than 
2015 1 year years years 10 years Total

Canada treasury 
bills and other 
discount notes $ 9,283,159 $ – $ – $ – $ 9,283,159

Bonds – 22,316,230 91,386,264 2,979,809 116,682,303
Pooled money 

market funds 3,798,203 – – – 3,798,203

$ 13,081,362 $ 22,316,230 $ 91,386,264 $ 2,979,809 $ 129,763,665 

The investments with maturities greater than 10 years represent callable bonds.  Their first 
call date occurs within 3-10 years.  

The above investments have varying effective yields of 0.4% to 7.9% (2015 - 0.5% to 
7.4%).  Interest earned is accrued on a daily basis. 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

6. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued):

(d) Fair values of financial instruments: 

The fair values of the investments are as disclosed in note 5.  The fair values of other 
financial instruments of the Trust, which consist of cash and cash equivalents, accrued 
investment income, harmonized sales tax recoveries receivable, due to Forestry Futures 
Trust, holdback on Forest Renewal disbursements and accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities approximate their carrying values due to the short-term nature of these financial 
instruments. 

7. Interest income:

2016 2015

Interest income from financial assets at fair value $ 3,307,940 $ 3,331,772 
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 112,742 181,305 

$ 3,420,682 $ 3,513,077 

8. HST recoveries:

During the year, the Trust, through the Ministry, had filings to the Canadian Revenue Agency 
that resulted in the HST recoveries outlined below.  These recoveries pertain to rebates for 
HST paid by the Ministry on behalf of the Trust for periods up to and including March 31, 2015.  

At March 31, 2016, $478,339 (2015 - $329,386) of the recoveries remain receivable.  Expenses 
and project disbursements balances are presented net of their related 2016 recoveries 
amounting to $36,887 and $7,464,070 (2015 - $45,928 and $5,466,283), respectively. 
Recoveries related to periods up to and including March 31, 2014, which were received in fiscal 
2015, are presented separately in the statement of operations as follows: 

2015

HST expense recoveries $ 254,142 
Forest Renewal disbursement HST recoveries 12,229,405 

Total $ 12,483,547 
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2016 

9. Related party information:

Trustee fees are assessed on the combined average book value of the Trust and Forestry 
Futures Trust with the resultant charge apportioned to each trust on the basis of its average 
book value.  On the first $50 million in average book value, the Trustee fee is 0.05%; on the 
next $50 million in average book value, the Trustee fee is 0.04%; and on the average book 
value in excess of $100 million, the Trustee fee is 0.02%.  The fee schedule also includes a 
$1,200 charge per management unit ("Management Unit") account in the Trust.  Total fees paid 
to the Trustee were $159,895 (2015 - $160,109).  Additional fees include fund administration 
and reporting for the Management Unit accounts and master trust, transaction charges and 
other charges. 

Management fees represent a fixed fee incurred by the Trust for account receivable 
management activities performed by the Ministry.  Total management fees paid to the Ministry 
were $70,313 (2014 - $70,313).  

As at March 31, 2016, $278,457 (2015 - $173,627) was payable to Forestry Futures Trust. 

10. Capital management:

The Trust's capital is represented by its net assets. 

The Trust comprises a main trust account ("Master Account"), Management Unit accounts, and 
sub-accounts, where applicable for each forest management unit.  All Trust charges received 
and disbursements made are applied to the individual forest Management Unit accounts.  Each 
forest Management Unit's account balance is expressed in terms of units of the main trust for 
the purposes of tracking its share of Trust assets.  These units are of equal value and without 
priority or preference. 

Funds received are effectively held in the Management Unit account until the Trust valuation 
date, which is the last business day of the month.  At that time, the funds are transferred into 
the Master Account in exchange for units.  Disbursements made from each Management Unit 
account are funded through the redemption of units of the Master Account using the most 
recently determined valuation. 

The value of each unit of the Trust is determined on a monthly basis based upon the net assets 
of the Trust.  The value of a unit is determined by dividing the aggregate value of net assets of 
the main trust by the total number of units outstanding prior to the issuance and redemption of 
units. 

1-128 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2015-16



FOREST RENEWAL TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
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10. Capital management (continued):

The main objective of the Trust is to sustain a certain level of net assets in order to meet the 
mandate as set out by the CFSA.  The Trust is managed by the Trustee and funds are 
reimbursed to forest managers, including licensees, for eligible silviculture expenses under the 
direction of the Ministry. 

The Trust fulfills its primary objective by adhering to specific investment policies outlined in its 
SIPG, which is reviewed on a timely basis as needed.  The Trust manages net assets by 
engaging knowledgeable investment managers who are charged with the responsibility of 
investing funds available in accordance with the approved SIPG.  An increase in net assets is a 
direct result of investment income generated by investments held by the Trust and excess of 
receipts over disbursements made by the Trust. 

Forest Renewal charges to the Trust are established by Trust policies, including funding by 
harvest volume charges on Crown timber that are paid by the forest managers, including 
licensees.  The Trust is required to table annual financial statements with the legislature. 
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MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015

2016
Financial assets

$ 227,811
104,792
979,046
373,187
30,279
28,678
9,523

1,753,316

Liabilities
155,264
136,287
979,046

6,470
373,187

4,672
1,654,926

Net financial assets 98,390

Non-financial assets
5,716,251

4,146
5,720,397

Accumulated surplus $ 5,818,787
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MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015
(

For the year ended March 31
2016

Actual
Revenue

$ $ 849,912 $
153,631

1,579
1,005,122

Operating expenses
740,811
147,557

4,018
779

94,792
987,957

3,525

18,204
9,632

27,836

48,526

(220,450)
(12,441)

(232,891)

Deficit (184,365)
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MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO
STATEMENT OF ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the years ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015
(

For the year ended March 31
2016

Actual

Surplus/(Deficit) (184,365)
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year, as previously
reported
Prior Period adjustment
Adoption of new accounting standard for Liability for
Contaminated sites
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year, as restated 5,807,278

Contributions from ministries and other government
organizations

86,421
540,304
89,808
1,175
9,901

Distributions to the Province of Ontario
(419,331)
(48,891)
(43,177)
(20,336)
195,874

Accumulated surplus, end of period $ 5,818,787 $

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2015-16 1-135



MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
For the years ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015

2016

$ (184,365) $

(719,005)
9,104

220,450
(18,204)

28,732
468,222
12,441

(182,625)

(175)

Contributions from ministries and other government
organizations

86,421
540,304
89,808
1,175
9,901

Distributions to the Province of Ontario
(419,331)
(48,891)
(43,177)
(20,336)

Increase/(decrease) in net financial assets 13,074
Net financial assets, beginning of period 85,316
Net financial assets, end of period $ 98,390 $
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MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015

2016

Operating activities
$ (184,365)

220,450
(18,204)
(9,632)
12,441
(3,525)

(6,000)
(4,208)
10,570
5,905

14,461
(1,175)

(15,282)
(8,831)

4,672

(175)
17,102

Capital activities

28,732
(86,071)
(57,339)

Investing activities
11,514

Financing activities
86,421
1,175
7,079

(43,177)
(20,336)

31,162

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 2,439
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 225,372
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 227,811
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MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORFOLIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016 and 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of organization

Basis of accounting

Cash equivalents

Tangible capital assets



MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORFOLIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016 and 2015

Interest capitalization

AFP assets and liabilities

Assets held for sale

AFP assets under capital lease

Liability for contaminated sites



MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORFOLIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016 and 2015

Revenue recognition

Operating expenses

Contributions from ministries and other government organizations



MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORFOLIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016 and 2015

Distributions to the Province of Ontario

Use of estimates

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

3. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

March 31
2016

61,384
5,026

19,825
11,370
8,432

(1,245)
104,792



MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORFOLIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016 and 2015

4. RECEIVABLES UNDER CAPITAL LEASES AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

March 31
2016

$ 168,516

204,671
$ 373,187

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS



MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORFOLIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016 and 2015

6. PROJECTS RECEIVABLES

7. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

March 31
2016

5,156
131

14,501
19,788

(10,265)
$ 9,523

8. LIABILITY FOR CONTAMINATED SITES
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GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORFOLIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016 and 2015



MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORFOLIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016 and 2015

9. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Land
Yard-
works Buildings CIP

AFP
Buildings

AFP Assets
under

Capital Lease Total

Cost

589,658 46,703 4,055,719 466,527 2,022,097 502,090 7,682,794

245,719 4,646 93,966 690,801 18,397 207 1,053,736

- - - (334,731) - - (334,731)

(10,519) - (176) - - - (10,695)

(528) - (92,572) (419,331) - - (512,431)

(1) (534) (14,936) - - - (15,471)

(4,830) (131) (14,110) - - - (19,071)

Balance as at March 31, 2016 819,499 50,684 4,027,891 403,266 2,040,494 502,297 7,844,131

Accumulated Amortization

- 9,877 1,777,996 - 105,766 71,164 1,964,803

- 2,746 154,107 - 51,011 12,586 220,450

- - (167) - - - (167)

- - (44,209) - - - (44,209)

- (12) (3,018) - - - (3,030)

- (36) (9,931) - - - (9,967)

Balance as at March 31, 2016 - 12,575 1,874,778 - 156,777 83,750 2,127,880
Net book value at March 31,
2016 819,499 38,109 2,153,113 403,266 1,883,717 418,547 5,716,251



MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOYMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORFOLIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016 and 2015

10. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

11. COMMITMENTS

12. PRIOR YEAR BALANCES



Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The accompanying financial statements of the Independent Electricity System Operator are the responsibility  
of management and have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.  
The significant accounting policies followed by the Independent Electricity System Operator are described in  
the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies contained in Note 2 in the financial statements. The preparation 
of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management’s judgement, particu-
larly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future 
periods. The financial statements have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality and in light of 
information available up to March 9, 2016.

Management maintained a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that the assets 
were safeguarded and that reliable information was available on a timely basis. The system included formal 
policies and procedures and an organizational structure that provided for the appropriate delegation of authority 
and segregation of responsibilities.

These financial statements have been examined by KPMG LLP, a firm of independent external auditors 
appointed by the Board of Directors. The external auditors’ responsibility is to express their opinion on whether 
the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in 
Canada. The Auditors’ Report, which follows, outlines the scope of their examination and their opinion.

INDEPENDENT ELECTRICITY SYSTEM OPERATOR

On behalf of management,

Bruce Campbell Kimberly Marshall

President, Chief Executive Officer Vice-President, Corporate Services 
Toronto, Canada and Chief Financial Officer 
March 9, 2016 Toronto, Canada 

March 9, 2016

Management Report



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of the Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IESO, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at December 31, 2015, the statements of operations and accumulated deficit, remeasurement gains 
and losses, change in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk  
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the  
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not  
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of IESO as 
at December 31, 2015, and its results of operations and the changes in its net debt and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

March 9, 2016 
Waterloo, Canada



As at (in thousands of Canadian dollars)  December 31, 2015  December 31, 2014 

$ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents  14,715  31,340 

Accounts receivable  33,199  23,054 

Long-term investments (Note 3)  37,318  33,979 

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS  85,232  88,373 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 4)  48,868  51,163 

Accrued interest on debt  315  364 

Rebates due to market participants (Note 5)  9,595 –

Debt (Note 6)  90,000  129,000 

Accrued pension liability (Note 7)  36,062  36,943 

Accrued liability for employee future benefits other than pension (Note 7)  84,501  79,914 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  269,341  297,384 

NET DEBT  (184,109)  (209,011)

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Net tangible capital assets (Note 8)  103,716  99,549 

Prepaid expenses  6,197  6,170 

TOTAL NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS  109,913  105,719 

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 
Accumulated deficit from operations (Note 5)  (81,854)  (109,654)

Accumulated remeasurement gains  7,658  6,362 

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT  (74,196)  (103,292)

On behalf of the Board:

Tim O’Neill Ron Jamieson  
Chair  Director  

Toronto, Canada Toronto, Canada

Statement of Financial Position



Statement of Operations and Accumulated Deficit

For the year ended December 31 (in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2015 2015 2014

Budget 

$

Actual 

$

Actual 

$

IESO CORE OPERATIONS
System fees 181,200  180,504 160,968

Other revenue (Note 9) 3,000  5,377 6,272

Interest and investment income 1,000  1,430 2,798

Core operation revenues 185,200 187,311 170,038

Compensation and benefits (105,212)  (104,994) (115,225)

Professional and consulting (22,117)  (21,555) (19,101)

Operating and administration (33,661)  (34,911) (34,352)

Core operating expenses (160,990) (161,460) (168,678)
Amortization (18,700)  (17,933) (16,583)

Net interest (1,388)  (1,610) (832)

Core expenses (181,078) (181,003) (186,093)
IESO-OPA amalgamation expenses – –  (10,883)

Core operations annual surplus/(deficit) 4,122 6,308 (26,938)

MARKET SANCTIONS AND PAYMENT ADJUSTMENTS
Market sanctions and payment adjustments –  6,021 2,687
Compensation and benefits  (2,984)  (3,094) (2,554)

Professional and consulting  (1,515)  (1,351) (1,677)

Operating and administration  (73)  (114) (132)

Customer education and market enforcement expenses  (4,572)  (4,559)  (4,363)

Market sanctions and payment adjustments 
annual surplus/(deficit)  (4,572)  1,462  (1,676)

SMART METERING ENTITY

Smart metering charge 45,207  46,215 45,735
Compensation and benefits (3,463)  (2,607) (2,882)

Professional and consulting (19,242)  (14,902) (16,169)

Operating and administration (2,386)  (4,200) (2,958)

Smart metering operating expenses  (25,091)  (21,709)  (22,009)
Amortization (3,716)  (3,524) (4,543)

Net interest (3,048)  (952) (1,317)

Smart metering expenses  (31,855)  (26,185)  (27,869)

Smart metering entity annual surplus  13,352  20,030  17,866 

ANNUAL SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 12,902 27,800 (10,748)

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT FROM OPERATIONS, 
BEGINNING OF PERIOD  (109,654)  (109,654) (98,906)

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT FROM OPERATIONS, 
END OF PERIOD  (96,752)  (81,854)  (109,654)



Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses

For the year ended December 31 (in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014

Actual 

$

Actual 

$

ACCUMULATED REMEASUREMENT GAINS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD  6,362  4,144 

UNREALIZED GAINS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 
Foreign exchange – other  515  591 

Portfolio investments (Note 3)  1,372  2,622 

AMOUNTS RECLASSIFIED TO THE STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS: 
Foreign exchange – other  (591)  (178)

Portfolio investments –  (817)

NET REMEASUREMENT GAINS FOR THE PERIOD  1,296  2,218 

ACCUMULATED REMEASUREMENT GAINS, END OF PERIOD  7,658  6,362 



Statement of Change in Net Debt

For the year ended December 31 (in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2015 2015 2014

Budget 

$

Actual 

$

Actual 

$

ANNUAL SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)  12,902  27,800  (10,748)

CHANGE IN NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets  (29,395)  (25,624)  (24,575)

Amortization of tangible capital assets 22,416  21,457  21,125 

Change in prepaid expenses –  (27)  (1,356)

TOTAL CHANGE IN NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (6,979)  (4,194)  (4,806)

NET REMEASUREMENT GAINS FOR THE PERIOD  1,023  1,296  2,218 

CHANGE IN NET DEBT 6,946  24,902  (13,336)

NET DEBT, BEGINNING OF PERIOD  (209,011)  (209,011)  (195,675)

NET DEBT, END OF PERIOD  (202,065)  (184,109)  (209,011)



Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 (in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014

 $  $ 

OPERATING TRANSACTIONS
Change in accumulated deficit

Annual surplus/(deficit)  27,800  (10,748)

 27,800  (10,748)

Changes in non-cash items:

Amortization  21,457  21,125 

Pension expense  11,970  13,777 

Other employee future benefits expense  6,901  8,166 

Change in fair value of long-term investments –  (1,100)

 40,328  41,968 

Changes in non-cash balances related to operations:

Change in accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (775)  (3,124)

Change in accounts receivable  (10,145)  1,870 

Change in rebates due to market participants  9,595  (25,755)

Change in prepaid expenses  (27)  (1,356)

 (1,352)  (28,365)

Other:

Contribution to pension fund  (12,851)  (11,973)

Payment of employee future benefits  (2,314)  (2,321)

 (15,165)  (14,294)

Cash provided by/(applied to) operating transactions  51,611  (11,439)

CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS
Acquisition of tangible capital assets  (25,624)  (24,575)

Change in accounts payable & accrued liabilities  (1,569)  (152)

Cash applied to capital transactions  (27,193)  (24,727)

INVESTING TRANSACTIONS
Sale/(purchase) of long-term investments  (1,967)  727 

Cash provided by/(applied to) investing transactions  (1,967)  727 

FINANCING TRANSACTIONS
Issue/(retire) debt  (39,000)  4,800 

Cash provided by/(applied to) financing transactions  (39,000)  4,800 

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (16,549)  (30,639)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – BEGINNING OF PERIOD  31,340  61,566 

Unrealized foreign exchange gains/(losses) for the period  (76)  413 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – END OF PERIOD  14,715  31,340 



Notes to  
Financial Statements

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS
a) The Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO) is a not-for-profit, non-taxable, corporation established
pursuant to Part II of the Electricity Act, 1998. The predecessor Independent Electricity System Operator and 
the Ontario Power Authority (OPA) were amalgamated by statute effective on January 1, 2015, and continued as 
the Independent Electricity System Operator. As set out in the Electricity Act, 1998, the IESO operates pursuant 
to a licence granted by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). The amalgamation was effected pursuant to Bill 14, 
Building Opportunity and Securing Our Future Act (Budget Measures), 2014, which received Royal Assent on 
July 24, 2014. Schedule 7 of the Bill amended the Electricity Act, 1998, by amalgamating the two predecessor 
corporations and by continuing them as the Independent Electricity System Operator. The transitional provi-
sion, dealing with corporate matters, provides, among other things, that the predecessor IESO and OPA cease 
to exist as entities separate from the amalgamated IESO and all their rights, properties and assets become the 
rights, properties and assets of the amalgamated IESO, as do all outstanding debts, liabilities and obligations of 
the predecessor IESO and OPA. Schedule 7 of Bill 14 came into force on January 1, 2015. The objects of the IESO 
as contained in the Electricity Act, 1998, and Ontario Regulation 288/14 are as follows:
• to exercise the powers and perform the duties assigned to it under this Act, the regulations, directions,

the market rules and its licence;
• to enter into agreements with transmitters to give it authority to direct the operation of their

transmission systems;
• to direct the operation and maintain the reliability of the IESO-controlled grid to promote the purposes

of this Act;
• to participate in the development by any standards authority of criteria and standards relating to the

reliability of the integrated power system;
• to establish and enforce criteria and standards relating to the reliability of the integrated power system;
• to work with the responsible authorities outside of Ontario to co-ordinate the IESO’s activities with the

activities of those authorities;
• to operate the IESO-administered markets to promote the purposes of this Act;
• to engage in activities related to contracting for the procurement of electricity supply, electricity capacity

and conservation resources;
• to engage in activities related to settlements, payments under a contract entered into under the authority

of this Act and payments provided for under this Act or the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998;
• to engage in activities in support of the goal of ensuring adequate, reliable and secure electricity supply

and resources in Ontario;
• to forecast electricity demand and the adequacy and reliability of electricity resources for Ontario for the

short term, medium term and long term;
• to conduct independent planning for electricity generation, demand management, conservation

and transmission;
• to engage in activities to facilitate the diversification of sources of electricity supply by promoting the use of

cleaner energy sources and technologies, including alternative energy sources and renewable energy sources;
• to engage in activities in support of system-wide goals for the amount of electricity to be produced from

different energy sources;



• to engage in activities that facilitate load management;
• to engage in activities that promote electricity conservation and the efficient use of electricity;
• to assist the Board by facilitating stability in rates for certain types of consumers;
• to collect and make public information relating to the short term, medium term and long term electricity

needs of Ontario and the adequacy and reliability of the integrated power system to meet those needs; and
• to engage in such other objects as may be prescribed by the regulations.

b) The IESO was designated the Smart Metering Entity (SME) by Ontario Regulation 393/07 under the
Electricity Act, 1998, on March 28, 2007.  The regulation came into effect on July 26, 2007.

The objects of the Smart Metering Entity, as contained in the Electricity Act, 1998, are as follows:

• to plan and implement and, on an ongoing basis, oversee, administer and deliver any part of the smart
metering initiative as required by regulation under this or any Act or directive made pursuant to sections
28.3 or 28.4 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, and, if so authorized, to have the exclusive authority to
conduct these activities;

• to collect and manage and to facilitate the collection and management of information and data and to store
the information and data related to the metering of consumers’ consumption or use of electricity in Ontario,
including data collected from distributors and, if so authorized, to have the exclusive authority to collect,
manage and store the data;

• to establish, to own or lease and to operate one or more databases to facilitate collecting, managing, storing
and retrieving smart metering data;

• to provide and promote non-discriminatory access, on appropriate terms and subject to any conditions in its
licence relating to the protection of privacy, by distributors, retailers and other persons,

i.  to the information and data referred to above, and
ii.   to the telecommunication system that permits the Smart Metering Entity to transfer data about the

consumption or use of electricity to and from its databases, including access to its telecommunication
equipment, systems and technology and associated equipment, systems and technologies

• to own or to lease and to operate equipment, systems and technology, including telecommunication equip-
ment, systems and technology that permit the Smart Metering Entity to transfer data about the consump-
tion or use of electricity to and from its databases, including owning, leasing or operating such equipment,
systems and technology and associated equipment, systems and technologies, directly or indirectly, including
through one or more subsidiaries, if the Smart Metering Entity is a corporation;

• to engage in such competitive procurement activities as are necessary to fulfill its objects or business
activities;

• to procure, as and when necessary, meters, metering equipment, systems and technology and any associ-
ated equipment, systems and technologies on behalf of distributors, as an agent or otherwise, directly or
indirectly, including through one or more subsidiaries, if the Smart Metering Entity is a corporation;

• to recover, through just and reasonable rates, the costs and an appropriate return approved by the Ontario
Energy Board associated with the conduct of its activities; and

• to undertake any other objects that are prescribed by associated regulation.

c) The IESO is required to submit its proposed expenditures, revenue requirements and fees for the coming
year to the OEB for review and approval. The submission may be made only with the approval or deemed 
approval of the IESO business plan by the Minister of Energy (Minister).



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of financial statement preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards (PSAB) and reflect the following significant accounting policies. 

The statements of financial position, operations and accumulated deficit, remeasurement gains and losses, 
changes in net debt, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2015, represent the activities of the 
IESO since inception on January 1, 2015. The comparative figures represent the pro-forma combined finan-
cial position and operations of the former IESO and OPA, as prepared under the accounting policies used in 
preparing the 2015 financial statements, as if the two entities had always operated as a single entity.

b) Revenue recognition

System fees earned by the IESO are based on approved rates for each megawatt of electricity withdrawn from 
the IESO-controlled grid (including scheduled exports) and embedded generation. System fees are recognized 
as revenue at the time the electricity is withdrawn. Rebates are recognized in the year in which the regulatory 
deferral account, before such rebates, exceeds regulated limits.  

For 2015, the system fee for the newly amalgamated IESO was comprised of the combined rate calculations of 
the respective pre-amalgamation entities. Specifically, the former IESO rate base was calculated on electricity 
withdrawn from the IESO-controlled grid (including scheduled exports and embedded generation), whereas 
the former OPA rate base only considered Ontario electricity consumers. The IESO has submitted a rate case 
to the OEB for 2016 that proposes the use of one, consistent rate, based on electricity withdrawn from the 
IESO-controlled grid that includes scheduled exports and embedded generation. 

These financial statements do not include the financial transactions of market participants within the 
IESO-administered markets. 

Other revenue represents amounts that accrue to the IESO relating to investment income on funds passing 
through market settlement accounts, as well as application fees. Such revenue is recognized as it is earned.

Interest and investment income represents realized interest income and investment gains or losses on cash, 
cash equivalents, short-term investments and long-term investments.

Market sanctions represent funds received to offset payments disbursed related to penalties, damages, fines 
and payment adjustments arising from resolved settlement disputes.

c) Financial instruments

The IESO records cash and cash equivalents, investment portfolio and foreign currency exchange forward 
contracts at fair value. The cumulative change in fair value of these financial instruments is recorded in 
accumulated surplus as remeasurement gains and losses and is included in the value of the respective financial 
instrument shown in the statement of financial position and the statement of remeasurement gains and losses.  
Upon disposition of the financial instruments, the cumulative remeasurement gains and losses are reclassified 
to the statement of operations and all other gains and losses associated with the disposition of the financial 
instrument are recorded in the statement of operations. Transaction costs are charged to operations  
as incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, term deposits and other short-term, highly rated investments with 
original maturity dates of less than 90 days.  

The IESO records accounts receivable, accounts payable and debt at amortized cost.



d) Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, development or betterment of the asset. The IESO capitalizes applicable interest as part of the cost 
of tangible capital assets.

e) Assets under construction

Assets under construction generally relates to the costs of physical facilities, hardware and software, and 
includes costs paid to vendors, internal and external labour, consultants and interest related to funds borrowed 
to finance the project. Costs relating to assets under construction are transferred to tangible capital assets when 
the asset under construction is deemed to be ready for use. 

f) Amortization

The capital cost of tangible capital assets in service is amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated 
service lives.

The estimated service lives in years, from the date the assets were acquired, are:

Class

Estimated Average 

Service Life 2015

Estimated Average 

Service Life 2014

Facilities 37 37

Market systems and applications 4 to 12 4 to 12

Infrastructure and other assets 4 to 7 4 to 7

Meter data management/repository 10 10

Gains and losses on sales or premature retirements of tangible capital assets are charged to operations.

The estimated service lives of tangible capital assets are subject to periodic review. The effects of changes in  
the estimated lives are amortized on a prospective basis. The most recent review was completed in fiscal 2015.

g) Pension, other post-employment benefits and compensated absences

The IESO’s post-employment benefit programs include pension, group life insurance, health care, long-term 
disability and workers’ compensation benefits.

The IESO accrues obligations under pension and other post-employment benefit (OPEB) plans and the related 
costs, net of plan assets. Pension and OPEB expenses and obligations are determined annually by independent 
actuaries using the projected benefit method and management’s best estimate of expected return on plan assets, 
salary escalation, retirement ages of employees, mortality and expected health-care costs. The discount rate 
used to value liabilities is based on the expected rate of return on plan assets as at the measurement date of 
September 30.

The expected return on plan assets is based on management’s long-term best estimate using a market-related 
value of plan assets. The market-related value of plan assets is determined using the average value of assets over 
three years as at the measurement date of September 30.

Pension and OPEB expenses are recorded during the year in which employees render services. Pension and 
OPEB expenses consist of current service costs, interest expense on liabilities, expected return on plan assets 
and the cost of plan amendments in the period. Actuarial gains/(losses) arise from, among other things, the 
difference between the actual rate of return on plan assets for a period and the expected long-term rate of  
return on plan assets for that period or from changes in actuarial assumptions used to determine the accrued 
benefit obligations. Actuarial gains/(losses) are amortized over the expected average remaining service life of  
the employees covered by the plan.  



The expected average remaining service life of employees covered by the pension plans is 15 years 
(2014 – 13 years) and OPEB plans is 14.7 years (2014 – 14 years).

The IESO sick pay benefits accumulate but do not vest. The IESO accrues sick pay benefits based on the  
expectation of future utilization and records the accrual within accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

h) Foreign currency exchange

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange 
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Items on the statement of financial position denominated in foreign 
currency are translated to Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange as of the financial statements date. The 
cumulative unrealized foreign currency exchange gains and losses of items continuing to be recognized on 
the statement of financial position are recorded in accumulated deficit as remeasurement gains and losses 
and shown in the statement of financial position and the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. Upon 
settlement of the item denominated in a foreign currency, the cumulative remeasurement gains and losses are 
reclassified to the statement of operations, and all other gains and losses associated with the disposition of the 
financial instrument are recorded in the statement of operations.

i) Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the finan-
cial statements. The IESO’s accounts that involve a greater degree of uncertainty include the carrying values of 
tangible capital assets, rebates to market participants, accrued pension liability and accrual for employee future 
benefits other than pensions. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



3. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Long-term investments in a balanced portfolio of pooled funds are valued by the pooled funds manager based on 
published price quotations and amount to $37,019 thousand (2014 – $33,758 thousand). As at December 31, the 
market value allocation of these long-term investments was 56.0% equity securities and 44.0% debt securities 
(2014 – 59.7% and 40.3% respectively).

Balanced portfolio of pooled funds

As at December 31 (in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014

$ $

Opening balance 33,758 31,683

Purchase/(sale) of investments 1,889 (830)

Change in fair value 1,372 2,905

Closing balance 37,019 33,758

In addition to the balanced portfolio of pooled funds, the IESO has a long-term deposit with Canada Revenue 
Agency in the amount of $299 thousand (2014 – $221 thousand) pertaining to the Retirement Compensation 
Arrangements Trust (Note 6). 

4. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

As at December 31 (in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014

$ $

Relating to operations 43,125 43,851

Relating to tangible capital assets 5,743 7,312

48,868 51,163



5.  REBATES DUE TO MARKET PARTICIPANTS AND
ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

In 2015, the IESO recognized $9,595 thousand in rebates due to market participants of system fees (2014 – 
$28,786). As at December 31, 2015, rebates due to market participants were $9,595 thousand (2014 – $nil). 

Historically, the IESO’s approved regulatory deferral account balance has been maintained at a maximum of 
$10.0 million ($5.0 million each of the former IESO and OPA for a combined $10.0 million). The 2015 approved 
regulatory deferral account balance will be established at the time of the 2016 rate case with the OEB, which is 
expected to be in the spring of 2016.

Prior to 2014, unrealized gains and losses from portfolio investments and foreign exchange were included in 
the balance of the regulatory deferral account (life-to-date total $4,144 thousand). As of January 1, 2014, only 
realized gains and losses are included in this balance.     

As at December 31, the components of the accumulated deficit were as follows:

Accumulated Deficit

As at December 31 (in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014

$ $

Regulatory deferral account (a) 10,000 7,604

Accumulated market sanctions and payment adjustments (b) 492 (970)

Smart metering entity – accumulated deficit (c) (40,849) (60,879)

PSAB transition items (d) (47,353) (51,265)

Remeasurement gains/(losses) 3,514 2,218

Accumulated deficit – end of year (74,196) (103,292)

a) Regulatory Deferral Account

As at December 31 (in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014

$ $

Accumulated surplus – beginning of year 7,604 38,792

Revenues (before rebates due to market participants) 196,906 198,824

Rebates due to market participants (9,595) (28,786)

Core operation expenses (181,003) (186,093)

IESO – OPA amalgamation expenses – (10,883)

Recovery of PSAB transition items (3,912) (4,250)

Accumulated surplus – end of year 10,000 7,604



b) Accumulated Market Sanctions and Payment Adjustments

As at December 31 (in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014

$ $

Accumulated surplus – beginning of year (970) 706

Market sanctions and payment adjustments 6,021 2,687

Customer education and market enforcement expenses (4,559) (4,363)

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) – end of year 492 (970)

c) Smart Metering Entity – Accumulated Deficit

As at December 31 (in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014

$ $

Accumulated deficit – beginning of year (60,879) (78,745)

Smart metering charge 46,215 45,735

Smart metering expenses (26,185) (27,869)

Accumulated deficit – end of year (40,849) (60,879)

d) PSAB Transition Item - Accumulated Deficit

As at December 31 (in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014

$ $

Accumulated deficit – beginning of year (51,265) (55,515)

Recovery of PSAB transition items 3,912 4,250

Accumulated deficit – end of year (47,353) (51,265)

Effective January 1, 2011, the IESO adopted Canadian public sector accounting standards with a transition date 
of January 1, 2010. The adoption of PSAB was accounted for by retroactive application with restatement of prior 
periods subject to the requirements in Section PS 2125, First-time Adoption by Government Organizations.  
The corresponding change to pension and other-post employment benefits resulted in previously unrecog-
nized actuarial losses and past service costs of $80,617 thousand at the date of transition being charged to the 
accumulated deficit.   

The IESO includes a portion of the accumulated deficit resulting from the PSAB transition items in the annual 
proposed expenditures to the OEB for recovery through system fees.  



6. DEBT

Note payable to Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC)
In April 2014, the IESO entered into a three-year note payable with the OEFC. The note payable is unsecured, 
bears interest at a fixed rate of 2.046% per annum and is repayable in full on April 30, 2017. Interest accrues 
daily and is payable in arrears semi-annually in April and October of each year. As at December 31, 2015, the 
note payable to the OEFC was $90.0 million (December 31, 2014 – $90.0 million).

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the interest expense on the note payable was $1,841 thousand 
(2014 – $1,650 thousand).

Credit facility
The IESO has an unsecured credit facility agreement with the OEFC, which will make available to the IESO an 
amount up to $95.0 million. Advances are payable at a variable interest rate equal to the Province of Ontario’s 
cost of borrowing for a 30-day term plus 0.50% per annum, with draws, repayments and interest payments due 
monthly. The credit facility expires April 30, 2017. As at December 31, 2015, no amount was drawn on the credit 
facility (December 31, 2014 – $39.0 million).

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the interest expense on the credit facility was $279 thousand 
(2014 – $664 thousand).

Retirement Compensation Arrangements Trust
In July 2013, the IESO established a Retirement Compensation Arrangements (RCA) Trust to provide security 
for the IESO’s obligations under the terms of the supplemental employee retirement plan for its employees. As 
at December 31, 2015, the IESO has provided the RCA trustee with a bank letter of credit of $28,408 thousand 
(2014 – $23,370 thousand) the trustee can draw on if the IESO is in default under the terms of this plan.



7. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS
The IESO provides pension and other employee post-employment benefits, comprising group life insurance, 
long-term disability and group medical and dental plans, for the benefit of current and retired employees. 

Pension plans
The IESO provides a contributory defined benefit, indexed, registered pension plan. In addition to the funded, 
registered, pension plan, the IESO provides certain non-registered defined benefit pensions through an 
unfunded, indexed, non-registered plan.

Other employee future benefits
The group life insurance, long-term disability and group medical and dental benefits are provided through 
unfunded, non-registered defined benefit plans. 

Summary of accrued benefit obligations and plan assets

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

2015  

Pension Benefits

2014  

Pension Benefits

2015 

Other Benefits

2014 

Other Benefits

$ $ $ $

Accrued benefit obligation 482,994 452,466 83,455 69,427

Fair value of plan assets 475,714 455,229 – –

Funded status as of measurement date (7,280) 2,763 (83,455) (69,427)

Employer contribution/other benefits payments 

after measurement date 427 207 582 586

Unrecognized actuarial (gain)/loss (29,209) (39,913) (1,628) (11,073)

Accrued liability recognized in the statement 
of financial position (36,062) (36,943) (84,501) (79,914)

Registered pension plan assets
As at the measurement date of September 30, the proportion of the fair value of registered pension plan assets 
held in each asset class was as follows: 

2015 2014

Canadian equity securities 19.9% 20.6%

Foreign equity securities 41.8% 40.7%

Canadian debt securities 39.0% 37.9%

Cash equivalents 0.6% 1.1%

Forward foreign exchange contracts (1.3%) (0.3%)

100.0% 100.0%



Principal assumptions used to calculate benefit obligations at the end of the year are determined at that time and 
are as follows:

2015  

Pension Benefits

2014  

Pension Benefits

2015 

Other Benefits

2014 

Other Benefits

Discount rate at the end of the period 6.00% 6.15% 6.00% 6.15%

Rate of compensation increase 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75%

Rate of indexing 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25%

The assumed prescription drug inflation was 8.25% for 2015, grading down to an ultimate rate 4.75% per year in 
2029. Dental costs are assumed to increase by 4.25% per year.

Benefit costs and plan contributions for pension and other plans are summarized as follows:

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

2015  

Pension Benefits

2014  

Pension Benefits

2015 

Other Benefits

2014 

Other Benefits

$ $ $ $

Current service cost (employer) 10,547 7,707 2,857 2,339

Interest cost 28,143 27,787 4,797 5,241

Expected return on plan assets (26,053) (23,630) – –

Amortization of net actuarial loss (667) 1,913 (753) 586

Benefit cost 11,970 13,777 6,901 8,166

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

2015  

Pension Benefits

2014  

Pension Benefits

2015 

Other Benefits

2014 

Other Benefits

$ $ $ $

Employer contribution/other benefit payments 12,851 11,973 2,314 2,321

Plan participants’ contributions 5,162 3,722 – –

Benefits paid 21,155 20,862 2,314 2,321

The most recent actuarial valuation of the registered pension plan for funding purposes was at January 1, 2014, 
and the date of the next required valuation is January 1, 2017.  In 2015, a cost certificate was filed with Financial 
Services Commission of Ontario. 

Principal assumptions used to calculate benefit costs for the year are determined at the beginning of the period 
and are as follows:

2015  

Pension Benefits

2014  

Pension Benefits

2015 

Other Benefits

2014 

Other Benefits

Discount rate at the beginning of the period 6.15% 6.25% 6.15% 6.25%

Rate of compensation increase 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75%

Rate of indexing 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25%



8. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
Net tangible capital assets consist of the following:

Tangible Capital Assets

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

As at

Dec. 31, 2014 Additions Disposals

As at 

Dec. 31, 2015

$ $ $ $

Facilities 55,818 116 (3,653) 52,281

Market systems and applications 262,840 16,364 (746) 278,458

Infrastructure and other assets 56,910 6,731 (3,461) 60,180

Meter data management/repository 35,434 466 – 35,900

Total cost 411,002 23,677 (7,860) 426,819

Accumulated Amortization

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

As at

Dec. 31, 2014

Amortization 

Expense Disposals

As at 

Dec. 31, 2015

$ $ $ $

Facilities (23,970) (2,287) 3,653 (22,604)

Market systems and applications (241,287) (10,669) 746 (251,210)

Infrastructure and other assets (45,712) (4,977) 3,461 (47,228)

Meter data management/repository (21,805) (3,524) – (25,329)

Total accumulated amortization (332,774) (21,457) 7,860 (346,371)

Net Book Value

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

As at

December 31, 2014

As at 

December 31, 2015

$ $

Facilities 31,848 29,677

Market systems and applications 21,553 27,248

Infrastructure and other assets 11,198 12,952

Meter data management/repository 13,629 10,571

Total net book value 78,228 80,448

Assets under construction 21,321 23,268

Net tangible capital assets 99,549 103,716

In 2015, the impact of adjustments to management’s estimates of remaining asset service lives was a decrease in 
amortization expense of $653 thousand (2014 – decrease of $665 thousand).

Interest capitalized to assets under construction during 2015 was $263 thousand (2014 – $165 thousand).



9. OTHER REVENUE
In its administration of the IESO-administered markets, the IESO directs the investment of market funds in 
highly rated, short-term investments throughout the settlement cycle. The IESO is entitled to receive the invest-
ment interest and investment gains, net of investment losses earned on funds passing through the real-time 
market settlement accounts. The IESO is not entitled to the principal on real-time market investments. 

The IESO recognized investment income earned in the market settlement accounts of $3,212 thousand in 2015 
(2014 – $1,724 thousand).

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Province of Ontario is a related party as it is the controlling entity of the IESO. The OEFC, OEB, Hydro One 
and Ontario Power Generation Inc. (OPG) are related parties of the IESO, through the common control of the 
Province of Ontario. Transactions between these parties and the IESO were as follows:

The IESO holds a note payable and an unsecured credit facility agreement with the OEFC (Note 6). Interest 
payments made by the IESO in 2015 for the note payable were $1,841 thousand (2014 – $1,545 thousand) and 
for the credit facility were $328 thousand (2014 – $671 thousand). As of December 31, 2015, the IESO had an 
accrued interest payable balance with the OEFC of $315 thousand (2014 – $364 thousand).

Under the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, the IESO incurs registration and license fees. The total of the trans-
actions with the OEB was $1,671 thousand in 2015 (2014 – $1,642 thousand).  

The IESO performed connection and bulk electric system exception assessments for Hydro One in 2015. In 2015, 
the IESO invoiced Hydro One $310 thousand (2014 – $437 thousand).  

The IESO procures short circuit studies and protection impact assessments as part of connection assessments, 
approvals and meter services on IESO-owned interconnected revenue meters from Hydro One. Additionally, 
the IESO paid Hydro One for the removal of the microwave tower at the Clarkson location. In 2015, the IESO 
incurred costs of $525 thousand (2014 – $144 thousand) for these services. As of December 31, 2015, the IESO 
had a net payable balance with Hydro One of $149 thousand (2014 – $121 thousand).

The IESO performed connection assessment and approvals for OPG, administered telecommunication services 
to market participants to connect to the real-time market systems and provides market-related training courses.  
In 2015, OPG was invoiced $137 thousand (2014 – $54 thousand). As of December 31, 2015, the IESO had a net 
receivable balance with OPG of $4 thousand (2014 – $4 thousand).



11. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The IESO is exposed to financial risks in the normal course of its business operations, including market risks 
resulting from volatilities in equity, debt and foreign currency exchange markets, as well as credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The nature of the financial risks and the IESO’s strategy for managing these risks have not 
changed significantly from the prior year.

a) Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate to 
cause changes in market prices. The IESO is primarily exposed to three types of market risk: currency risk, 
interest rate risk and equity risk. The IESO monitors its exposure to market risk fluctuations and may use finan-
cial instruments to manage these risks as it considers appropriate. The IESO does not use derivative instruments 
for trading or speculative purposes.

i) Currency Risk

The IESO conducts certain transactions in U.S. dollars, primarily related to vendors’ payments, and 
maintains a U.S. dollar-denominated bank account. From time to time, the IESO may utilize forward 
purchase contracts to purchase U.S. dollars for delivery at a specified date in the future at a fixed exchange 
rate. In addition, the IESO utilizes U.S. dollar spot rate purchases in order to satisfy any current accounts.  
As at December 31, 2015, the IESO did not have any outstanding forward purchase contracts. 

ii) Interest Rate Risk

The IESO is exposed to movements or changes in interest rates primarily through its short-term variable 
rate credit facility, cash equivalents’ securities and long-term investments. Long-term investments include 
investments in a pooled Canadian bond fund. The potential impact to the securities’ value had the prevailing 
interest rates changed by 25 basis points, assuming a parallel shift in the yield curve with all other variables 
held constant, is estimated at $0.6 million as at December 31, 2015 (2014 – $0.5 million).  

iii) Equity Risk

The IESO is exposed to changes in equity prices through its long-term investments. Long-term investments 
include investments in pooled equity funds. A 30% change in the valuation of equities as at December 31, 
2015, would have resulted in a change for the year (before the impact of adjustments to the approved regula-
tory deferral account (Note 5) of approximately $6.8 million (2014 – $6.0 million). The fair values of all 
financial instruments measured at fair value are derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 
for identical assets.

b) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that one party to a financial instrument may cause a financial loss for the other party 
by failing to meet its obligations under the terms of the financial instrument. The IESO is exposed directly to 
credit risk related to cash equivalents’ securities and accounts receivable, and indirectly through its exposure 
to the long-term investments in a Canadian bond pooled fund. The IESO manages credit risk associated with 
cash equivalents’ securities through an approved management policy that limits investments to investment-
grade investments with counterparty-specific limits. The accounts receivable balance as at December 31, 2015, 
included no material items past due and substantially all of the balance was collected within 30 days from 
December 31, 2015. The long-term Canadian bond pooled fund is comprised of primarily investment-grade 
securities.



c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the IESO will encounter financial difficulty in meeting obligations associated 
with its financial liabilities when due. The IESO manages liquidity risk by forecasting cash flows to identify cash 
flows and financing requirements. Cash flows from operations, short-term investments, long-term investments 
and maintaining appropriate credit facilities help to reduce liquidity risk. The IESO’s long-term investments are 
normally able to be redeemed within three business days; however, the investment manager of the pooled funds 
has the authority to require a redemption in-kind rather than cash and has the ability to suspend redemptions if 
deemed necessary.  

12. COMMITMENTS

Operating commitments 
The obligations of the IESO with respect to non-cancellable operating leases over the next five years are 
as follows:  

As at December 31 (thousands of Canadian dollars)

$

2016 5,616

2017 5,288

2018 4,793

2019 3,724

2020 3,051

The above figures include lease payments up to July 2017 which have also been included in the 2014 IESO-OPA 
amalgamation expenses ($1,700 thousand). As of December 31, 2015 this balance is $1,120 thousand.



13. CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES

Contingencies
The IESO is subject to various claims, legal actions and investigations that arise in the normal course of 
business. While the final outcome of such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes that 
the resolution of such claims, actions and investigations will not have a material impact on the IESO’s financial 
position or results of operations.   

Guarantees
The IESO enters into contracts with suppliers of electricity as part of its normal business operations. In some 
cases, these contracts require the IESO to support obligations with these entities. In 2012, the IESO entered into 
a letter of credit amounting to $1,349 thousand in support of a contracted obligation. As at December 31, 2015, 
no amounts have been drawn on the balance. 
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Legal Aid Ontario

Statement of Operations

For the year ended March 31 2016
  ($000's)

2015  
  ($000's)  

REVENUE
   Total government funding (Notes 1(a), (2), (7) and (13) $ 395,266 $ 363,111
   The Law Foundation of Ontario (Note 8) 25,211 29,179
   Client contributions  9,995 9,883
   Client and other recoveries 811 763
   Investment income (Note 4) 390 599
   Miscellaneous income     969 632

TOTAL REVENUE $ 432,642 $ 404,167

EXPENSES (Note 2)
  Client Programs
    Certificate Program

Criminal - Big cases $ 30,162 $ 25,560
Criminal - others 81,931 76,324

         Sub-total 112,093 101,884

Family  60,654 49,837
Immigration and refugee 17,108 16,039
Other civil 6,174 5,781

          Sub-total 196,029 173,541

Settlement conferences 163 137
Family law offices 10,038 7,928
Criminal law offices 2,927 1,331
Refugee law office 4,749 3,064
Articling students  2,471 2,466
Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation    1,858 1,842

          Certificates 218,235 190,309

Duty Counsel Program
Duty counsel fees and disbursements 53,432 49,443
Expanded duty counsel 2,146 1,766

          Sub-total 55,578 51,209

Clinic Program and Special Services
Clinic law services (Note 10) 85,462 77,971
Student legal aid services societies 5,337 4,399
Clinic information management project 1,474 1,516

   Sub-total 92,273 83,886

 Service Innovation Projects
 Other      1,766 1,808
          Sub-total 1,766 1,808



Legal Aid Ontario

Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31 2016

  ($000's)
2015  

  ($000's)  

EXPENSES (continued)

 Program Support
Regional operations 2,740 2,311
District/Area office services 14,943 15,282

  Client and legal service centre 10,632 8,283

          Sub-total 28,315 25,876

TOTAL CLIENT PROGRAMS 396,167 353,088

 Service Provider Support
Research facilities 4,015 3,599
Lawyers' services and payments  2,317 2,179

          Sub-total 6,332 5,778

Administrative and Other Costs
Provincial office  36,411 35,070
Amortization 3,263 2,413
Bad debts 4,263 3,949

          Sub-total 43,937 41,432

TOTAL EXPENSES        $ 446,436 $ 400,298

Surplus (deficit) of revenue over expenses for the year $ (13,794) $ 3,869



Legal Aid Ontario

Statement of Changes in Net Assets (Deficit)

For the year ended March 31  

Internally
restricted

Accumulated
(deficit) 2016   2015

($000's)
    (Note 9) Total   Total

Net assets, beginning of year $ 13,490 $ -      $ 13,490 $ 9,621

Surplus (deficit) of revenue over
expenses for the year - (13,794) (13,794) 3,869

Transfer from internally restricted (2,427) 2,427 - -

Net assets (deficit), end of year $ 11,063   $ (11,367)   $ (304) $ 13,490



Legal Aid Ontario

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31 2016 2015

  ($000's)   ($000's)

Cash provided by (used in)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Surplus (deficit) of revenue over expenses for the year    $ (13,794)    $ 3,869

Adjustments to reconcile surplus (deficit) of revenue over 
expenses to net cash provided by operating activities:

Amortization of capital assets    3,263 2,413
Employer pension contributions (6,144) (5,062)
Pension expense 6,520 5,381

Changes in non-cash balances:
 Accrued interest on investments 303 (171)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (649) (267)
Client accounts receivable (111) 1,164
Other receivables 3,372 4,311
Long-term client accounts receivable 1,867 (976)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (3,060) (4,434)
Deferred contributions (1,123) 1,000
Deferred grants (934) (1,454)

Contingency Reserve (5,000) -

    $ (15,490)   $ 5,774

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Redemption (purchase) $ 8,999 $ (10,000)

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets $ (2,673) $ (4,795)

Net  decrease in cash and cash equivalents during
the year    (9,164) (9,021)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 15,627 24,648

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  $ 6,463 $ 15,627



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2016

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

On December 18, 1998, the Ontario Legislative Assembly enacted the Legal Aid Services Act,
1998 whereby Legal Aid Ontario "LAO" (the "Corporation") was incorporated without share capital
under the laws of Ontario.  The Corporation began operations on April 1, 1999 and is tax exempt
under the Income Tax Act (Canada).

The Legal Aid Services Act, 1998 establishes the following mandate for the Corporation:
! To promote access to justice throughout Ontario for low-income individuals by providing

high quality legal aid services
! To encourage and facilitate flexibility and innovation in the provision of legal aid services
! To recognize the diverse legal needs of low-income individuals and disadvantaged

communities
! To operate within a framework of accountability for the expenditure of public funds

The affairs of the Corporation are governed and managed by a Board of eleven Directors appointed
by the Lieutenant Governor in Council.  While the Corporation operates independently from the
Province of Ontario and the Law Society of Upper Canada, it is accountable for the expenditure of
public funds and for the provision of legal aid services in a manner that both meets the needs of
low-income individuals and is cost-effective and efficient.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Public Sector Handbook
[“PS”] of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada supplemented by the standards for
government not-for-profit organizations included in PS 4200  to PS 4270, which constitutes
generally accepted accounting principles for government not-for-profit organizations in Canada and
includes the significant accounting policies summarized below.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial instruments are classified in one of the following categories (i) fair value or (ii) cost or
amortized cost. The entity determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial
recognition.  

Investments reported at fair value consist of equity instruments that are quoted in an active market
as well as investments in pooled funds and any investments in fixed income securities that the
Corporation designates upon purchase to be measured at fair value. Transaction costs are
recognized in the statement of operations in the period during which they are incurred. Investments
at fair value are remeasured at their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Any revaluation
gains and losses are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses and are
cumulatively reclassified to the statement of operations upon disposal or settlement.

Investments in fixed income securities not designated to be measured at fair value are initially
recorded at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the straightline method, less any provision for impairment.

All investment transactions are recorded on a trade date basis.  

Other financial instruments, including client accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, are initially recorded at their fair value and are subsequently measured at cost, net of any
provisions for impairment.



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2016

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.  

Externally restricted contributions are deferred when initially recorded in the accounts and
recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are recognized.  Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenue when initially recorded in the accounts if the amount to be
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Due to uncertainty
surrounding the amounts to be billed, client contributions are recognized as revenue when the
Corporation accrues a lawyer's invoice on behalf of a client. Judgments, costs and settlements are
recognized as revenue when awarded.

Investment income, which consists of interest, is recorded in the statement of operations as earned.

EXPENSE RECOGNITION

Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis. Certificate program costs include amounts billed to
the Corporation by lawyers and an estimate of amounts for work performed by lawyers but not yet
billed to the Corporation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks plus highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value with original maturities of  typically one year or less.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization.  Amortization is provided on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Furniture and office equipment - 5 years
Computer hardware - 3 years
Enterprise-wide software - 3-7 years
Leasehold improvements - over the term of lease



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2016

EMPLOYEE  BENEFIT PLANS

The Corporation accrues its obligations under a defined benefit employee plan and the related
costs.  The cost of post-employment benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using
the projected unit credit actuarial cost method prorated on service and management's best estimate
assumptions. The cost of non-vesting sick leave benefits is also actuarially determined using
management's best estimate assumptions.  Actuarial gains (losses) are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the estimated average remaining service period of the active employees. Past service
costs are expensed when incurred.  Liabilities are measured using a discount rate determined by
reference to the Corporation's cost of borrowing. Contributions to a defined contribution pension
plan are expensed on an accrual basis

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could
differ from management's best estimates as additional information becomes available in the future.
Significant estimates in the financial statements include the allowance for client accounts
receivable, accruals related to legal work performed but not yet billed and accrued employee
benefits.



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2016

1. Government Funding

Section 71 of the Legal Aid Services Act, 1998 requires the Corporation and the Attorney
General of Ontario to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") every five years. The
purpose of the MOU is to clarify the operational, administrative, financial, and other relationships
between The Ministry of the Attorney General ("MAG") and the Corporation. The most recent
MOU was signed on November 12, 2014.

(a) The Corporation is economically dependent on the Province of Ontario, and contributions
recognized from the Province are as follows:

2016 2015
  ($000's)   ($000's)

General contributions $ 363,766 $ 356,711
Financial Eligibility (Note (2)) 31,500 6,400

Total contributions $ 395,266 $ 363,111

(b) Included in contributions from the Province of Ontario for the year ended March 31, 2016 is
an amount of $50.9 million (2015 - $50.7 million) representing an allocation of funds from a
lump sum transfer by the Federal Government to the Province in connection with criminal
law, the Youth Criminal Justice Act, Immigration and Refugee expenditures for unique
pressures through a cost-sharing arrangement. 

(c) Subsection 66(3) of the Legal Aid Services Act, 1998 allows the Corporation to allocate any
surplus or deficit in a fiscal year to either or both of the two subsequent fiscal years with the
approval of the Attorney General, unless, under Subsection 69(2), it is ordered by the
Minister of Finance to pay its surplus into the Consolidated Revenue Fund.

2. Financial Eligibility
In the 2014, 2015 and 2016 provincial budgets, the Government of Ontario committed to provide
Ontarians with greater access to justice by increasing the Financial Eligibility threshold by 6%
per year.  The first increase took place on November 1, 2014; since then increases have taken
place each year on April 1, 2015 and April 1, 2016. Further increases are scheduled each year
to 2020. LAO received $31.5 million (note 1(a)) from the Province of Ontario in 2015/16 (2015 -
$6.4 million) and the province has committed to increase funding to $48.8 million in 2016/17,
$67.0 million in 2017/18, $86.3 million in 2018/19, $106.4 million in 2019/20 and $120.1 million in
2020/21.

LAO’s objective is to increase access to justice and ensure that the Financial Eligibility funding is
fully utilized by increasing the number of clients served  through the certificate program, and the
new clinic and staff programs. On average it takes three years for the full cost to be realized and
it is anticipated that there will be years when expenses incurred exceed contributions received in
the early year and vice versa in the latter years. These differences in revenue and expenses will
offset each other, over the term of the program.

During the year, LAO incurred expenses of $37.1 million (2015 - $6.4 million) and received
contributions of $31.5 million (2015 - $6.4 million). Cumulatively to date, LAO has incurred
expenses of $43.5 million and received contributions of $37.9 million.



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31 2016

3. Accounts Receivable

(a) Client accounts receivable

The Corporation has a client contribution program for legal aid applicants who do not meet the
Corporation's financial eligibility requirements for a non-contributory certificate. These applicants
receive the assistance they need by entering into a contribution agreement, which they undertake
to repay the Corporation over time for the services provided to them. Contribution agreements
may include monthly payments and/or liens on property.

March 31 2016
  ($000's)

Total 1-30 Days 31-60 Days 61-90 Days Over 90
Days

     Client accounts receivable $ 66,425 $ 185 $ 200 $ 234 $ 65,806
     Less: impairment allowance (29,721) (98) (98) (100) (29,425)

     Net receivables $ 36,704 $ 87 $ 102 $ 134 $ 36,381

March 31 2015
  ($000's)

Total 1-30 Days 31-60 Days 61-90 Days Over 90
Days

     Client accounts receivable $ 70,868 $ 184 $ 800 $ 249 $ 69,635
     Less: impairment allowance (32,408) (64) (448) (134) (31,762)

     Net receivables $ 38,460 $ 120 $ 352 $ 115 $ 37,873

2016
  ($000's)

2015
  ($000's)

Represented by
Current (non-lien) client accounts receivable 15,709 15,598
Long-term (lien) client accounts receivable 20,995 22,862

$ 36,704 $ 38,460



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31 2016

    (b) Other receivables

Other receivables are mainly composed of amounts due from the Law Foundation of Ontario,
Canada Revenue Agency and both the Federal Department of Justice ("DOJ") and  MAG for
protocol cases.

March 31 2016
  ($000's)

Total 1-30 Days 31-60 Days 61-90 Days Over 90
Days

     MAG protocol cases $ 2,399 $ 476 $ 502 $ 550 $ 871
     DOJ protocol cases 374 66 56 127 125
     HST receivable 5,811 2,959 2,621 - 231
     The Law Foundation of
          Ontario 1,794 1,794 - - -
     Other receivables 734 373 - - 361

Total other receivables $ 11,112 $ 5,668 $ 3,179 $ 677 $ 1,588

March 31  2015
  ($000's)

Total 1-30 Days 31-60 Days 61-90 Days Over 90
Days

     MAG protocol cases $ 3,908 $ 1,329 $ - $ - $ 2,579
     DOJ protocol cases 524 454 56 14 -
     HST receivable 7,519 3,100 2,032 - 2,387
     The Law Foundation of
          Ontario 2,061 2,061 - - -

Other receivables 472 472 - - -

 Total other receivables $ 14,484 $ 7,416 $ 2,088 $ 14 $ 4,966



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31 2016

4. Investments
2016

  ($000's)
2015

  ($000's)

   Guaranteed investment certificates $ 29,400 $ 38,400
   Accrued interest 127 429

   Investments $ 29,527 $ 38,829

The Corporation has developed an investment policy in accordance with the statutory
requirements outlined in Sections 7(1), 7(2), 7(3) and 7(4) of Ontario Regulation 107/99 made
under the Legal Aid Services Act, 1998.  The Corporation's short-term and long-term investment
policy is to invest in highly liquid investments in Canadian federal government securities,
Canadian provincial government securities or other guaranteed investment certificates issued or
guaranteed by Canadian financial institutions with a rating of A or above.  The investments held
by the Corporation as at March 31, 2016 are in compliance with the statutory requirements. There
were no long-term investments held as at March 31, 2016 (2015 - nil). Short-term investments
held of $29.4 million (2015 - $38.4 million) are invested at variable interest rates.

The Corporation earned investment income of $0.4 million in 2016 (2015 - $0.6 million).



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31 2016

5. Capital Assets

2016 2015
  ($000's)   ($000's)

      Cost           Accumulated Cost         Accumulated
Amortization Amortization

Furniture and office equipment $ 209 $ 139 $ 271 $ 154
Computer hardware  5,859 2,956 5,019 2,360
Leasehold improvements 6,640 3,781 6,003 2,997
Enterprise-wide software 17,847 16,697 17,753 15,963

$ 30,555 $ 23,573 $ 29,046 $ 21,474

Net book value $ 6,982 $ 7,572

6. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

2016
  ($000's)

2015
  ($000's)

     Legal accounts 
      - accruals for billings received but not paid $ 19,500 $ 20,185
      - estimate of work performed but not yet billed 52,853 57,054
     Rent inducements       558 780

Trade and other payables 9,971 8,813
Vacation pay 2,350 1,460

$ 85,232 $ 88,292



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31 2016

7. Deferred Contributions

The Province of Ontario provided LAO with $30.0 million funding over a three-year period,
starting in 2013/14. This is to enhance family law services.  LAO sought and received approval
by MAG to defer $1.0 million from $10.0 million received in 2014/15. In 2015/16, $10.0 million
(2015 - $10 million) was received and $11.0 million recognized (2015 - $9.0 million).

The following chart shows funds which have been deferred to future periods:

2016
  ($000's)

2015
  ($000's)

 Balance, beginning of year $ 6,600 $ 5,600
       Provincial funding received 10,000 10,000

  Amounts recognized (Note 1(a)) (11,123) (9,000)

  Balance, end of year $ 5,477 $ 6,600

8. Deferred Grants

The Corporation has received the following funds from the Law Foundation of Ontario for future
projects:

2016 2015
   ($000's)    ($000's)

Balance, beginning of year $ 934 $ 2,388
Amounts recognized as revenue (934) (1,454)

Balance, end of year $ - $ 934



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31 2016

9. Internally Restricted Net Assets

(a) Annually, the Board of Directors determines the amount, if any, to be transferred between
accumulated surplus (deficit) and internally restricted net assets.  These internally restricted
amounts are not available for other purposes without approval of the Board of Directors.

      Internally restricted net assets consist of the following: 

2016
  ($000's)

2015
   ($000's)

Invested in capital assets (Note 9(b)) $ 6,982 $ 7,572
Internally restricted for the specialty clinic 

 co-location project (Note 9(c)(i)) 1,163 3,000
Internally restricted for the cost of the tariff 

increases (Note 9(c)(ii)) 2,918 2,918

$ 11,063 $ 13,490

(b)  Invested in capital assets represents the amount of net assets that are not available for other
purposes because they have been used to fund the purchase of capital assets. Changes in
net assets invested in capital assets during the year consist of the following:

2016
  ($000's)

2015
   ($000's)

Balance, beginning of year $ 7,572 $ 5,190
Purchase of capital assets 2,673 4,795
Amortization (3,263) (2,413)

Balance, end of year $ 6,982 $ 7,572

Represented by
Capital assets (Note 5) $ 6,982 $ 7,572

(c) (i) The Board of Directors set aside $3 million in a restricted reserve  in 2014/15 to be used to
pay for leasehold improvements related to the co-location of specialty clinics. During  2015/16,
$1.8 milion was used.

  (ii) In 2010, MAG, LAO and Criminal Law Association entered into a MOU that included seven
tariff increases of 5% over six years. The total cost of these tariff increases will be fully realized
by LAO by 2017/18. As a result of government restraints, LAO is funding approximately $14
million from internal savings. In 2014/15, the Board of Directors set aside $2.9 million as a
restricted reserve to offset this component of the cost of the tariff increases, which will be used
in 2016/17. 



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31 2016

10. Clinic Law Services

The Corporation provides funding to community clinics, enabling them to provide poverty law
services to the community they serve on a basis other than fee for service.  The community
clinics are organizations structured as corporations without share capital and are governed and
managed by a board of directors.  Community clinics are independent from, but accountable to,
the Corporation under Sections 33 to 39 of the Legal Aid Services Act, 1998.  Each community
clinic is independently audited and is required to provide audited financial statements to the
Corporation for the funding period.

The total funding to community clinics consists of direct funding transfers and the cost of
centrally provided support services.

2016 2015
  ($000's) ($000's)

Payments to and on behalf of clinics $ 85,462 $ 77,971

11. Commitments and Contingencies

(a)  The Corporation issues certificates to individuals seeking legal aid assistance. Each certificate
issued authorizes legal services to be performed within the tariff guidelines.  As at March 31,
2016, management estimates that a potential $51.9 million (2015 - $55.6  million) of
authorized legal services could still be incurred on certificates issued on or before 
March 31, 2016 over and above the billings received to date and management's estimate of
work performed but not yet billed.

(b)  The Corporation leases various office premises and equipment throughout the Province.  The 
rent and estimated operating costs are based on lease agreements and prior period
information on operating costs for leases held over the next five years and thereafter as
follows:

Base Rent Operating Cost Total
  ($000's)   ($000's)              ($000's)

2017 $ 2,226 $ 2,607 $ 4,833
2018 2,080 2,530 4,610
2019 1,208 1,355 2,563
2020 445 282 727
2021 99 40 139
Thereafter 113 112 225

$ 6,171               $ 6,926 $ 13,097



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31 2016

11. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

(c)  The Corporation is the defendant in a number of lawsuits arising in the ordinary course and
conduct of business.  The outcome and ultimate disposition of these actions are not known;
however, based on the claims made, management estimates an amount of $0.3 million and
have made the necessary provision. Some of the above lawsuits are covered by insurance
after the application of a deductible of up to $50 thousand, depending on when the event of the
claim occurred and the nature of the claim.

12. Pensions

The Corporation has two pension plans providing retirement benefits for its employees. There
are two components to the regular plan: a defined contribution and a defined benefit
component. In addition, there is also a non-registered supplementary (executive) plan.

Defined Contribution Component

The defined contribution component of the plan covers 961 (2015 - 914) employees. LAO
increased its contribution to 9% effective January 1, 2016.  The Corporation's pension expense
for the year relating to this component of the plan was $6.1 million (2015 - $5.0 million). LAO
has a transition plan to get all employee contributions to nine percent of the employees’
pensionable earnings by January 1, 2018. As a result, the existing employee contribution rate
varies between six and eight percent depending on the contribution of the employees to the
component of the plan.

Defined Benefit Component

The defined benefit component of the plan covers a total of 16 employees; there are three
active (2015 - three) participants and 13 retirees (2015 - 14). Actuarial gains (losses) are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated average remaining service period of the
active employees, which is three years as at March 31, 2016 (2015 - four). Under this benefit
plan, benefits at retirement are related to years of service and remuneration during the years of
employment. The plan is subject to actuarial valuations for funding purposes at intervals of not
more than three years. The actuarial valuation for the new three-year period starting
January 1, 2014 was completed. The next actuarial valuation of the Plan for funding purposes
will be prepared as at January 1, 2017.  The Corporation makes pension contributions to this
component of the plan in amounts recommended by the actuary.

The Corporation measures its accrued benefit obligation for accounting purposes as at
March 31 of each year.

2016 2015
  ($000's)    ($000's)

Accrued benefit obligation $ 3,640 $ 3,620
Fund assets at market value 4,076 4,305

Funded status - plan surplus 436 685
Unamortized net actuarial loss (gain) 225 (80)

Accrued pension asset $ 661 $ 605
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12. Pensions (continued)

The expense related to the Corporation's defined benefit component of the plan consists of the
following:

2016 2015
  ($000's)    ($000's)

  Current period benefit cost     $ 24    $ 25
  Amortization of actuarial (gains) losses (20) 48
  Interest revenue (35) (19)

     $ (31)     $ 54

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Corporation's accrued benefit
obligation and benefit expense are as follows:

2016 2015

Accrued benefit obligation
  Discount rate  5.25% 5.25%
  Rate of compensation increase  3.00%  3.00%

2016 2015

Benefit expense
        Discount rate 5.25% 5.25%
        Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 5.25% 5.25%
        Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00%

Other information about the defined benefit plan is as follows:

2016 2015
  ($000's)    ($000's)

  Employer contributions $ 24 $ 63
  Employee contributions 9 10
  Benefits paid 200 197



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
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12. Pensions (continued)

Supplementary Executive Benefit Plan

The Board of the Corporation has also approved the establishment of a supplementary
pension benefit plan for a designated executive member. Under the supplementary pension
benefit plan, benefits at retirement are related to years of service and remuneration during the
years of employment. The plan is unfunded and the benefits will be paid by the Corporation as
they become due. The accounting valuation for the unfunded retirement plan has been
performed as at March 31, 2016.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the accrued benefit obligation and
expense for the year are as follows:

2016 2015

Discount rate 4.0% 4.00%
Inflation 1.5% 1.50%

The Corporation's pension expense for the year was $0.4 million (2015 - $0.3 million). The
accrued benefit obligation and the accrued benefit liability as at March 31, 2016 was $2.3
million (2015 - $1.8 million).  During the year, the Corporation made no payments to the plan.

2016 2015
  ($000's)    ($000's)

    Accrued Pension Asset (Liability)
Defined Benefit Plan $ 661 $ 605
Supplementary Executive Benefit Plan (2,274) (1,842)

$ (1,613) $ (1,237)



Legal Aid Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
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13. Contingency Reserve

Section 66(4) of the Legal Aid Services Act, 1998, requires the Corporation to maintain a
contingency reserve fund as prescribed by Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 107/99.  This fund
was established on April 1, 1999 with a balance of $20 million, which was funded by the
Corporation.  The Regulation also requires the Corporation to obtain advance approval from the
Attorney General for any withdrawal beyond $5 million of this capital amount and for the
Corporation to provide the reason why the withdrawal is needed, a schedule for repayment, and
a statement of the Corporation's plans for preventing a similar need from arising in the future.

2016 2015
  ($000's) ($000's)

Balance, beginning of year $ 6,400      $ 6,400
Amounts recognized as revenue (5,000) -

Balance, end of year         $ 1,400       $ 6,400

14. Financial Instruments

The Corporation is exposed to various financial risks through transactions in financial
instruments.

Credit risk

The Corporation is exposed to credit risk in connection with its accounts and other receivables
and its fixed income investments because of the risk that one party to the financial instrument
may cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Accounts
receivable is recorded net of any allowances for impairment (note 3).

Liquidity risk

The Corporation is exposed to the risk that it will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with its financial liabilities. The Corporation derives a significant portion of its
operating revenue from the Ontario government and other funders with no firm commitment of
funding in future years. To manage liquidity risk, the Corporation keeps sufficient resources
readily available to meet its obligations.

Accounts payable mature within 21 days on certificates.  The maturities of other financial
liabilities are provided in notes to the financial statements related to these liabilities.

Interest rate risk

The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to its investments held at variable
interest rates.

Investments of $29.4 million (2015 - $38.4 million) are invested at the rate of 0.9%  with multiple
maturity dates between April 2, 2015 and January 19, 2017.  These interest rates vary with the
Canadian prime rate.
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Central Local Health Integration Network

2016
$

Financial assets
380,753

Due from Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”) 8,526,855
81,147

8,988,755

Liabilities
470,241

Due to Health Service Providers (“HSPs”) 8,526,855
Due to Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”) (Note 3) 36,158

-
5,856

81,579
9,120,689

(131,934)

Non-financial assets
50,355
81,579

131,934
Accumulated surplus -



Central Local Health Integration Network

Budget 2016
(Note 8) Actual

$ $

Revenue

1,928,276,400 2,043,334,690

4,189,100 4,252,574

Care (“ER - ALC”) Funding 100,000 100,000
- 72,000

10,000 10,000
- 72,000

106,000 106,000
- 72,000

- 406,000
909,900 891,710

- 55,829
5,315,000 6,038,113

1,933,591,400 2,049,372,803

1,928,276,400 2,043,334,690

4,189,100 4,252,574
100,000 100,000

- 72,000
10,000 10,000

- 72,000
106,000 106,000

- 72,000

- 406,000
909,900 891,710

- 55,829
1,933,591,400 2,049,372,803

- -
- -

Accumulated surplus, end of year - -



Central Local Health Integration Network

2016
Actual

$

Annual surplus -
20,938

(55,829)
(8,539)

(43,430)
175,364

Net debt, end of year 131,934



Central Local Health Integration Network

2016
$

Operating transactions
-

(55,829)
55,829

-

2,846,798
12,916
98,009

(16,882)
9,610

(2,846,798)
3,688
8,539

115,880

Capital transaction
(20,938)

Financing transaction
20,938

115,880
264,873

Cash, end of year 380,753
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Deloitte LLP 
5140 Yonge Street 
Suite 1700 
Toronto ON  M2N 6L7 
Canada 

Tel: 416-601-6150 
Fax: 416-601-6151 
www.deloitte.ca 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of the Board of Directors of the 
Central East Local Health Integration Network 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Central East Local Health Integration 
Network (the “LHIN”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, and the 
statements of operations, change in net debt, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
LHIN as at March 31, 2016, and the results of its operations, change in its net debt, and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
May 25, 2016 



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Central East Local Health Integration Network
Statement of financial position
as at March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Financial assets
Cash 521,950  453,531  
Due from Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”) (Note 9) 1,606,348  5,111,730  
Accounts receivable 26,831  54,928  

2,155,129  5,620,189  

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 438,217  435,373  
Due to LSSO (Note 4) 7,801  5,116  
Due to Health Service Providers (“HSP”) (Note 9) 1,606,348  5,111,730  
Due to MOHLTC (Note 3b) 137,108  81,715  
Due to Central West LHIN (Notes 3c, 4) -  25,892  
Deferred capital contributions (Note 5) 112,366  169,513  

2,301,840  5,829,339  

Net debt (146,711)  (209,150)  

Commitments (Note 6)

Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 34,345  39,637  
Tangible capital assets (Note 7) 112,366  169,513  

146,711  209,150  
-  -  

Approved by the Board

___________________________________ Director

___________________________________ Director



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Central East Local Health Integration Network
Statement of financial operations
year ended March 31, 2016

Budget 2016 2015
(Note 8) Actual Actual

$ $ $

Revenue
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care

(“MOHLTC”) funding
Health Service Provider (“HSP”) transfer

payments (Note 9) 2,218,613,663 2,228,309,856 2,211,843,510 
Operations of LHIN 4,534,130  4,491,739  4,510,790  
Project Initiatives

Emergency Department (“ED”) Lead (Note 10a) -  75,000  75,000  
Emergency Room/Alternative Level of Care 
 (Note 10a) 100,000  100,000  100,000  

Aboriginal Planning (Note 10a) 20,000  20,000  20,000  
Enabling Technologies (Note 10a) -  406,892  644,000  
Critical Care (Note 10a) -  75,000  75,000  
French Language Services (Note 10a) 106,000  106,000  106,000  
Diabetes & Vascular Health (Note 10b) 824,475  842,070  823,706  
Primary Care (Note 10a) -  75,000  75,000  

Amortization of deferred capital contributions
(Note 5) -  81,943  83,101  

2,224,198,268 2,234,583,500 2,218,356,107 

Funding repayable to the MOHLTC (Note 3a) -  (55,393)  (107,607)  
2,224,198,268 2,234,528,107 2,218,248,500 

Expenses
Transfer payments to HSPs (Note 9) 2,218,613,663 2,228,309,856 2,211,843,510 
General and administrative (Note 11) 4,534,130  4,564,544  4,584,508  
Project Initiatives (Note 10)

ED Lead -  72,000  73,706  
ER/ALC 100,000  74,745  100,000  
Aboriginal Planning 20,000  20,000  20,000  
Enabling Technologies -  406,892  618,108  
Critical Care -  72,000  72,000  
French Language Services 106,000  106,000  106,000  
Diabetes & Vascular Health 824,475  842,070  823,706  
Primary Care -  60,000  6,962  

2,224,198,268 2,234,528,107 2,218,248,500 
Annual surplus and 

accumulated surplus, end of year -  -  -  



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Central East Local Health Integration Network
Statement of change in net debt
year ended March 31, 2016

2016 2015
Budget Actual Actual

$ $ $

Annual surplus -  -  -  
Acquisition of tangible capital assets -  (24,796)  (40,935)  
Amortization of tangible capital assets -  81,943 83,101 
Change in other non-financial assets -  5,292 (13,772)  
Decrease in net debt -  62,439 28,394 
Net debt, beginning of year -  (209,150) (237,544) 
Net debt, end of year -  (146,711) (209,150) 



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Central East Local Health Integration Network
Statement of cash flows
year ended March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Operating transactions
Annual surplus -  -  
Less items not affecting cash

Amortization of tangible capital assets 81,943  83,101  
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (Note 5) (81,943)  (83,101)  

-  -  

Changes in non-cash operating items
Due from MOHLTC 3,505,382  9,532,570  
Accounts receivable 28,097  (8,795)  
Due from LHIN Shared Services Office (“LSSO”) -  7,266  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,844  (98,239)  
Due to LSSO 2,685  3,652  
Due to HSPs (3,505,382)  (9,532,570)  
Due to the MOHLTC 55,393  37,380  
Due to Central West LHIN (25,892)  (146,346)  
Prepaid expenses 5,292  (13,772)  

68,419  (218,854)  

Capital transaction
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (24,796)  (40,935)  

Financing transaction
Capital contributions received (Note 5) 24,796  40,935  

Net increase (decrease) in cash 68,419  (218,854)  
Cash, beginning of year 453,531  672,385  
Cash, end of year 521,950  453,531  



Central East Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

1. Description of business

The Local Health Integration Network was incorporated by Letters Patent on June 2, 2005 as a
corporation without share capital. Following Royal Assent to Bill 36 on March 28, 2006, it was continued
under the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 (the “Act”) as the Central East Local Health
Integration Network (the “LHIN”) and its Letters Patent were extinguished. As an agent of the Crown, the
LHIN is not subject to income taxation.

The LHIN is, and exercises its powers only as, an agent of the Crown. Limits on the LHIN’s ability to
undertake certain activities are set out in the Act.

The mandates of the LHIN are to plan, fund and integrate the local health system within its geographic
area. The LHIN spans carefully defined geographical areas and allows for local communities and health
care providers within the geographical area to work together to identify local priorities, plan health
services and deliver them in a more coordinated fashion. The Central East LHIN (“CE LHIN”) is a mix of
urban and rural geography and is the sixth-largest LHIN in land area in Ontario (16,673 km2). In densely
populated urban cities, suburban towns, rural farm communities, cottage country villages and remote
settlements, the Central East LHIN stretches from Victoria Park to Algonquin Park. The neighbourhoods
in our planning zones boast a rich diversity of community values, ethnicity, language and
socio-demographic characteristics. The LHIN has also entered into an accountability agreement with the
Ministry of Health and Long Term Care (“MOHLTC”), which provides the framework for LHIN
accountabilities and activities.

The LHIN is funded by the Province of Ontario in accordance with the Ministry LHIN Performance
Agreement (“MLPA”), which describes budget arrangements established by the MOHLTC. These
financial statements reflect agreed funding arrangements approved by the MOHLTC. The LHIN cannot
authorize an amount in excess of the budget allocation set by the MOHLTC. The LHIN assumed
responsibility to authorize transfer payments to HSPs, effective April 1, 2007. The transfer payment
amount is based on provisions associated with the respective HSP Accountability Agreement with the
LHIN. Throughout the fiscal year, the LHIN authorizes and notifies the MOHLTC of the transfer payment
amount; the MOHLTC, in turn, transfers the amount directly to the HSP. The cash associated with the
transfer payment does not flow through the LHIN bank account.

The LHIN’s financial statements do not include any MOHLTC managed programs.

The Central East LHIN is also funded by eHealth Ontario in accordance with the eHealth Ontario - LHIN
Transfer Payment Agreement (“TPA”), which describes budget arrangements established by eHealth
Ontario. These financial statements reflect agreed funding arrangements approved by eHealth Ontario.
The Central East LHIN cannot authorize an amount in excess of the budget allocation set by eHealth
Ontario.

Commencing April 1, 2007, all funding payments to LHIN managed health service providers in the LHIN
geographic area, have flowed through the LHIN’s financial statements. Funding allocations from the
MOHLTC are reflected as revenue and an equal amount of transfer payments to authorized Health
Service Providers (“HSP”) are expensed in the LHIN’s financial statements.



Central East Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

2. Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the LHIN are the representations of management, prepared in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant accounting policies adopted by the LHIN
are as follows:

Basis of accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of
accounting recognizes revenues in the fiscal year that the events giving rise to the revenues occur and
they are earned and measurable, expenses are recognized in the fiscal year that the events giving rise
to the expenses are incurred, resources are consumed, and they are measurable.

Through the accrual basis of accounting, expenses include non-cash items, such as the amortization of
tangible capital assets.

Government transfer payments

Government transfer payments from the MOHLTC are recognized in the financial statements in the year
in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the transfer occur, performance criteria
are met, and the reasonable estimates of the amount can be made.

Certain amounts, including transfer payments from the MOHLTC, are received pursuant to legislation,
regulation or agreement and may only be used in the conduct of certain programs or in the completion of
specific work. Funding is only recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred
or services performed. In addition, certain amounts received are used to pay expenses for which the
related services have yet to be performed. These amounts are recorded as payable to the MOHLTC at
period end.

Funding payments to Health Service Providers in the LHIN geographic area flowed through the LHIN’s
financial statements. Funding allocations from the MOHLTC are reflected as revenue and an equal
amount of transfer payments to authorized Health Service Providers (“HSPs”) are expensed in the
LHIN’s financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Deferred capital contributions

Any amounts received that are used to fund expenses that are recorded as tangible capital assets, are
recorded as deferred capital contributions and are recognized as revenue over the useful life of the
asset reflective of the provision of its services. The amount recorded under “revenue” in the Statement
of Operations, is in accordance with the amortization policy applied to the related tangible capital asset
recorded.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at historic cost. Historic cost includes the costs directly related to
the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement or betterment of tangible capital assets.
The cost of tangible capital assets contributed is recorded at the estimated fair value on the date of
contribution. Fair value of contributed tangible capital assets is estimated using the cost of asset or,
where more appropriate, market or appraisal values. Where an estimate of fair value cannot be made,
the tangible capital asset would be recognized at nominal value.

Maintenance and repair costs are recognized as an expense when incurred. Betterments or
improvements that significantly increase or prolong the service life or capacity of a capital asset are
capitalized. Computer software is recognized as an expense when incurred.

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Capital assets are amortized over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Computer equipment 3 years straight-line method 
Leasehold improvements Life of lease straight-line method 
Office furniture and fixtures 5 years straight-line method 
Web development 3 years straight-line method 

For assets acquired or brought into use during the year, amortization is provided for a full year.



Central East Local Health Integration Network 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment disclosures

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities for which it is appropriate to
separately report financial information. Management has determined that existing disclosures in the
Statement of Operations and within the related notes for both the prior and current year sufficiently
discloses information of all appropriate segments and, therefore, no additional disclosure is required.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to
such estimate and assumptions include valuation of accrued liabilities and useful lives of the tangible
capital assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3. Funding repayable to the MOHLTC

In accordance with the TPA, the Central East LHIN is required to be in a balanced position at year end.
Thus, any funding received in excess of expenses incurred, is required to be returned to the MOHLTC or
to eHealth Ontario, respectively.

a) The amount repayable to the MOHLTC related to current year activities is made up of the following
components:

2016 2015
Funding Eligible Excess Excess
received expenses funding funding

$ $ $ $

Transfer payments to HSPs 2,228,309,856  2,228,309,856  -  -  
LHIN operations 4,509,334  4,482,601  26,733  9,383  
ER/ALC 100,000  74,745  25,255  -  
ED/Lead 75,000  72,000  3,000  1,294  
Critical Care 75,000  72,000  3,000  3,000  
Aboriginal Planning 20,000  20,000  -  -  
French Language Services 106,000  106,000  -  -  
Diabetes and Vascular Health 824,475  842,070  (17,595)  
Primary Care Lead 75,000  60,000  15,000  68,038  
Repayable directly to MOHLTC 2,234,094,665  2,234,039,272  55,393  81,715  
Enabling technologies repayable

to MOHLTC through
Central West LHIN 406,892  406,892  -  25,892  

2,234,501,557  2,234,446,164  55,393  107,607  



Central East Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

3. Funding repayable to the MOHLTC (continued)

b) The amount due to the MOHLTC at March 31 is made up as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Due to MOHLTC, beginning of year 81,715  44,335  
Recovery by MOHLTC during the year -  (44,335)  
Funding repayable to the MOHLTC related to

current year activities (Note 3a) 55,393  81,715  
Due to MOHLTC, end of year 137,108  81,715  

c) The LHIN’s financial statement reflects its share of the MOHLTC funding for Enabling Technologies
for Integration Project Management Offices for its Cluster and related expenses.

The following provides condensed financial information:

2016 2015
$ $

Revenue 406,892  644,000  
Expenses 406,892  618,108  
Accumulated surplus due to the Central West LHIN -  25,892  

4. Related party transactions

LHIN Shared Services Office, Local Health Integration Network Collaborative

The LHIN Shared Services Office (the “LSSO”) and the Local Health Integration Network Collaborative
(the “LHINC”) are divisions of the Toronto Central LHIN and are subject to the same policies, guidelines
and directives as the Toronto Central LHIN. The LSSO and LHINC, on behalf of the LHINs are
responsible for providing services to all LHINs. The full costs of providing these services are billed to all
the LHINs. Any portion of the LSSO operating costs overpaid (or not paid) by the LHIN at the year-end
are recorded as a receivable (payable) from (to) the LSSO. This is all done pursuant to the shared
service agreement the LSSO has with all LHINs.

The amount due to the LSSO as at March 31, 2016 was $7,801 (2015 - $5,116).

Enabling Technologies for Integrated Project Management Office

Effective February 1, 2012, the LHIN entered into an agreement with Central, Central West,
Central East, Toronto Central, Mississauga Halton and North Simcoe Muskoka (the “Cluster”) in order to
enable the effective and efficient delivery of e-health programs and initiatives within the geographic area
of the Cluster. Under the agreement, decisions related to the financial and operating activities of the
Enabling Technologies for Integration Project Management Office are shared. No LHIN is in a position to
exercise unilateral control.

The LHIN’s financial statement reflects its share of the MOHLTC funding for Enabling Technologies for
Integration Project Management Office for its Cluster and related expenses. During the year, the LHIN
received funding from the Central West LHIN of $406,892 (2015 - $644,000).



Central East Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

5. Deferred capital contributions

2016 2015
$ $

Balance, beginning of year 169,513 211,679 
Capital contributions received 24,796     40,935     
Amortization (81,943)    (83,101)    
Balance, end of year 112,366 169,513 

6. Commitments

The LHIN has commitments under various operating leases related to building and equipment. Lease
renewals are likely. Minimum lease payments due to October 31, 2020 are as follows:

$

2017 254,721  
2018 257,948  
2019 260,254  
2020 263,481  
2021 153,698  

1,190,102  

The LHIN also has funding commitments to HSPs associated with accountability agreements. The 
Transfer Payment Planning Targets to HSPs based on the current accountability agreements are 
as follows:  

$

2017 2,221,888,728  
2018 2,220,681,128  

The actual amounts which will ultimately be paid are contingent upon actual LHIN funding received from 
the MOHLTC. 

7. Tangible capital assets

2016 2015
Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value
$ $ $ $

Office furniture and fixtures 757,176     (682,485)       74,691 127,443     
Computer equipment 367,742     (338,838)       28,904 17,432 
Web development 36,100 (36,100)         - - 
Leasehold improvements 668,028     (659,257)       8,771        24,638 

1,829,046  (1,716,680) 112,366     169,513     



Central East Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
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8. Budget figures

The budgets were approved by the Government of Ontario. The budget figures reported in the
Statement of Operations reflect the initial budget at April 1, 2015. The figures have been reported for the
purposes of these statements to comply with PSAB reporting requirements. During the year the
government approved budget adjustments. The following reflects the adjustments for the LHIN during
the year:

The total HSP funding budget of $2,228,309,856 is made up of the following:

$

Initial HSP funding budget 2,218,613,663  
Additional funding due to announcements made during the year 9,696,193  
Total HSP funding budget 2,228,309,856  

The total revised operating budget of $6,216,497 is made up of the following: 

$

Initial budget as represented on the statement of financial activities 5,584,605
Additional funding received for one time initiatives

ED/Lead 75,000
Critical Care 75,000
Enabling Technologies 406,892
Primary Care 75,000

Total budget 6,216,497

9. Transfer payments to HSPs
The LHIN has authorization to allocate the funding of $2,228,309,856 (2015 - $2,211,843,510) to the
various HSPs in its geographic area. The LHIN approved transfer payments to the various sectors in
2016 as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Operation of hospitals 1,214,275,231 1,231,015,066 
Grants to compensate for municipal taxation - public

hospitals 280,275  280,275  
Long term care homes 444,462,828  437,367,196  
Community care access centres 290,035,602  274,137,192  
Community support services 51,361,299  47,571,175  
Assisted living services in supportive housing 15,446,254  15,224,305  
Community health centres 29,799,929  28,772,419  
Community mental health addictions program 63,353,629  59,756,096  
Specialty psychiatric hospitals 117,692,037  116,062,017  
Acquired brain injury 1,576,447  1,632,344  
Grants to compensate for municipal taxation - 

psychiatric hospitals 26,325  25,425  
2,228,309,856 2,211,843,510 

The LHIN also received $323,438 (2015 - $Nil) in base funding to support the Centralized Diabetes 
Intake Service, as part of the Regional Coordination of Diabetes Services function and allocated the full 
amount to the Central East Community Care Access Centre (CECCAC). 
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9. Transfer payments to HSPs (continued)

The LHIN receives money from the MOHLTC and in turn allocates it to the HSPs. As at March 31, 2016,
an amount of $1,606,348 (2015 - $5,111,730) was receivable from the MOHLTC and payable to HSPs.
These amounts have been reflected as revenue and expenses in the statement of operations and are
included in the table above.

10. Project Initiatives

The LHIN received funds for various project initiatives listed in the Statement of Operations. The
following table classifies the initiatives expenses incurred by object:

a) Initiatives Expenses

2016 2015
$ $

Consulting services 276,000    152,668    
Salaries and benefits 1,037,608 1,103,135 
Public relations and community engagement 1,500         4,800         
Meetings 1,213         1,548         
Supplies and other -                  418,686    
Mail, courier and telecommunications -                  1,260         
Other 337,386    138,385    

1,653,707 1,820,482 

b) Diabetes & Vascular Health

The LHIN received funding of $824,475 (2015 - $843,301 base funding). $17,595 of deferred capital
contributions from 14/15 was recognized as revenue in 15/16. Expenses incurred of $842,070 which
are included in the table above are made up as follows:

Budget Actual Actual
2016 2016 2015

$ $ $

Salaries and benefits 685,314 702,909 692,582 
Others 139,161 139,161 131,124 

824,475 842,070 823,706 
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11. General and administrative expenses

The Statement of operations presents the expenses by function, the following classifies these same
expenses by object:

2016 2015
$ $

Salaries and benefits 3,372,126  3,406,786  
Occupancy 266,604  320,410  
Amortization 81,943  83,101  
Shared services 426,342  444,449  
Community engagement 11,490  14,905  
Consulting services 53,730  50,129  
Supplies 69,523  52,362  
Board member expenses 94,175  106,627  
Mail, courier and telecommunications 1,514  562  
Other 187,097  105,177  

4,564,544  4,584,508  

Included in board member expenses are Board per diems and expenses as follows: 

Budget Actual Actual
2016 2016 2015

$ $ $

Board chair per diem expense 50,000  28,000  36,750  
Other board members per diem expense 74,000  44,650  49,550  
Governance costs and travel 35,000  21,525  20,327  
Total expenses 159,000  94,175  106,627  

12. Pension agreements

The LHIN makes contributions to the Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan (“HOOPP”), which is a
multi-employer plan, on behalf of approximately 42 members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan, which specifies the amount of retirement benefit to be received by the employees, based on the
length of service and rates of pay. The amount contributed to HOOPP for fiscal 2016 was $319,691
(2015 - $353,604) for current service costs and is included as an expense in the Statement of
Operations. The last actuarial valuation of the plan was completed for the plan as of December 31,
2015. At that time, the plan was fully funded.

13. Guarantees

The LHIN is subject to the provisions of the Financial Administration Act. As a result, in the normal
course of business, the LHIN may not enter into agreements that include indemnities in favour of third
parties, except in accordance with the Financial Administration Act and the related Indemnification
Directive.

An indemnity of the Chief Executive Officer was provided directly by the LHIN pursuant to the terms of
the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 and in accordance with s. 28 of the Financial
Administration Act.
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Central West Local Health Integration Network (Central West LHIN) 

Management Responsibility for Financial Information 

Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the financial statements and all other information 
presented in the Annual Report.  The financial statements for the year ending March 31, 2016 have been prepared 
by Management in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards (PSAS) and, where appropriate, include 
amounts based on Management’s best estimates and judgment.  Management is responsible for the integrity and 
objectivity of these financial statements.  The financial information presented elsewhere in the 2015-16 Annual 
Report is consistent with that in the financial statements in all material respects. 

The Central West Local Health Integration Network is dedicated to the highest standards of integrity in its business.  
To safeguard the Central West LHIN’s assets and assure the reliability of financial information, the Central West 
LHIN follows sound management practices and procedures, and maintains appropriate information systems and 
internal financial controls. 

The Board of Directors ensures that Management fulfills its responsibilities for financial information and internal 
controls.  The financial statements have been reviewed by the Central West LHIN Board Finance and Audit 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. 

Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent auditors appointed by the Board of Directors, have been engaged to conduct 
an examination of the financial statements in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards and have 
expressed their opinion on these statements.  During the course of their audit, Deloitte & Touche LLP reviewed the 
LHINs system of internal controls to the extent necessary to render their opinion on the financial statements.  The 
Auditor’s Report outlines the scope of the Auditor’s examination and opinion. 

Brock Hovey 
Senior Director, Health System Performance 

Scott McLeod  
Chief Executive Officer 
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Deloitte LLP 
5140 Yonge Street 
Suite 1700 
Toronto ON  M2N 6L7 
Canada 

Tel: 416-601-6150 
Fax: 416-601-6151 
www.deloitte.ca 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of the Board of Directors of the 
Central West Local Health Integration Network 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Central West Local Health Integration 
Network, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, and the statements of 
operations, change in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Central West Local Health Integration network as at March 31, 2016 and the results of its operations, 
changes in its net debt, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian public 
sector accounting standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
May 25, 2016 



Central West Local Health Integration Network

2016

Financial assets

$

1,251,774

439,533
8,666

31,237
105,905

1,837,115

Liabilities
770,676
624,171
439,533

 -
11,339
17,012

1,862,731

(25,616)

Non-financial assets
8,604

17,012
25,616

Accumulated surplus  -



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Central West Local Health Integration Network
Statement of operations
year ended March 31, 2016

Budget
(Note 8)

2016
Actual

2015
Actual

$ $ $

Revenue
MOHLTC funding

Health Service Provider (“HSP”) transfer
payments (Note 9)

Operations of LHIN
Project Initiatives

Enabling Technologies for Integration 
Project Management Office

French Language Services 
ER/ALC Performance Lead 
Emergency Department Lead 
Aboriginal Health
Primary Care Lead 
Critical Care Lead 

 857,175,523
 4,181,828

  -
 106,000
 100,000

  -
 7,500

  -
  -

 883,716,367
 4,141,827

 3,060,000
 106,000
 100,000

 75,000
 7,500

 75,000
 75,000

 870,843,813
 4,130,791

 3,060,000
 106,000
 100,000
 72,766
 7,500

 73,031
 72,750

Diabetes Regional Coordination 
Physiotherapy Planning Funds 

Amortization of deferred capital contributions (Note 5)

 839,175
  -
  -

 839,175
  -

 21,336

 781,301
  -

 73,598
 862,410,026  892,217,205  879,321,550

eHealth-Enabling Technologies for 
allocated to LHIN's (Note 3b)

Funding repayable to the MOHLTC 

Integration

(Note 3a)
  -
  -

  (1,877,630)
  (409,341)

  (2,189,367)
  (214,830)

 862,410,026  889,930,234  876,917,353

Expenses
Transfer payments to HSPs (Note 9)
General and administrative (Note 11)
Project Initiative (Note 10)

Enabling Technologies for Integration
Project Management Office

French Language Services 
ER/ALC Performance Lead 
Emergency Department Lead 
Aboriginal Health 
Primary Care Lead 
Critical Care Lead 

 857,175,523
 4,181,828

  -
 106,000
 100,000

  -
 7,500

  -
  -

 883,716,367
 4,128,891

 912,074
 106,000
 100,000

 72,000
 5,278

 69,769
 72,000

 870,843,813
 4,157,711

 759,535
 104,870
 100,000
 72,016
 6,610

 72,281
 72,000

Diabetes Regional Coordination  839,175  747,855  728,517
 862,410,026  889,930,234  876,917,353

Annual surplus
Accumulated surplus, beginning of 

  -   -   -
year   -   -   -

Accumulated surplus, end of year   -   -   -



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Central West Local Health Integration Network
Statement of changes in net debt
year ended March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Annual surplus   -   -
Acquisition of tangible capital assets   -   (51,037)
Amortization of tangible capital assets   21,336   73,598
Change in other non-financial assets   5,553   30,986
Decrease in net debt   26,889   53,547
Net debt, beginning of year   (52,505)   (106,052)
Net debt, end of year   (25,616)    (52,505)



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Central West Local Health Integration Network
Statement of cash flows
year ended March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Operating transactions
Annual surplus  -  -
Less items not affecting cash

Amortization of capital assets  (21,335)  (73,598)
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (Note 5)  21,335  73,598 

Changes in non-cash operating items
Accounts receivable - MOHLTC  6,341,726  (3,974,063)
Due to the MOHLTC  409,341  (197,616)
Due to HSP’s  (6,341,726)  3,974,063 
Due from other LHINs  80,852  140,896 
Due from LHIN Shared Services Office  (31,237)  -
Accounts receivable - other  (27,549)  10,671 
Prepaid expenses  5,553  30,986 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  98,756  175,383 
Due to Other LHIN  11,339  -
Due to the LHIN Shared Services Office  (1,426)  468 

 545,629  160,788 

Capital transaction
Acquisition of capital assets  -  51,037 

Financing transaction
Deferred capital contributions (Note 5)  -  (51,037)

Net increase (decrease)in cash  545,629  160,788 
Cash, beginning of year  706,145  545,357 
Cash, end of year  1,251,774  706,145 



Central West Local Health Integration Network 
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1. Description of business

The Central West Local Health Integration Network was incorporated by Letters Patent on June 9, 2005
as a corporation without share capital. Following Royal Assent to Bill 36 on March 28, 2006, it was
continued under the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 (the “Act”) as the Central West Local
Health Integration Network (the “LHIN”) and its Letters Patent were extinguished. As an agent of the
Crown, the LHIN is not subject to income taxation.

The LHIN is, and exercises its powers only as, an agent of the Crown. Limits on the LHIN’s ability to
undertake certain activities are set out in the Act.

The mandates of the LHIN are to plan, fund and integrate the local health system within its geographic
area. The LHIN spans carefully defined geographical areas and allows for local communities and health
care providers within the geographical area to work together to identify local priorities, plan health
services and deliver them in a more coordinated fashion. The LHIN covers Dufferin County, the northern
portion of Peel Region, part of York Region, and a small part of the City of Toronto. The LHIN enters into
service accountability agreements with service providers.

The LHIN is funded by the Province of Ontario in accordance with the Ministry LHIN Performance
Agreement (“MLPA”), which describes budget arrangements established by the Ministry of Health and
Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”) and provides the framework for the LHIN accountabilities and activities.
These financial statements reflect agreed funding arrangements approved by the MOHLTC. The LHIN
cannot authorize an amount in excess of the budget allocation set by the MOHLTC.

The LHIN assumed responsibility to authorize transfer payments to Health Services Providers (“HSP”),
effective April 1, 2007. The transfer payment amount is based on provisions associated with the
respective HSP Accountability Agreement with the LHIN. Throughout the fiscal year, the LHIN
authorizes and notifies the MOHLTC of the transfer payment amount; the MOHLTC, in turn, transfers
the amount directly to the HSP. The cash associated with the transfer payment does not flow through
the LHIN bank account. Commencing April 1, 2007, all funding payments to LHIN managed HSPs in the
LHIN geographic area, have flowed through the LHIN’s financial statements. Funding allocations from
the MOHLTC are reflected as revenue and an equal amount of transfer payments to authorized HSPs
are expensed in the LHIN’s financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016.

The LHIN statements do not include any MOHLTC managed programs.

2. Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the LHIN are the representations of management, prepared in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant accounting policies adopted by the LHIN
are as follows:

Basis of accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of
accounting recognizes revenues in the fiscal year that the events giving rise to the revenues occur and
they are earned and measurable; expenses are recognized in the fiscal year that the events giving rise
to the expenses are incurred, and they are measurable. Through the accrual basis of accounting,
expenses include non-cash items, such as the amortization of tangible capital assets.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government transfer payments

Government transfer payments from the MOHLTC are recognized in the financial statements in the year
in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the transfer occur, performance criteria
are met, and reasonable estimates of the amount can be made.

Certain amounts, including transfer payments from the MOHLTC, are received pursuant to legislation,
regulation or agreement and may only be used in the conduct of certain programs or in the completion of
specific work. Funding is only recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred
or services performed. In addition, certain amounts received are used to pay expenses for which the
related services have yet to be performed. These amounts are recorded as payable to the MOHLTC at
period end.

Funding payments to HSPs in the LHIN geographic area flowed through the LHIN’s financial statements.
Funding allocations from the MOHLTC are reflected as revenue and an equal amount of transfer
payments to authorized HSPs are expensed in the LHIN’s financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2016.

Deferred capital contributions

Any amounts received that are used to fund expenses that are recorded as tangible capital assets, are
recorded as deferred capital contributions and are recognized as revenue over the useful life of the
asset reflective of the provision of its services. The amount recorded under “revenue” in the statement of
operations, is in accordance with the amortization policy applied to the related tangible capital asset
recorded.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at historic cost. Historic cost includes the costs directly related to
the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement or betterment of tangible capital assets.
The cost of tangible capital assets contributed is recorded at the estimated fair value on the date of
contribution. Fair value of contributed tangible capital assets is estimated using the cost of asset or,
where more appropriate, market or appraisal values. Where an estimate of fair value cannot be made,
the tangible capital asset would be recognized at nominal value.

Maintenance and repair costs are recognized as an expense when incurred. Betterments or
improvements that significantly increase or prolong the service life or capacity of a tangible capital asset
are capitalized. Computer software is recognized as an expense when incurred.

Tangible capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Tangible capital assets are
amortized over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Office furniture and fixtures 5 years straight-line method 
Computer equipment 3 years straight-line method 
Leasehold improvements Life of lease straight-line method 

For assets acquired or brought into use during the year, amortization is provided for a full year.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to
such estimate and assumptions include valuation of accrued liabilities and useful lives of the tangible
capital assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment disclosures

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities for which it is appropriate to
separately report financial information. Management has determined that existing disclosures in the
statement of operations and within the related notes for both the prior and current year sufficiently
discloses information of all appropriate segments and, therefore, no additional disclosure is required.

3. Funding repayable to the MOHLTC and eHealth Ontario

In accordance with the MLPA and TPA, the LHIN is required to be in a balanced position at year end.
Thus, any funding received in excess of expenses incurred, is required to be returned to the MOHLTC.

a) The amount repayable to the MOHLTC related to current year activities is made up of the
following components:

2016 2015
Funding
received

Eligible
expenses

Excess
funding

Excess
funding

Transfer Payments to HSP’s
LHIN Operations (Note 11)
Capital contribution (Note 11)
eHealth - Enabling Technologies

for Integration (Note 10)
French Language Services (Note 10)
ER/ALC Performance Lead (Note 10)
Emergency Department Lead (Note 10)
Aboriginal Health (Note 10)
Primary Care Lead (Note 10)
Critical Care Lead (Note 10)
Diabetes Regional Co-ordination (Note 10)

$

883,716,367 
    4,163,163

 -

    3,060,000
       106,000
       100,000
        75,000 

 7,500
        75,000 
        75,000 
       839,175

$

 883,716,367
    4,128,891 

 -

    2,789,704 
 106,000
 100,000

         72,000
           5,278
         69,769
         72,000

 747,855

$

             -
    34,272
             -

 270,296
             -
             -
      3,000
      2,222
      5,231
      3,000
    91,320

$

            -
   46,678
            -

 111,098
     1,130
            -
       750 
       890 
       750 
       750 
   52,784

892,217,205  891,807,864  409,341  214,830

b) Enabling Technologies for Integration Project Management Office

Effective April 1, 2013, the LHIN entered into an agreement with Central, Central West, Central
East, Toronto Central, Mississauga Halton and North Simcoe Muskoka (the “Cluster”) in order to
enable the effective and efficient delivery of e-health programs and initiatives within the geographic
area of the Cluster. Under the agreement, decisions related to the financial and operating activities
of the Enabling Technologies for Integration Project Management Office are shared. No LHIN is in
a position to exercise unilateral control.

The Central West LHIN is designated the Lead LHIN within this agreement and as such holds the
accountability over the distribution of the funds and manages the shared Project Management
Office. In the event that the Cluster experiences a surplus the Lead LHIN is responsible for
returning those funds to the MOHLTC. The total Cluster funding received for the year ended
March 31, 2016 was $3,060,000 (2015 - $3,060,000).

Funding of $1,886,296 (2015 - $2,278,885) was allocated to other LHIN’s within the cluster who
incurred eligible expenses of $1,877,630 (2015 - $2,189,367). A summary of eHealth Enabling
Technologies for Integration Funding and expenses for the cluster are as follows:
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3. Funding repayable to the MOHLTC and eHealth Ontario (continued)

b) Enabling Technologies for Integration Project Management Office (continued)

The surplus from other LHINs is as follows:

2016 2015
Funding Eligible Excess Excess

allocated expenses funding funding
$ $ $ $

Central West LHIN  1,173,704     912,074  261,630  21,580

Allocation to Other LHIN's
Central LHIN  406,000     406,000             -  16,882
Central East LHIN  406,892     406,892             -  25,000
Toronto Central LHIN  440,000     440,000             -             -
Mississauga Halton LHIN  239,935     239,935             -  47,636
North Simcoe Muskoka LHIN  393,469     384,803      8,666             -

Total Other LHINs  1,886,296   1,877,630      8,666  89,518
Total All LHINs  3,060,000   2,789,704  270,296  111,098 

c) The amount due to the MOHLTC at March 31 is made up as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Due to MOHLTC, beginning of year    214,830   412,446
Funding repaid to MOHLTC prior year  -   (412,446)
Funding repayable to the MOHLTC related to

current year activities (Note 3a and 3b)   409,341   214,830
Due to MOHLTC, end of year   624,171   214,830

4. Related party transactions

The LHIN Shared Services Office (the “LSSO”) and the Local Health Integration Network Collaborative
(the “LHINC”) are divisions of the Toronto Central LHIN and are subject to the same policies, guidelines
and directives as the Toronto Central LHIN. The LSSO and LHINC, on behalf of the LHINs are
responsible for providing services to all LHINs. The full costs of providing these services are billed to all
the LHINs. Any portion of the LSSO operating costs overpaid (or not paid) by the LHIN at the year end
are recorded as a receivable (payable) from (to) the LSSO. This is all done pursuant to the shared
service agreement the LSSO has with all LHINs.

5. Deferred capital contributions

2016 2015
$ $

Balance, beginning of year     38,348     60,909 
Capital contributions received during the year  -     51,037 
Amortization for the year  (21,336)  (73,598) 
Balance, end of year     17,012     38,348 
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6. Commitments

The LHIN has commitments under various operating leases related to building and equipment ending in
2018. Lease renewals are likely. Minimum lease payments due over remaining term of existing leases
are as follows:

$

2017  253,270
2018  250,881

The LHIN also has funding commitments to some HSPs associated with accountability agreements for 
fiscal 2016. Minimum funding for HSPs related to the next two years, based on the fiscal 2016 
accountability agreements, and are as follows: 

$

2017    871,027,048
2018    871,027,048

The actual amounts which will ultimately be paid are contingent upon actual LHIN funding received from 
the MOHLTC. 

7. Tangible capital assets

2016 2015
Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value
$ $ $ $

Office furniture and fixtures     284,229          284,229  -  -
Computer equipment     111,214  94,202  17,012  34,025
Leasehold improvements     712,468          712,468  -        4,323

 1,107,911        1,090,899  17,012  38,348

8. Budget figures

The budgets were approved by the Government of Ontario. The budget figures reported in the statement
of operations reflect the final budget at April 30, 2015. The figures have been reported for the purposes
of these statements to comply with PSAB reporting standards. During the year, the government
approved budget adjustments. The following reflects the adjustments for the LHIN during the year:

The total HSP funding budget of $883,840,336 is made up of the following:

$

Initial HSP funding budget  857,175,523 
Adjustment due to announcements made during the year  26,664,813
Total HSP funding budget  883,840,336 
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8. Budget figures (continued)

The total operating budget, excluding HSP funding, is made up of the following:

$

Initial budget
LHIN Operations  4,181,828 
Aboriginal Funding         7,500 
French Language Services      106,000 
Diabetes Regional Co-ordination      839,175 
ER/ALC Performance Lead      100,000 

Adjustment due to announcements made during the year
ED LHIN Lead       75,000 
Critical Care Lead       75,000 
eHealth - Enabling Technologies for Integration  3,060,000 
One-time transfer      (40,000) 
Primary Care Lead       75,000 

Total budget  8,479,503 

9. Transfer payments to HSPs

The LHIN approved transfer payments to the various sectors in 2016 as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Operation of Hospitals   533,150,756   534,196,463
Grants to compensate for Municipal Taxation - 

Public Hospitals           96,975           96,975
Long-Term Care Homes   158,625,567   154,298,662
Community Care Access Centres   115,820,159   111,366,340
Community Support Services  15,348,273  13,956,703 
Assisted Living Services in Supportive Housing  10,608,350  9,852,612
Community Health Centres  12,182,882  12,349,275 
Community Mental Health Addictions Program  37,883,405  34,726,783 

  883,716,367   870,843,813
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10. Project Initiatives

The Central West LHIN received funds for various project initiatives listed in the Statement of
Operations. The following table classifies the project initiative expenses by object:

2016 2015
$ $

Salaries and benefits  1,322,555  1,355,470 
Professional services     463,746     366,008 
Shared services     110,756      94,468 
Occupancy      46,232      35,354 
Public relations and community engagement        7,154      36,988 
Supplies      47,460        9,832 
Other      87,073      17,709 

 2,084,976  1,915,829 

Diabetes strategy operational expenses included in the project fund expenses above are as follows: 

Actual Actual
2016 2015

$ $

Salaries and benefits     572,255     590,443 
Others     175,600     138,074 

    747,855     728,517 

Enabling Technologies for Integration Project Management Office expenses included above include both 
project management office and Central West LHIN expenses as follows: 

Project Management Office expenses are as follows: 

Actual Actual
2016 2015

$ $

Salaries and benefits     479,542     478,371 
Others  75,848  66,862

    555,390     545,233 

* Prior Year PMO costs where distributed to the contributing LHIN's

Central West LHIN e-Health Enabling Technologies project expenses are as follows: 

Actual Actual
2016 2015

$ $

Salaries and benefits     153,768     148,104 
Others     202,916      66,198 

    356,684     214,302 
Total E-health Enabling Technologies expenses for the Central West LHIN     912,074     759,535 
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11. General and administrative expenses

The statement of operations presents expenses by function. The following classifies these same
expenses by object:

2016 2015

Salaries and benefits
Occupancy
Amortization
Shared services
LHIN Collaborative
Consulting services
Professional Fees
Supplies
Board Chair remuneration
Board member remuneration
Board expenses
Mail, courier and telecommunications
Other

$

  2,997,096
    170,816 

 21,335
    283,166 

 35,242
    152,875 

 21,592
    107,681 

 33,925
 54,089
 36,661
 43,681

    170,732 

$

  2,908,190
    234,811 

 73,598
    328,153 

 39,018
 75,143
 25,716

    119,509 
 48,300
 57,600
 50,353
 41,032

    156,288 
  4,128,891   4,157,711

12. Pension agreements

The LHIN makes contributions to the Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan (“HOOPP”), which is a
multi-employer plan, on behalf of approximately 33 members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan, which specifies the amount of retirement benefit to be received by the employees, based on the
length of service and rates of pay. The amount contributed to HOOPP for fiscal 2016 was $356,706
(2015 - $341,754) for current service costs and is included as an expense in the statement of
operations. The last actuarial valuation was completed for the plan as at December 31, 2015. At that
time, the plan was fully funded.

13. Guarantees

The LHIN is subject to the provisions of the Financial Administration Act. As a result, in the normal
course of business, the LHIN may not enter into agreements that include indemnities in favour of
third parties, except in accordance with the Financial Administration Act and the related
Indemnification Directive.

An indemnity of the Chief Executive Officer was provided directly by the LHIN pursuant to the terms of
the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 and in accordance with s. 28 of the Financial
Administration Act.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of the Board of Directors of the 
Erie St. Clair Local Health Integration Network 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Erie St. Clair Local Health Integration 
Network, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, and the statements of 
operations, change in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.  



 
 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Erie St. Clair Local Health Integration Network as at March 31, 2016 and the results of its operations, 
changes in its net debt, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian public 
sector accounting standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
May 24, 2016 



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

Erie St. Clair Local Health Integration Network
Statement of financial position
as at March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Financial assets
Cash 566,842     693,831     
Due from Ministry of Health and

Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”) (Note 7) 1,700,855  5,570,500  
Accounts receivable 48,935       68,209       

2,316,632  6,332,540  

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 548,326     730,659     
Due to MOHLTC (Note 10b) 93,318       55,978       
Due to Health Service Providers (“HSPs”) (Note 7) 1,700,855  5,570,500  
Due to the LHIN Shared Services Office (Note 3) 5,474         3,702         
Deferred capital contributions (Note 4) 287,662     385,949     

2,635,635  6,746,788  

Net debt (319,003)    (414,248)    

Commitments (Note 13)

Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 31,341       28,299       
Tangible capital assets (Note 5) 287,662     385,949     

Accumulated surplus - -

Approved by the Board 

______________________________ Director

______________________________ Director



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

Erie St. Clair Local Health Integration Network
Statement of operations
year ended March 31, 2016

Budget 2016 2015
(Note 6) Actual Actual

$ $ $

Revenue
MOHLTC funding

HSP transfer payments (Note 7) 1,118,937,656 1,141,071,593 1,142,748,286 
Project Initiatives

Operations of LHIN 4,347,972        4,160,760        4,325,444        
Emergency Department Lead 75,000             75,000             75,000             
Critical Care Lead 75,000             75,000             75,000             
Primary Care Lead 75,000             75,000             75,000             
French Language Health Planning

Entities Fund 425,500           425,533           425,533           
Enabling Technologies for Integration

Project Management Office 510,000           510,000           510,000           
Diabetes Regional Coordination 888,328           870,561           888,328           

Amortization of deferred
capital contributions (Note 4) 197,063           163,270           

1,125,334,456 1,147,460,510 1,149,285,861 

Funding repayable to the MOHLTC (Note 10) - (37,340)            (55,978)            
1,125,334,456 1,147,423,170 1,149,229,883 

Expenses
Transfer payments to HSPs (Note 7) 1,118,937,656 1,141,071,593 1,142,748,286 
General and administrative (Note 8) 4,347,972        4,357,227        4,473,320        
Project Initiatives (Note 9)

Emergency Department Lead 75,000             73,716             74,066             
Critical Care Lead 75,000             75,000             75,000             
Primary Care Lead 75,000             75,000             75,000             
French Language Health Planning

Entities Fund 425,500           390,073           425,533           
Diabetes Regional Coordination 888,328           870,561           848,678           
Enabling Technologies for Integration

Project Management Office (Note 3) 510,000           510,000           510,000           
1,125,334,456 1,147,423,170 1,149,229,883 

Annual surplus and accumulated
surplus, end of year - - -



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

Erie St. Clair Local Health Integration Network
Statement of change in net debt
year ended March 31, 2016

Budget 2016 2015
(Note 6) Actual Actual

$ $ $

Annual surplus
Prepaid expenses incurred -              (31,341)   (28,299)   
Prepaid expenses used -              28,299    29,873    
Acquisition of tangible capital assets -              (98,776)   (30,549)   
Amortization of tangible capital assets 160,000  197,063  163,270  
Increase in net debt 160,000  95,245    134,295  
Net debt, beginning of year (414,248) (414,248) (548,543) 
Net debt, end of year (254,248) (319,003) (414,248) 



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

Erie St. Clair Local Health Integration Network
Statement of cash flows
year ended March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Operating transactions
Annual surplus - -
Less items not affecting cash

Amortization of tangible capital assets 197,063      163,270      
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (Note 5) (197,063)    (163,270)    

Changes in non-cash operating items
Due from MOHLTC 3,869,645   (5,330,100) 
Accounts receivable 19,274        2,896          
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (182,333)    (55,346)      
Due to MOHLTC 37,340        (94,667)      
Due to HSPs (3,869,645) 5,330,100   
Due to LHIN Shared Services Office 1,772          3,411          
Prepaid expenses (3,042)        1,574          

(126,989)    (142,132)    

Capital transaction
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 98,776        30,549        

Financing transaction
Deferred capital contributions received (Note 5) (98,776)      (30,549)      

Net decrease in cash (126,989)    (142,132)    
Cash, beginning of year 693,831      835,963      
Cash, end of year 566,842      693,831      
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1. Description of business 

The Erie St. Clair Local Health Integration Network was incorporated by Letters Patent on June 2, 2005 
as a corporation without share capital. Following Royal Assent to Bill 36 on March 28, 2006, it was 
continued under the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 (the “Act”) as the Erie St. Clair Local 
Health Integration Network (the “LHIN”) and its Letters Patent were extinguished. As an agent of the 
Crown, the LHIN is not subject to income taxation. 

The LHIN is, and exercises its powers only as, an agent of the Crown. Limits on the LHIN’s ability to 
undertake certain activities are set out in the Act. 

The LHIN has also entered into an Accountability Agreement with the Ministry of Health and Long Term 
Care (“MOHLTC”), which provides the framework for LHIN accountabilities and activities.  

Commencing April 1, 2007, all funding payments to LHIN managed health service providers in the 
LHIN geographic area, have flowed through the LHIN’s financial statements. Funding allocations from 
the MOHLTC are reflected as revenue and an equal amount of transfer payments to authorized Health 
Service Providers (“HSPs”) are expensed in the LHIN’s financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2016. 

The mandates of the LHIN are to plan, fund and integrate the local health system within its geographic 
area. The LHIN spans carefully defined geographical areas and allows for local communities and health 
care providers within the geographical area to work together to identify local priorities, plan health 
services and deliver them in a more coordinated fashion. The LHIN covers the Municipalities of Essex, 
Lambton and Chatham-Kent. The LHIN enters into service accountability agreements with service 
providers. 

The LHIN is funded by the Province of Ontario in accordance with the Ministry-LHIN Performance 
Agreement (“MLPA”), which describes budget arrangements established by the MOHLTC. These 
financial statements reflect agreed funding arrangements approved by the MOHLTC. The LHIN cannot 
authorize an amount in excess of the budget allocation set by the MOHLTC. 

The LHIN assumed responsibility to authorize transfer payments to HSPs, effective April 1, 2007. The 
transfer payment amount is based on provisions associated with the respective HSP Accountability 
Agreement with the LHIN. Throughout the fiscal year, the LHIN authorizes and notifies the MOHLTC of 
the transfer payment amount; the MOHLTC, in turn, transfers the amount directly to the HSP. The cash 
associated with the transfer payment does not flow through the LHIN bank account. 

The LHIN financial statements do not include any MOHLTC managed programs. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

The financial statements of the LHIN are the representations of management, prepared in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for governments as established by the Public 
Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada (“CPA”). 
Significant accounting policies adopted by the LHIN are as follows: 

Basis of accounting 

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of 
accounting recognizes revenues in the fiscal year that the events giving rise to the revenues occur and 
they are earned and measurable; expenses are recognized in the fiscal year that the events giving rise 
to the expenses are incurred, resources are consumed, and they are measurable. Through the accrual 
basis of accounting, expenses include non-cash items, such as the amortization of tangible capital 
assets. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government transfer payments

Government transfer payments from the MOHLTC are recognized in the financial statements in the year
in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the transfer occur, performance criteria
are met, and reasonable estimates of the amount can be made.

Certain amounts, including transfer payments from the MOHLTC, are received pursuant to legislation,
regulation or agreement and may only be used in the conduct of certain programs or in the completion of
specific work. Funding is only recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred
or services performed. Unspent amounts are recorded as payable to the MOHLTC at period end. In
addition, certain amounts received are used to pay expenses for which the related services have yet to
be performed.

Deferred capital contributions

Any amounts received that are used to fund expenses that are recorded as tangible capital assets, are
recorded as deferred capital contributions and are recognized as revenue over the useful life of the
asset reflective of the provision of its services. The amount recorded under “revenue” in the statement of
operations, is in accordance with the amortization policy applied to the related capital asset recorded.

Segment disclosures

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities for which it is appropriate to
separately report financial information. Management has determined that existing disclosures in the
statement of operations and within the related notes for both the prior and current year sufficiently
discloses information of all appropriate segments and, therefore, no additional disclosure is required.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to
such estimates and assumptions include valuation of accrued liabilities and useful lives of the tangible
capital assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. Cost includes the costs directly related to the acquisition,
design, construction, development, improvement or betterment of capital assets. The cost of capital
assets contributed is recorded at the estimated fair value on the date of contribution. Fair value of
contributed tangible capital assets is estimated using the cost of asset or, where more appropriate,
market or appraisal values. Where an estimate of fair value cannot be made, the tangible capital asset
would be recognized at nominal value.

Maintenance and repair costs are recognized as an expense when incurred. Betterments or
improvements that significantly increase or prolong the service life or capacity of a tangible capital asset
are capitalized. Computer software is recognized as an expense when incurred.

Tangible capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Tangible capital assets are
amortized over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Office equipment 5 years straight-line method 
Computer equipment 3 years straight-line method 
Leasehold improvements 5 years straight-line method 

For assets acquired or brought into use during the year, amortization is provided for a full year.
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3. Related party transactions 

LHIN Shared Service Office and LHINC Collaborative 

The LHIN Shared Services Office (the “LSSO”) is a division of the Toronto Central LHIN and is subject 
to the same policies, guidelines and directives as the Toronto Central LHIN. The LSSO, on behalf of the 
LHINs is responsible for providing services to all LHINs. The full costs of providing these services are 
billed to all the LHINs. Any portion of the LSSO operating costs overpaid (or not paid) by the LHINs at 
the year end is recorded as a receivable (payable) from (to) the LSSO. This is all done pursuant to the 
shared service agreement the LSSO has with all the LHINs. 

The LHIN Collaborative (the “LHINC”) was formed in fiscal 2010 to strengthen relationships between 
and among health service providers, associations and the LHINs, and to support system alignment. The 
purpose of LHINC is to support the LHINs in fostering engagement of the health service provider 
community in support of collaborative and successful integration of the health care system; their role as 
system manager; where appropriate, the consistent implementation of provincial strategy and initiatives; 
and the identification and dissemination of best practices. LHINC is a LHIN-led organization and 
accountable to the LHINs. LHINC is funded by the LHINs with support from the MOHLTC. 

Enabling Technologies for Integration Project Management Office 

Effective February 1, 2012, an agreement was formed with Erie St. Clair, South West, Waterloo 
Wellington and Hamilton Niagara Haldimand Brant LHINs (the “Cluster”) in order to enable the effective 
and efficient delivery of e-health programs and initiatives within the geographic area of the Cluster. 
Under the agreement, decisions related to the financial and operating activities of the Enabling 
Technologies for Integration Project Management Office are shared. No LHIN is in a position to exercise 
unilateral control. 

The LHIN’s financial statement reflects its share of the MOHLTC funding for Enabling Technologies for 
Integration Project Management Offices for its Cluster and related expenses. During the year, the LHIN 
received funding from South West LHIN of $510,000 (2015 - $510,000). The LHIN had a contract and 
retained services of the Transform Shared Service Organization (“Transform”). All funds were expended. 

4. Deferred capital contributions 

2016 2015
$ $

Balance, beginning of year 385,949     518,670     
Capital contributions received during the year 98,776       30,549       
Amortization for the year (197,063)    (163,270)    
Balance, end of year 287,662     385,949     

 
5. Tangible capital assets 

2016 2015
Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value
$ $ $ $

Office equipment 855,011     705,812        149,199    197,880     
Computer equipment 210,259     210,259        -              203           
Leasehold improvements 955,933     817,470        138,463    187,866     

2,021,203  1,733,541      287,662    385,949     
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6. Budget figures

The budget was approved by the Government of Ontario. The budget figures reported in the statement
of operations reflect the initial budget at April 1, 2015. The figures have been reported for the purposes
of these statements to comply with PSAB reporting requirements. During the year the government
approved budget adjustments. The following reflects the adjustments for the LHIN during the year:

The final HSP funding budget of $1,141,071,593 is derived as follows:

$

Initial budget 1,118,937,656 
Adjustment due to announcements made during the year 22,133,937     

1,141,071,593 

The final LHIN budget, excluding the HSP funding, of $6,191,854 is derived as follows: 

$

Initial budget 6,396,800         
Change in funding from the MOHLTC during the year (6,170)                
Amount treated as capital contributions made during the year (98,776)              
In-Year recoveries by the MOHLTC during the year (100,000)           

6,191,854         

7. Transfer payments to HSPs

The LHIN has authorization to allocate funding of $1,141,071,593 (2015 - $1,142,286) to various HSPs
in its geographic area. The LHIN approved transfer payments to various sectors in 2015 as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Operation of hospitals 660,071,256    681,438,461    
Grants to compensate for municipal

taxation - public hospitals 172,500          172,500          
Long-term care homes 220,699,564    211,414,580    
Community care access centres 140,525,653    138,215,563    
Community support services 22,103,369     21,234,346     
Assisted living services in supportive housing 11,685,084     11,567,616     
Community health centres 32,171,091     31,402,849     
Community mental health addictions programs 12,065,046     11,751,851     
Community mental health programs 41,578,030     35,550,520     

1,141,071,593 1,142,748,286 

The LHIN receives money from the MOHLTC and in turn allocates it to the HSPs. As at March 31, 2016, 
an amount of $1,700,855 (2015 - $5,570,500) was receivable from the MOHLTC and payable to HSPs. 
These amounts have been reflected as revenue and expenses in the statement of operations and are 
included in the table above. 
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8. General and administrative expenses 

The statement of operations presents the expenses by function. The following classifies general and 
administrative expenses by object: 

2016 2015
$ $

Salaries and benefits 2,930,366    3,124,200    
Occupancy 358,425      279,828      
Amortization 197,063      163,271      
Shared services 313,194      320,555      
Public relations 53,680        29,519        
Consulting services 54,584        53,954        
Supplies 28,001        25,793        
Board Chair per diems 43,925        36,575        
Board member per diems 46,550        26,850        
Board member expenses 49,260        47,422        
Obstetrics expert panel 4,785          92,183        
Mail, courier and telecommunications 37,004        47,739        
LHIN collaborative 38,000        37,721        
Other 202,390      187,710      

4,357,227    4,473,320    
 

9. Project Initiatives 

The LHIN received funds for various project initiatives reported in the statement of operations. Details of 
expenses incurred in relation to the Diabetes Regional Coordination Centres are as follows: 

Budget 2016 2015
$ $ $

Salaries and benefits 672,720    666,710    638,021  
Operating expenses 215,608    203,851    210,657  
General and administrative expenses 888,328    870,561    848,678  

 
Expenses incurred in respect of all other initiatives were for professional services. 
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10. Funding repayable to the MOHLTC

In accordance with the MLPA, the LHIN is required to be in a balanced position at year end. Thus, any
funding received in excess of expenses incurred, is required to be returned to the MOHLTC.

In accordance with the TPA, the LHIN is required to be in a balanced position at year end. Thus, any
funding received in excess of expenses incurred, is required to be returned to MOHLTC.

a) The amount repayable to the MOHLTC related to current year activities is made up of the following
components:

2016 2015
Funding Eligible Excess Excess
received expenses funding funding

$ $ $ $

Transfer payments to HSPs 1,141,071,593  1,141,071,593  -              -              
LHIN operations 4,160,760         4,160,164         596         15,394    
Project Initiatives

French Language Health
Planning Entities Fund 425,533            390,073            35,460    -              

Critical Care Lead Fund 75,000              75,000              -              -              
Primary Care Lead Fund 75,000              75,000              -              -              
Emergency Department Lead 75,000              73,716              1,284      934         
Diabetes Regional Coordination 870,561            870,561            -              39,650    
Enabling Technologies 510,000            510,000            -              -              

1,147,263,447  1,147,226,107  37,340    55,978    

b) The continuity of the amount due to the MOHLTC at March 31 is as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Due to MOHTLC, beginning of year 55,978       150,645     
Funding repayable to the MOHLTC

related to current year activities (Note 10a) 37,340       55,978       
Amounts repaid to MOHLTC during the year - (150,645)    
Due to MOHLTC, end of year 93,318       55,978       

11. Pension agreements

The LHIN makes contributions to the Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan (“HOOPP”), which is a
multi-employer plan, on behalf of approximately 33 members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan, which specifies the amount of retirement benefit to be received by the employees, based on the
length of service and rates of pay. The amount contributed to HOOPP for fiscal 2016 was $283,144
(2015 - $272,398) for current service costs and is included as an expense in the statement of
operations. The last actuarial valuation was completed for the plan as at December 2015. Currently, the
plan is fully funded.

12. Guarantees

The LHIN is subject to the provisions of the Financial Administration Act. As a result, in the normal
course of business, the LHIN may not enter into agreements that include indemnities in favor of third
parties, except in accordance with the Financial Administration Act and the related Indemnification
Directive.
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12. Guarantees (continued)

An indemnity of the Chief Executive Officer was provided directly by the LHIN pursuant to the terms of
the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 and in accordance with s. 28 of the Financial
Administration Act.

13. Commitments

The LHIN has funding commitments to health service providers associated with accountability
agreements. The LHIN had the following funding commitments as of March 31, 2016.

$

2017 764,626,485  
2018 199,068,064  

The LHIN also has commitments under various operating leases related to building and equipment, 
which will be renewed in accordance with standard lease terms. Minimum lease payments due in each 
of the next five years are as follows: 

$

2017 332,464       
2018 332,464       
2019 326,164       
2020 313,532       
2021 309,622       
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

March 31, 2016 

The integrity and objectivity of the accompanying financial statements of the Mississauga 
Halton Local Health Integration Network (MH LHIN) is the responsibility of management. 
These financial statements have been prepared in compliance with legislation and in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and under Public Sector 
Accounting Board (PSAB).  

Management is also responsible for maintaining a system of internal controls designed to 
provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized 
and recorded, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for the 
preparation of the financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by 
Management, the Audit Committee and Board of Directors. 

Management meets with the external auditors and the Board of Directors to review the 
financial statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters 
prior to approval of the financial statements. 

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LP, independent external 
auditors appointed by the Board of Directors.  

________________________ ________________________ 
William MacLeod  Dale McGregor 
Chief Executive Officer Senior Director, Finance & Chief Financial Officer  
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Deloitte LLP 
5140 Yonge Street 
Suite 1700 
Toronto ON  M2N 6L7 
Canada 

Tel: 416-601-6150 
Fax: 416-601-6151 
www.deloitte.ca 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of the Board of Directors of the 
Mississauga Halton Local Health Integration Network 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mississauga Halton Local Health Integration 
Network, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, and the statements of 
operations, change in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Mississauga Halton Local Health Integration Network as at March 31, 2016 and the results of its 
operations, change in its net debt, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
June 2, 2016 



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

Mississauga Halton Local Health
Integration Network
Statement of financial position
as at March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Financial assets
Cash 637,682     524,558     
Accounts receivable

Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care ("MOHLTC")  
transfer payments to Health Service Providers ("HSPs")  (Note 3) 6,866,104  6,291,900  

Due from other LHINs 10,448       - 
Other 30,575       64,990       

7,544,809  6,881,448  

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 525,540     422,417     
Accounts payable HSPs transfer payments (Note 3) 6,866,104  6,291,900  
Due to MOHLTC (Note 4b) 181,681     166,825     
Due to the LHIN Shared Services Office (Note 5) 5,168         6,126         
Due to other LHIN - 47,635       
Deferred capital contributions (Notes 6) 57,465       95,996       

7,635,958  7,030,899  

Net debt (91,149)      (149,451)    

Commitments (Note 7)

Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 33,684       53,455       
Tangible capital assets (Note 8) 57,465       95,996       

91,149       149,451     
Accumulated surplus - - 

Approved by the Board 

______________________________ 
Graeme Goebelle, FCPA, FCA
Chair

______________________________ 
Patrick Hop Hing, CPA, CA
Audit and Finance Committee Chair



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

Mississauga Halton Local Health
Integration Network
Statement of operations
year ended March 31, 2016

Budget 2016 2015
(Note 9) Actual Actual

$ $ $

Revenue
MOHLTC Funding

HSP transfer payments (Note 3) 1,387,877,491  1,458,106,534 1,406,724,984 
LHIN Operation  4,115,693         4,115,693        4,080,678        
Project Initiatives

Regional Coordination Diabetes
Service (RCDS) 1,262,853         1,262,853        1,288,626        

French Language Health Services 106,000            106,000           106,000           
Aboriginal Engagement 5,000                5,000               5,000               
ER/ALC Performance Lead 100,000            100,000           100,000           
Critical Care Lead 75,000              75,000             75,000             
Emergency Department (ED) Lead - 75,000             75,000             
Primary Care Lead - 75,000             75,000             
LHIN Enabling Technologies for Integration 

Project Management Office (ETI PMO) - 239,935           265,249           
Amortization of deferred capital

contributions (Note 6) - 38,531             38,939             
1,393,542,037  1,464,199,546 1,412,834,476 

Funding repayable to the MOHLTC (Note 4a) - (14,856)            (166,825)          
1,393,542,037  1,464,184,690 1,412,667,651 

Expenses 
Transfer payments to HSPs (Note 3) 1,387,877,491  1,458,106,534 1,406,724,984 
General and administrative expense LHIN

operation (Note 10) 4,115,693         4,153,911        4,036,308        
Project Initiatives (Note 11)

Regional Coordination Diabetes
Service (RCDS) 1,262,853         1,262,853        1,214,351        

French Language Health Services 106,000            100,651           105,871           
Aboriginal Engagement 5,000                4,375               4,359               
ER/ALC Performance Lead 100,000            99,701             99,689             
Critical Care Lead 75,000              72,000             72,000             
Emergency Department (ED) Lead - 72,083             72,135             
Primary Care Lead - 72,647             72,705             
ETI PMO - 239,935           265,249           

1,393,542,037  1,464,184,690 1,412,667,651 
Annual surplus and accumulated

surplus, end of year - - - 



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

Mississauga Halton Local Health
Integration Network
Statement of change in net debt
year ended March 31, 2016

Budget 2016 2015
(Note 9) Actual Actual

$ $ $

Annual surplus - - - 
Change in prepaid expenses - 19,771         (18,455)        
Acquisition of tangible capital assets - - (35,015)        
Amortization of tangible capital assets - 38,531         38,939         
Increase in net debt - 58,302         (14,531)        
Net debt, beginning of year - (149,451)      (134,920)      
Net debt, end of year - (91,149)        (149,451)      



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

Mississauga Halton Local Health
Integration Network
Statement of cash flows
year ended March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Operating transactions
Annual surplus - - 
Add item not affecting cash 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 38,531         38,939         
Less item not affecting cash

Amortization of deferred capital contributions (38,531)        (38,939)        
Changes in non-cash operating items

Accounts receivable -Other 34,415         (21,756)        
Due from other LHINs (10,448)        - 
Accounts receivable MOHLTC transfer payments to HSPs (574,204)      (916,700)      
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 103,123       (117,927)      
Accounts payable HSPs transfer payments 574,204       916,700       
Due to MOHLTC 14,856         (44,575)        
Due to LHIN Shared Services Office (958)             242              
Due to other LHIN (47,635)        (8,659)          
Prepaid expenses 19,771         (18,455)        

113,124       (211,130)      

Capital transaction
Acquisition of tangible capital assets - (35,015)        

Financing transaction
Capital contributions received (Note 6) - 35,015         

Net increase (decrease) in cash 113,124       (211,130)      
Cash, beginning of year 524,558       735,688       
Cash, end of year 637,682       524,558       



Mississauga Halton Local Health 
Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

1. Description of business

The Mississauga Halton Local Health Integration Network was incorporated by Letters Patent on June 9,
2005 as a corporation without share capital. Following Royal Assent to Bill 36 on March 28, 2006, it was
continued under the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 (the “Act”) as the Mississauga Halton
Local Health Integration Network (the “LHIN”) and its Letters Patent were extinguished. As an agent of
the Crown, the LHIN is not subject to income taxation.

The LHIN is, and exercises its powers only as, an agent of the Crown. Limits on the LHIN’s ability to
undertake certain activities are set out in the Act.

The mandates of the LHIN are to plan, fund and integrate the local health system within its geographic
area. The LHIN spans carefully defined geographical areas and allows for local communities and health
care providers within the geographical area to work together to identify local priorities, plan health
services and deliver them in a more coordinated fashion. The LHIN covers a south-west portion of the
City of Toronto, the south part of Peel Region and all of Halton Region except for Burlington. The LHIN
enters into service accountability agreements with service providers.

The LHIN is funded by the Province of Ontario in accordance with the Ministry - LHIN Performance
Agreement (“MLPA”), which describes budget arrangements established by the Ministry of Health and
Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”) and provides the framework for the LHIN accountabilities and activities.
These financial statements reflect agreed funding arrangements approved by the MOHLTC. The LHIN
cannot authorize an amount in excess of the budget allocation set by the MOHLTC.

The LHIN assumed responsibility to authorize transfer payments to Health Service Providers (“HSPs”),
effective April 1, 2007. The transfer payment amount is based on provisions associated with the
respective HSP Accountability Agreement with the LHIN. Throughout the fiscal year, the LHIN
authorizes and notifies the MOHLTC of the transfer payment amount; the MOHLTC, in turn, transfers
the amount directly to the HSPs. The cash associated with the transfer payment does not flow through
the LHIN bank account. Commencing April 1, 2007, all funding payments to LHIN managed HSPs in the
LHIN geographic area, have flowed through the LHIN’s financial statements. Funding allocations from
the MOHLTC are reflected as revenue and an equal amount of transfer payments to authorized HSPs
are expensed in the LHIN’s financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016.

The LHIN has also entered into an Accountability Agreement with the MOHLTC, which provides the
framework for LHIN accountabilities and activities.

The LHIN statements do not include any MOHLTC managed programs.

2. Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the LHIN are the representations of management, prepared in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant accounting policies adopted by the LHIN
are as follows:

Basis of accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of
accounting recognizes revenues in the fiscal year that the events giving rise to the revenues occur and
they are earned and measurable; expenses are recognized in the fiscal year that the events giving rise
to the expenses are incurred, resources are consumed, and they are measurable.

Through the accrual basis of accounting, expenses include non-cash items, such as the amortization of
tangible capital assets.



Mississauga Halton Local Health 
Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government transfer payments

Government transfer payments from the MOHLTC are recognized in the financial statements in the year
in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the transfer occur, performance criteria
are met, and the reasonable estimates of the amount can be made.

Certain amounts, including transfer payments from the MOHLTC, are received pursuant to legislation,
regulation or agreement and may only be used in the conduct of certain programs or in the completion of
specific work. Funding is only recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred
or services performed. As directed by the ministry, there are circumstances when funding received by
the HSP is used to pay expenses for which the related services have not yet been performed. These
amounts are recorded by the HSP as payable to the MOHLTC/LHIN at period end.

Deferred capital contributions

Any amounts received that are used to fund expenditures that are recorded as tangible capital assets in
the operation of the LHIN, are recorded as deferred capital contributions and are recognized as revenue
over the useful life of the asset reflective of the provision of its services. The amount recorded under
revenue in the statement of operations, is in accordance with the amortization policy applied to the
related tangible capital asset recorded.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at historic cost. Historic cost includes the costs directly related to
the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement or betterment of tangible capital assets.
The cost of tangible capital assets contributed is recorded at the estimated fair value on the date of
contribution. Fair value of contributed tangible capital assets is estimated using the cost of the asset or,
where more appropriate, market or appraisal values. Where an estimate of fair value cannot be made,
the tangible capital asset would be recognized at its nominal value.

Maintenance and repair costs are recognized as expenses when incurred. Betterments or improvements
that significantly increase or prolong the service life or capacity of a tangible capital asset are
capitalized. Computer software is recognized as an expense when incurred.

Tangible capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Tangible capital assets are
amortized over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Computer equipment 3 years straight-line method 
Web development 3 years straight-line method 
Leasehold improvements Life of lease straight-line method 
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 5 years straight-line method 

For assets acquired or brought into use during the year, amortization is provided for a full year.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to
such estimates and assumptions include valuation of accrued liabilities and useful lives of the tangible
capital assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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3. Transfer payments to HSPs 

In fiscal 2016, the LHIN had authorization to allocate funding of $1,458,106,534 to the various HSPs in 
its geographic area. The LHIN approved transfer payments to the various sectors in fiscal 2016 as 
follows: 

2016 2015
$ $

Operation of hospitals 958,676,890    926,426,138    
Long term care homes 199,446,779    195,611,049    
Community care access centres 165,232,001    158,431,497    
Community support services 47,045,682      44,303,753      
Assisted living services in supportive housing 38,647,831      36,310,784      
Community mental health 33,375,109      30,976,433      
Addictions program 7,242,873        6,375,189        
Acquired brain injury 5,988,872        5,968,872        
Community health centres 2,450,497        2,321,269        

1,458,106,534 1,406,724,984 
 

The LHIN receives money from the MOHLTC which it in turn allocates to the HSPs. As at March 31, 
2016, an amount of $6,866,104 (2015 - $6,291,900) was receivable from the MOHLTC and $6,866,104 
(2015 - $6,291,900) was payable to the HSPs. These amounts have been reflected as revenue and 
expenses with the LHIN’s operations and are included above. 

4. Funding repayable to the MOHLTC 

In accordance with the MLPA, the LHIN is required to be in a balanced position at year end. Thus, any 
funding received in excess of expenses incurred, is required to be returned to the MOHLTC.  

a) The amount repayable to the MOHLTC related to current year activities is made up of the following 
components: 

2016 2015
Funding Eligible Excess Excess
received expenses funding funding

$ $ $ $

Transfer payments to HSPs 1,458,106,534 1,458,106,534 -              -              

LHIN operations 4,154,224        4,153,911        313         83,309    

LHIN special funded initiatives
Regional Coordination Diabetes

Services (RCDS) 1,262,853        1,262,853        -              74,275    
French Language Health Services 106,000           100,651           5,349      129         
Aboriginal Engagement 5,000               4,375               625         641         
ER/ALC Performance Lead 100,000           99,701             299         311         
Critical Care Lead 75,000             72,000             3,000      3,000      
ED Lead 75,000             72,083             2,917      2,865      
Primary Care Lead 75,000             72,647             2,353      2,295      
ETI PMO 239,935           239,935           -              -              

1,938,788        1,924,245        14,543    83,516    
1,464,199,546 1,464,184,690 14,856    166,825  

 



Mississauga Halton Local Health 
Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

4. Funding repayable to the MOHLTC (continued)

b) The amount due to the MOHLTC at March 31 is made up as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Due to MOHLTC, beginning of year 166,825   211,400   
Amount recovered by the MOHLTC during the year -               (211,400)  
Funding repayable to the MOHLTC

related to current year activities (Note 4a) 14,856     166,825   
Due to MOHLTC, end of year 181,681   166,825   

5. Shared services agreement

LHIN Shared Services Offices and LHIN Collaborative

The LHIN Shared Services Office (the “LSSO”) is a division of the Toronto Central LHIN and is subject
to the same policies, guidelines and directives as the Toronto Central LHIN. The LSSO, on behalf of the
LHINs, is responsible for providing services to all LHINs. The full costs of providing these services are
billed to all of the LHINs. Any portion of the LSSO operating costs overpaid (or not paid) by the LHIN at
the year-end are recorded as a receivable (payable) from (to) the LSSO. This is all done pursuant to the
Shared Service Agreement the LSSO has with all the LHINs.

The Local Health Integration Network Collaborative (“LHINC”) became a division of the Toronto Central
LHIN in fiscal 2010. LHINC was formed to foster engagement of the LHINS’ HSP community and
encourage collaborative integration of the health care system to all LHINs. LHINC is subject to the same
policies, guidelines and directives as the LSSO and Toronto Central LHIN.

Enabling Technologies for Integration Project Management Office

Effective February 1, 2012, the Central, Central West, Central East, Toronto Central, Mississauga
Halton and North Simcoe Muskoka (the “Cluster”) LHINS entered into an agreement in order to enable
the effective and efficient delivery of e-health programs and initiatives within the geographical area of the
Cluster. Under this agreement, decisions related to the financial and operating activities of the Enabling
Technologies for Integration Project Management Office are shared. No LHIN is in a position to exercise
unilateral control.

The LHIN’s financial statement reflects its share of the MOHLTC funding for Enabling Technologies for
Integration Project Offices for its Cluster and related expenses. During the year, the LHIN received one-
time funding from Central West LHIN of $239,935 (2015 - $265,249).

6. Deferred capital contributions

2016 2015
$ $

Balance, beginning of year 95,996     99,920     
Capital contributions received during the year -               35,015     
Amortization for the year (38,531)    (38,939)    
Balance, end of year 57,465     95,996     
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Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 
 
 

 

7. Commitments 

The LHIN has commitments under various operating leases related to building and equipment. The 
LHIN’s existing building lease was renegotiated and extended to December 31, 2020. Other lease 
renewals are likely. Minimum lease payments due in each of the next five years are as follows: 

$

2017 288,047       
2018 343,971       
2019 333,460       
2020 330,432       
2021 247,824       

1,543,734    
 

The LHIN also has funding commitments to all HSPs associated with accountability agreements which 
allocate planning targets for future fiscal years. The actual amounts which will ultimately be paid are 
contingent upon actual LHIN funding received from the MOHLTC. 

8. Tangible capital assets 

2016 2015
Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value
$ $ $ $

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 324,659    270,066          54,593      90,018     
Leasehold improvements 887,343    884,471          2,872        4,308       
Computer equipment 41,683      41,683            -                1,670       

1,253,685 1,196,220       57,465      95,996     
 

9. Budget figures 

Health Service Providers 

The initial funding budget figures reported in the statement of operations reflect the opening base as at 
April 1, 2015. The figures have been reported for the purposes of these statements to comply with PSAB 
reporting requirements. During the year the government approved budget adjustments. The following 
reflects the adjustments for the LHIN during the year. 

The final HSP funding budget of $1,458,106,534 as at March 31, 2016 is made up of the following: 

$

Initial HSP funding budget as at April 1, 2015 1,387,877,491  
Adjustments due to announcements made during the year 70,229,043       
Final HSP funding budget 1,458,106,534  

 

  



Mississauga Halton Local Health 
Integration Network 
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9. Budget figures (continued)

LHIN operations

The final operating budget from MOHLTC of $6,054,481 as at March 31, 2016 is made up of the
following:

$

Initial budget as at April 1, 2015
LHIN Operation 4,115,693    
RCDS 1,262,853    
French Language Services 106,000       
Aboriginal Engagement 5,000           
ER/ALC Performance Lead 100,000       
Critical Care Lead 75,000         

Additional funding received during the year for:
ED Lead  75,000         
Primary Care Lead 75,000         
ETI PMO 239,935       

Final budget 6,054,481    

10. General and administration expenses

The statement of operations presents the expenses by function. The following classifies general and
administrative expenses by object:

2016 2015
$ $

Salaries and benefits 3,023,776  2,879,456  
Shared services 372,259     388,954     
LHIN Collaborative 47,500       47,500       
Staff travel 21,429       24,282       
Communication 33,384       28,674       
Accommodation 223,024     215,096     
Advertising 5,792         5,674         
Professional fees and medical professional services 16,800       16,800       
Consulting fees 41,822       62,774       
Equipment rentals 10,547       9,519         
Insurance 7,900         7,466         
Other meeting expenses 24,816       24,054       
Board Chair’s per diem expenses 49,875       38,500       
Other Board members’ per diem expenses 57,175       50,050       
Other governance costs and travel 23,989       34,592       
Printing and translation 35,528       45,589       
Staff development 18,983       18,925       
IT equipment 51,458       24,388       
Office supplies and purchased equipment 28,694       51,907       
Amortization 38,531       38,939       
Other services 20,629       23,169       

4,153,911  4,036,308  



Mississauga Halton Local Health 
Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

11. Project Initiatives

The LHIN received funds for various project initiatives listed in the Statement of operations. The
following classifies LHIN project initiatives, by object:

2016 2015
$ $

Salaries and benefits 1,393,419  1,352,062  
Shared services 9,405         12,232       
Staff travel 3,512         3,416         
Communication 1,250         927            
Accommodation 73,797       103,981     
Professional fees/Medical Professional Services 380,969     360,930     
Consulting fees - 3,600         
Equipment rentals 1,602         - 
Printing and translation 15,964       - 
Other meeting expenses 4,407         8,307         
Staff development 4,096         16,174       
IT equipment 33,627       39,156       
Office supplies and purchased equipment 1,951         4,890         
Other services 246            684            

1,924,245  1,906,359  

Diabetes strategy operational expenses included in the above project initiatives are as follows: 

Actual Actual
2016 2015

$ $

Salaries and benefits 1,038,814  977,418     
Others 224,039     236,933     

1,262,853  1,214,351  

12. Pension agreements

The LHIN makes contributions to the Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan (“HOOPP”), which is a
multi-employer plan, on behalf of approximately 35 members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan, which specifies the amount of retirement benefit to be received by the employees, based on the
length of service and rates of pay. The amount contributed to HOOPP for fiscal 2016 was $380,196
(2015 - $337,283) for current service costs and is included as an expense in the statement of
operations. The last actuarial valuation was completed for the plan as at December 31, 2015. At that
time, the plan was fully funded.

13. Guarantees

The LHIN is subject to the provisions of the Financial Administration Act. As a result, in the normal
course of business, the LHIN may not enter into agreements that include indemnities in favour of third
parties, except in accordance with the Financial Administration Act and the related Indemnification
Directive.

An indemnity of the Chief Executive Officer was provided directly by the LHIN pursuant to the terms of
the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 and in accordance with s. 28 of the Financial
Administration Act.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Members of the Board of Directors of the 
North East Local Health Integration Network 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the North East Local Health Integration 
Network (the “LHIN”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, and the 
statements of operations, change in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.  
 
 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
LHIN as at March 31, 2016, and the results of its operations, change in its net debt, and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
June 9, 2016 
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The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

North East Local Health Integration Network
Statement of operations
year ended March 31, 2016

Budget 2016 2015
(Note 6) Actual Actual

$ $ $

Revenues
MOHLTC funding

HSP transfer payments (Note 7) 1,455,090,400 1,475,183,814 1,456,998,541 
Operations of LHIN 4,752,782        5,070,965        4,735,727        
Project Initiatives

Enabling technologies - 510,000           510,000           
French Language Health Service 296,800           296,800           296,800           
Réseau du mieux-être francophone du

Nord de l'Ontario 796,159           796,159           796,159           
Emergency Department Lead - 75,000             75,000             
Critical Care Lead - 75,000             75,000             
Aboriginal Engagement 100,000           100,000           100,000           
Emergency Room/Alternate Level of Care 100,000           100,000           100,000           
Primary Care Lead - 75,000             75,000             
Diabetes Regional Coordinating Centre 1,087,560        1,065,809        1,087,560        

Amortization of deferred capital contributions
(Note 4) 86,235             102,869           135,895           

1,462,309,936 1,483,451,416 1,464,985,682 

Funding repayable to MOHLTC (Note 10) - - -
1,462,309,936 1,483,451,416 1,464,985,682 

Expenses
Transfer payments to HSPs (Note 7) 1,455,090,400 1,475,183,814 1,456,998,541 
General and administrative (Note 8) 4,752,782        5,070,965        4,735,727        
Project Initiatives Note 9)

Enabling technologies - 510,000           510,000           
French Language Health Service 296,800           296,800           296,800           
Réseau du mieux-être francophone du

Nord de l'Ontario 796,159           796,159           796,159           
Emergency Department Lead - 75,000             75,000             
Critical Care Lead - 75,000             75,000             
Aboriginal Engagement 100,000           100,000           100,000           
Emergency Room/Alternate Level of Care 100,000           100,000           100,000           
Primary Care Lead - 75,000             75,000             
Diabetes Regional Coordinating Centre 1,087,560        1,065,809        1,087,560        

Amortization of tangible capital assets 86,235             102,869           135,895           
1,462,309,936 1,483,451,416 1,464,985,682 

Annual surplus and  
accumulated surplus, end of year - - -



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

North East Local Health Integration Network
Statement of change in net debt
year ended March 31, 2016

Budget 2016 2015
$ $ $

Annual surplus -               -               -               
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (92,700)    (125,693)  (17,495)    
Amortization of tangible capital assets 86,235     102,869   135,895    
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses, net -               24,561     (19,725)    
Decrease (increase) in net debt (6,465)      1,737       98,675      
Net debt, beginning of year (224,982)  (224,982)  (323,657)  
Net debt, end of year (231,447)  (223,245)  (224,982)  



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

North East Local Health Integration Network
Statement of cash flows
year ended March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Operating transactions
Annual surplus - -
Items not affecting cash

Amortization of tangible capital assets 102,869        135,895        
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (Note 4) (102,869)      (135,895)      

Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable (7,008)          (15,935)        
HST Receivable 8,641            28,181          
Due from MOHLTC-Health Service Providers (20,702,143) 1,383,952     
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 37,745          (409,781)      
Due to MOHLTC - (15,090)        
Due to the LHIN Shared Service Office (7,401)          2,483            
Due to Health Service Providers 20,702,143   (1,383,952)   
Prepaid expenses 24,561          (19,725)        

56,538          (429,867)      

Capital transaction
Acquisition of tangible capital assets net of change in 

accounts payable related to capital asset acquisitons (82,626)        (216,169)      

Financing transaction
Increase in deferred capital contributions (Note 4) 125,693        17,495          

Net increase (decrease) in cash 99,605          (628,541)      
Cash, beginning of year 319,024        947,565        
Cash, end of year 418,629        319,024        

(See additional information presented in Note 5.)



North East Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 
 
 

 

1. Description of business 

The North East Local Health Integration Network was incorporated by Letters Patent on June 2, 2005 as 
a corporation without share capital. Following Royal Assent to Bill 36 on March 28, 2006, it was 
continued under the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 (the “Act”) as the North East Local 
Health Integration Network (the “LHIN”) and its Letters Patent were extinguished. As an agent of the 
Crown, the LHIN is not subject to income taxation. 

The LHIN is, and exercises its powers only as, an agent of the Crown. Limits on the LHIN’s ability to 
undertake certain activities are set out in the Act. 

The mandates of the LHIN are to plan, fund and integrate the local health system within its geographic 
area. The LHIN spans carefully defined geographical areas and allows for local communities and health 
care providers within the geographical area to work together to identify local priorities, plan health 
services and deliver them in a more coordinated fashion. The LHIN covers the area of Northeastern 
Ontario. The LHIN enters into service accountability agreements with service providers. 

The LHIN is funded by the Province of Ontario in accordance with Ministry-LHIN Performance 
Agreement (“MLPA”), which describes budget arrangements established by the Ministry of Health and 
Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”) and provides the framework for the LHIN accountabilities and activities. 
These financial statements reflect agreed funding arrangements approved by the MOHLTC. The LHIN 
cannot authorize an amount in excess of the budget allocation set by the MOHLTC. 

The LHIN assumed responsibility to authorize transfer payments to HSPs, effective April 1, 2007. The 
transfer payment amount is based on provisions associated with the respective HSP Accountability 
Agreement with the LHIN. Throughout the fiscal year, the LHIN authorizes and notifies the MOHLTC of 
the transfer payment amount; the MOHLTC, in turn, transfers the amount directly to the HSP. The cash 
associated with the transfer payment does not flow through the LHIN bank account. Commencing 
April 1, 2007, all funding payments to LHIN managed Health Service Providers (“HSP”) in the LHIN 
geographic area, have flowed through the LHIN’s financial statements. Funding allocations from the 
MOHLTC are reflected as revenue and an equal amount of transfer payments to authorized HSPs are 
expensed in the LHIN’s financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016. 

The LHIN statements do not include any MOHLTC managed programs. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

The financial statements of the LHIN are the representations of management, prepared in accordance 
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant accounting policies adopted by the LHIN 
are as follows: 

Basis of accounting 

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of 
accounting recognizes revenues in the fiscal year that the events giving rise to the revenues occur and 
they are earned and measurable; expenses are recognized in the fiscal year that the events giving rise 
to the expenses are incurred, resources are consumed, and they are measurable. 

Through the accrual basis of accounting, expenses include non-cash items, such as the amortization of 
tangible assets. 



North East Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government transfer payments

Government transfer payments from the MOHLTC are recognized in the financial statements in the year
in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the transfer occur, performance criteria
are met, and reasonable estimates of the amount can be made.

Certain amounts, including transfer payments from the MOHLTC, are received pursuant to legislation,
regulation or agreement and may only be used in the conduct of certain programs or in the completion of
specific work. Funding is only recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred
or services performed. In addition, certain amounts received are used to pay expenses for which the
related services have yet to be performed. These amounts are recorded as payable to the MOHLTC at
period end.

Deferred capital contributions

Any amounts received that are used to fund expenses that are recorded as tangible capital assets, are
recorded as deferred capital contributions and are recognized as revenue over the useful life of the
asset reflective of the provision of its services. The amount recorded under “revenue” in the statement of
operations, is in accordance with the amortization policy applied to the related tangible capital asset
recorded.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. Cost includes the costs directly related to the acquisition,
design, construction, development, improvement or betterment of tangible capital assets. The cost of
tangible capital assets contributed is recorded at the estimated fair value on the date of contribution. Fair
value of contributed tangible capital assets is estimated using the cost of asset or, where more
appropriate, market or appraisal values. Where an estimate of fair value cannot be made, the tangible
capital asset would be recognized at nominal value.

Maintenance and repair costs are recognized as an expense when incurred. Betterments or
improvements that significantly increase or prolong the service life or capacity of a tangible capital asset
are capitalized.

Tangible capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Tangible capital assets are
amortized over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5 years straight-line method 
Computer equipment 3 years straight-line method 
Leasehold improvements Life of lease straight-line method 

For assets acquired and brought into use during the year, amortization is provided for a full year.

Segment disclosures

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities for which it is appropriate to
separately report financial information. Management has determined that existing disclosures in the
statement of operations and within the related notes for both the prior and current year sufficiently
discloses information of all appropriate segments and therefore no additional disclosure is required.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to
such estimates and assumptions include valuation of accrued liabilities and useful lives of the tangible
capital assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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3. Related party transactions 

LHIN Shared Services Office, LHIN Collaborative 

The LHIN Shared Services Office (the “LSSO”) and the LHIN Collaborative (LHINC) are divisions of the 
Toronto Central LHIN and are subject to the same policies, guidelines and directives as the Toronto 
Central LHIN. The LSSO and LHINC, on behalf of the LHINs, are responsible for providing services to 
all LHINs. The full costs of providing these services are billed to all the LHINs. Any portions of the 
LSSO/LHINC operating costs overpaid (or not paid) by the LHIN at the year-end are recorded as a 
receivable from (payable to) the LSSO/LHINC. This is all done pursuant to the agreement the 
LSSO/LHINC has with all the LHINs. 

Enabling Technologies for Integrated Project management Office 

In fiscal 2014, the LHIN entered into an agreement with the Champlain, South East and North West 
LHINs (the “Cluster”) in order to enable the effective and efficient delivery of e-health programs and 
initiatives within the geographic area of the Cluster. Funding was provided to enable the cluster LHINs 
Project Management Offices to advance eHealth, information management and information technology 
initiatives as outlined in the ETI PMO Toolkit Business Case approved by the MOHLTC.  

The LHIN’s financial statements reflects its share of the MOHLTC funding for ETI PMO for its Cluster 
and related expenses. During the year the LHIN received of $510,000 (2015 - $510,000). 

4. Deferred capital contributions 

2016 2015
$ $

Balance, biginning of year 186,407    304,807  
Capital contributions received 125,693    17,495    
Amortization (102,869)   (135,895) 
Balance, end of year 209,231    186,407  

 
5. Tangible capital assets 

2016 2015
Accumulated Net book Net  book

Cost amortization value value
$ $ $ $

Furniture and fixtures 215,060    186,646            51,734      44,476    
Computer equipment 267,227    215,494            28,413      18,519    
Leasehold improvements 1,235,980 1,106,896         129,084    123,412  

1,718,267 1,509,036         209,231    186,407  
 

Non-cash transactions 

During the year, tangible capital assets were acquired at an aggregate cost of $125,693 
(2015 - $17,495) of which $43,067 (2015 - $ Nil) were paid after year-end and $82,626 (2015 - $17,495) 
were paid during the year. 



North East Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

6. Budget figures

The budgets were approved by the Government of Ontario. The budget figures reported on the
statement of operations reflect the initial budget at April 1, 2015. The figures have been reported for the
purposes of these statements to comply with PSAB reporting principles. During the year the government
approved budget adjustments. The following reflects the adjustments for the LHIN during the year:

The total HSP funding budget of $1,475,183,814 is made up of the following:

$

Initial HSP Funding budget 1,455,090,400  
Adjustment due to announcements made during the year 20,093,414       

1,475,183,814  

The total operating budget of $8,164,733 is made up of the following:

Initial budget 7,133,301         
Additional funding received during the year 1,157,125         
Amount treated as Capital Contribution (125,693)           
Total budget 8,164,733         

7. Transfer payments to HSPs

The LHIN has authorization to allocate the funding of $1,475,183,814 to the various HSPs in its
geographic area. The LHIN approved transfer payments to the various sectors as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Operation of Hospitals 950,979,622    946,543,719    
Grants to compensate for Municipal Taxation - 

Public Hospitals 211,725          211,725          
Long-term Care Homes 223,277,091    219,412,436    
Community Care Access Centres 135,563,964    132,359,143    
Community Support Services 37,623,196     34,785,603     
Acquired Brain Injury 3,028,649       2,983,649       
Assisted Living Services in Supportive Housing 22,892,242     20,715,195     
Community Health Centres 18,384,080     19,352,638     
Community Mental Health 60,754,003     57,799,582     
Substance Abuse and Gambling Problem 22,469,242     22,834,851     

1,475,183,814 1,456,998,541 

The LHIN receives funding from the MOHLTC and in turn allocates it to the HSPs. As at March 31, 
2016, an amount of $24,187,382 (2015 - $3,485,239) was receivable from the MOHLTC and was 
payable to the HSPs. These amounts have been reflected as revenue and expenses in the statement of 
operations and are included in the table above. 
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Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 
 
 

 

8. General and administrative expenses 

The statement of operations presents the expenses by function; the following classifies these same 
expenses by object: 

2016 2015
$ $

Salaries and wages 3,256,005 2,954,194 
HOOPP 295,501    277,759    
Other benefits 403,421    366,950    
Staff travel 135,273    141,368    
Governance Travel 24,693      11,546      
Communications 135,160    144,631    
Accommodation 216,846    259,396    
Advertising 6,051        6,939        
Consulting fees 45,795      80,364      
Equipment rentals 9,792        9,876        
Board Chair per diems 17,500      9,575        
Other Governance per diems 20,637      23,922      
Insurance 6,287        6,762        
LHIN Shares Services Office 260,956    225,091    
LHIN Collaborative 47,500      47,500      
Other meeting expenses 35,643      27,685      
Other governance expenses 7,095        4,733        
Printing and translation 80,739      44,849      
Staff development 18,123      38,630      
IT equipment 15,267      26,102      
Office supplies and equipment 30,055      23,804      
Other 2,626        4,051        

5,070,965 4,735,727 
 

9. Program initiatives 

The LHIN received funds for various project initiatives listed in the Statement of Operations. The 
following table classifies the initiatives expenses by object: 

2016 2015
$ $

Salaries and benefits 1,814,477 1,814,434 
Professional services 223,871    220,680    
Shared services 120,708    130,000    
Occupancy 77,568      73,500      
Public relations and community engagement 29,367      38,071      
Supplies 9,541       9,042       
Mail, courier and telecommunications 10,937      13,450      
Other operating expenses 807,299    816,342    

3,093,768 3,115,519 
 

  



North East Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

9. Program initiatives (continued)

Diabetes strategy operational expenses included in the project initiative expenses above are as follows:

Budget Actual Actual
2016 2016 2015

$ $ $

Salaries and benefits 877,620     877,620     877,620     
Other operating expenses 209,940     188,189     209,940     

1,087,560  1,065,809  1,087,560  

10. Funding repayable to the MOHLTC

In accordance with the MLPA, the LHIN is required to be in a balanced position at year end. Thus, any
funding received in excess of expenses incurred, is required to be returned to the MOHLTC.

a) The amount repayable to the MOHLTC is made up of the following components:

2016 2015
Funding Eligible Excess Excess
received expenses funding funding

$ $ $ $

Transfer payments to HSPs 1,475,183,814  1,475,183,814  -              -              
LHIN operations 5,070,965         5,070,965         -              -              
Amortization of capital assets 102,869            102,869            -              -              
Enabling technologies 510,000            510,000            -              -              
French Language Health Services 296,800            296,800            -              -              
Reseau du mieux-etre franophone

du Nord l'Ontario 796,159            796,159            -              -              
Emergency Department Lead 75,000              75,000              -              -              
Critical Care Lead 75,000              75,000              -              -              
Aboriginal Engagement 100,000            100,000            -              -              
Emergency Room/Alternate Level 

of Care 100,000            100,000            -              -              
Primary Care Lead 75,000              75,000              -              -              
Diabetes Regional Coordination 

Centre 1,065,809         1,065,809         -              -              
1,483,451,416  1,483,451,416  -              -              

b) The amount due to the MOHLTC is made up of the following components:

2016 2015
$ $

Opening balance -             15,090     
Funding recovered by the MOHLTC -             (15,090)    
Funding repayable to the MOHLTC (Note 10a) -             -
Closing balance -             -
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Notes to the financial statements 
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11. Pension agreements 

The LHIN makes contributions to the Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan (“HOOPP”), which is a multi-
employer plan, on behalf of approximately 49 members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit plan, 
which specifies the amount of retirement benefit to be received by the employees, based on the length 
of service and rates of pay. The amount contributed to HOOPP for fiscal 2016 was $432,307 
(2015 - $416,562) for current service costs and is included as an expense in the statement of 
operations. The last actuarial valuation was completed for the plan as at December 31, 2015. At that 
time the plan was fully funded. 

12. Guarantees 

The LHIN is subject to the provisions of the Financial Administration Act. As a result, in the normal 
course of business, the LHIN may not enter into agreements that include indemnities in the favor of third 
parties, except in accordance with the Financial Administration Act and the related Indemnification 
Directive. 

An indemnity of the Chief Executive Officer was provided directly by the LHIN pursuant to the terms of 
the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 and in accordance with s. 28 of the Financial 
Administration Act. 

13. Commitments 

The LHIN has commitments under various operating leases related to building and equipment. Minimum 
lease payments due under the building and equipment lease are as follows: 

$

2017 201,292       
2018 175,208       
2019 179,792       
2020 179,792       
2021 95,948         
Thereafter 136,000       

968,032       
 

The LHIN also has funding commitments to HSPs associated with accountability agreements. As of 
March 31, 2016 the LHIN had signed Accountability Agreements with all Hospitals, Long-Term Care 
Home and Community Agencies. The actual amounts which will ultimately be paid are contingent upon 
actual LHIN funding received from MOHLTC. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of the Board of Directors of the 
Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Toronto Central Local Health Integration 
Network (the “LHIN”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, and the 
statements of operations, change in net debt, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
LHIN as at March 31, 2016, and the results of its operations, change in its net debt and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
May 30, 2016 



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network
Statement of financial position
as at March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Financial assets
Cash 1,416,307      1,011,834      
Due from Local Health Integration Networks (“LHINs”) (Note 3) 79,564           132,107         
Due from Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”)

regarding HSP transfer payments 18,030,794    34,279,012    
Harmonized Sales Tax receivable 301,196         453,182         

19,827,861    35,876,135    

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,896,288      1,666,185      
Due to HSPs 18,030,794    34,279,012    
Due to MOHLTC (Note 4b) 4,707             2,807             
Deferred capital contributions (Note 5) 1,514,992      2,213,523      

21,446,781    38,161,527    

Net debt (1,618,920)     (2,285,392)     

Commitments (Note 15)

Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 103,928         71,869           
Tangible capital assets (Note 6) 1,514,992      2,213,523      

1,618,920      2,285,392      
Accumulated surplus - - 



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network
Statement of operations
year ended March 31, 2016

Budget 2016 2015
(Note 7) Actual Actual

$ $ $
Revenue

Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”) funding 5,535,121          5,535,121          5,256,532          
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”) 
  funding to LHINC 670,000             792,000             670,000             
MOHLTC Funding to LHIN Shared Services Offices ("LSSO") - 
Health Service Provider (“HSP”) transfer payments (Note 8) 4,761,002,833  4,799,105,830   4,761,002,833   
Project Initiatives (Note 9)

Enabling Technologies (Note 3) 510,000             440,000             510,000             
Emergency Department (“ED”) Lead 75,000               75,000               75,000 
Aboriginal Health Transition Planning 20,000               20,000               20,000 
Emergency Room and Alternate Level of Care ("ER/ALC") 100,000             100,000             100,000             
Critical Care ("CC") Lead 75,000               75,000               75,000 
Resources Matching Referrals Leads 125,000             125,000             370,000             
French Language Health Services ("FLHS") 106,000             106,000             106,000             
French Planning Entities 568,713             568,713             568,713             
Primary Care Lead 75,000               75,000               75,000 
Diabetes Regional Coordination Centre 1,106,715          1,106,715          1,129,301          
Pan and Parapan Am Games 207,249             207,249             414,498             
Emergency Management Communication Tool ("EMCT") 500,000             500,000             800,000             

Amortization of deferred capital contributions (Note 5) 1,379,579          1,280,484          1,379,579          
Amounts recovered/recoverable from the LHINs to LHINC 709,000             617,500             662,071             
Amounts recovered/recoverable from the LHINs to LSSO 5,663,296          4,379,679          4,382,157          

4,778,428,506  4,815,109,291   4,777,596,684   
Funding repayable to the MOHLTC related to operations (Note 4a) - (1,900)                (2,807) 

4,778,428,506  4,815,107,391   4,777,593,877   

Expenses
Transfer payments to HSPs (Note 8) 4,761,002,833  4,799,105,830   4,761,002,833   
General and administrative (Note 10) 5,739,463          5,849,492          5,458,067          
LHIN Shared Services Office (Note 11) 6,703,304          5,276,278          5,422,165          
LHIN Collaborative (Note 12) 1,514,229          1,477,114          1,467,300          
Project Initiatives (Note 9)

Enabling Technologies 510,000             440,000             510,000             
Emergency Department (“ED”) Lead 75,000               75,000               75,000 
Aboriginal Health Transition Planning 20,000               20,000               20,000 
Emergency Room and Alternate Level of Care ("ER/ALC") 100,000             100,000             100,000             
Critical Care ("CC") Lead 75,000               75,000               75,000 
Resources Matching Referrals Leads 125,000             125,000             370,000             
French Language Health Services ("FLHS") 106,000             106,000             106,000             
French Planning Entities 568,713             568,713             568,713             
Primary Care Lead 75,000               75,000               75,000 
Diabetes Regional Coordination Centre 1,106,715          1,106,715          1,129,301          
Pan and Parapan Am Games 207,249             207,249             414,498             
Emergency Management Communication Tool ("EMCT") 500,000             500,000             800,000             

4,778,428,506  4,815,107,391   4,777,593,877   
Annual surplus and accumulated surplus, end of year - - - 



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network
Statement of change in net debt
year ended March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Annual surplus - - 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (581,953)      (1,090,044)   
Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,280,484    1,379,579    
Acquisition of prepaid expenses (103,928)      (71,869)        
Use of prepaid expenses 71,869         75,150         
Decrease in net debt 666,472       292,816       
Net debt, beginning of year (2,285,392)   (2,578,208)   
Net debt, end of year (1,618,920)   (2,285,392)   



The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network
Statement of cash flows
year ended March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Operating transactions
Annual surplus - -
Less: items not affecting cash

Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,280,484    1,379,579    
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (Note 5) (1,280,484)   (1,379,579)   

- -

Changes in non-cash operating items
Due from LHINs 52,543         (111,420)      
Harmonized Sales Tax receivable 151,986       113,189       
Due from MOHLTC regarding

HSP transfer payments 16,248,218  6,546,403    
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 230,103       (303,102)      
Due to HSPs (16,248,218) (6,546,403)   
Due to MOHLTC 1,900           (10,800)        
Prepaid expenses (32,059)        3,281           

404,473       (308,852)      

Capital transaction
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (581,953)      (1,090,044)   

Financing transaction
Increase in deferred capital contributions (Note 5) 581,953       1,090,044    

Net change in cash 404,473       (308,852)      
Cash, beginning of year 1,011,834    1,320,686    
Cash, end of year 1,416,307    1,011,834    



Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 
 
 
1. Description of business 

The Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network was incorporated by Letters Patent on June 2, 
2005 as a corporation without share capital. Following Royal Assent to Bill 36 on March 28, 2006, it was 
continued under the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 (the “Act”) as the Toronto Central Local 
Health Integration Network (the “LHIN”) and its Letters Patent were extinguished. As an agent of the 
Crown, the LHIN is not subject to income taxation. 

The LHIN is, and exercises its powers only as, an agent of the Crown. Limits on the LHIN’s ability to 
undertake certain activities are set out in the Act. 

The LHIN has also entered into an Accountability Agreement with the Ministry of Health and Long Term 
Care (“MOHLTC”), which provides the framework for LHIN accountabilities and activities. 

The mandates of the LHIN are to plan, fund and integrate the local health system within its geographic 
area. The LHIN spans carefully defined geographical areas and allows for local communities and health 
care providers within the geographical area to work together to identify local priorities, plan health 
services and deliver them in a more coordinated fashion. The LHIN covers the City of Toronto. The LHIN 
enters into service accountability agreements with service providers. 

The LHIN is funded by the Province of Ontario in accordance with the Ministry-LHIN Performance 
Agreement (“MLPA”). These financial statements reflect the terms of the MLPA related to this funding. 

The LHIN assumed responsibility to authorize transfer payments to HSPs, effective April 1, 2007. The 
transfer payment amount is based on provisions associated with the respective HSP Accountability 
Agreement with the LHIN. Throughout the fiscal year, the LHIN authorizes and notifies the MOHLTC of 
the transfer payment amount; the MOHLTC, in turn, transfers the amount directly to the HSP. The cash 
associated with the transfer payment does not flow through the LHIN bank account. Commencing 
April 1, 2007, all funding payments to LHIN managed HSPs in the LHIN geographic area, have flowed 
through the LHIN’s financial statements. Funding allocations from the MOHLTC are reflected as revenue 
and an equal amount of transfer payments to authorized HSPs are expensed in the LHIN’s financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2016. 

The LHIN financial statements do not include any MOHLTC managed programs. 

The LHIN is also funded for the Diabetes Regional Coordination Centre (“RCC”) program in accordance 
with the Ministry-LHIN Performance Agreement. The operational mandate, functions and funding for 
delivery of the RCC Program were transferred to the LHIN in the 2012/13 fiscal year. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

The financial statements of the LHIN are the representations of management, prepared in accordance 
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant accounting policies adopted by the LHIN 
are as follows: 

Basis of accounting 

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of 
accounting recognizes revenues in the fiscal year that the events giving rise to the revenues occur and 
they are earned and measurable; expenses are recognized in the fiscal year that the events giving rise 
to the expenses are incurred, resources are consumed, and they are measurable. 

Through the accrual basis of accounting, expenses include non-cash items, such as the amortization of 
tangible capital assets. 

  



Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government transfer payments

Government transfer payments from the MOHLTC are recognized in the financial statements in the year
in which the payment is authorized and the events giving rise to the transfer occur, performance criteria
are met, and reasonable estimates of the amount can be made.

Certain amounts, including transfer payments from the MOHLTC, are received pursuant to legislation,
regulation or agreement and may only be used in the conduct of certain programs or in the completion of
specific work. Funding is only recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred
or services performed. In addition, certain amounts received are used to pay expenses for which the
related services have yet to be performed. These amounts are recorded as payable to the MOHLTC at
period end.

Deferred capital contributions

Any amounts received that are used to fund expenditures that are recorded as tangible capital assets,
are initially recorded as deferred capital contributions and are recognized as revenue over the useful life
of the asset reflective of the provision of its services. The amount recorded under “revenue” in the
Statement of operations, is in accordance with the amortization policy applied to the related capital asset
recorded.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at historic cost. Historic cost includes the costs directly related to
the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement or betterment of tangible capital assets.
The cost of tangible capital assets contributed is recorded at the estimated fair value on date of
contribution. Fair value of contributed tangible capital assets is estimated using the cost of asset or,
where more appropriate, market or appraisal values. Where an estimate of fair value cannot be made,
the tangible capital asset would be recognized at nominal value.

Maintenance and repair costs are recognized as an expense when incurred. Betterments or
improvements that significantly increase or prolong the service life or capacity of a tangible capital asset
are capitalized. Computer software is recognized as an expense when incurred.

Tangible capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Tangible capital assets are
amortized over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Office furniture and fixtures 5 years straight-line method 
Computer equipment 3 years straight-line method 
Leasehold improvements Life of lease straight-line method 

For assets acquired or brought into use during the year, amortization is calculated for a full year.

Segmented financial reporting

The financial statements of the LHIN include the accounts of the LHIN Shared Services Office (the
“LSSO”) and LHIN Collaborative (the “LHINC”) which are its divisions. Separate schedules of LSSO and
LHINC financial position and financial activities are presented in the attached schedules to the financial
statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to
such estimate and assumptions include valuation of accrued liabilities and useful lives of the tangible
capital assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

3. Related party transactions

The LHIN Shared Services Office (the “LSSO”) is a division of the Toronto Central LHIN and is subject
to the same policies, guidelines and directives as the Toronto Central LHIN. The LSSO, on behalf of the
LHINs is responsible for providing services to all LHINs. Any portion of the LSSO operating costs
overpaid (or not paid) by the LHINs at year end are recorded as a receivable (payable) to (from) the
LSSO. This is all done pursuant to the Shared Service Agreement the LSSO has with all the LHINs.

The LHIN Collaborative (the “LHINC”) is a division of the Toronto Central LHIN and is subject to the
same policies, guidelines and directives as the Toronto Central LHIN. The LHINC is responsible for
providing advice to all LHINs in the areas of planning integration and community engagement, allocation
methodologies, accountability performance and system alignment and co-ordination. Any portion of the
LHINC operating costs overpaid (or not paid) by the LHIN at the year-end are recorded as a receivable
(payable) to (from) the LHINC. This is all done pursuant to the LHINC Agreement the LHINC has with all
the LHINs.

Enabling Technologies for Integrated Project Management Office

Effective April 1, 2013, the LHIN entered into an agreement with the Central, Central West, Central East,
Mississauga Halton and North Simcoe Muskoka LHINs (the “Cluster”) in order to enable the effective
and efficient delivery of e-health programs and initiatives within the geographic area of the Cluster.
Under the agreement, decisions related to the financial and operating activities of the Enabling
Technologies for Integration Project Management Office are shared. No LHIN is in a position to exercise
unilateral control.

The LHIN’s financial statement reflects its share of the MOHLTC funding for Enabling Technologies for
Integration Project Management Offices for its Cluster and related expenses. During the year, the LHIN
received MOHLTC funding through the Central West LHIN of $440,000 (2015 - $510,000).



Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

4. Funding repayable to the MOHLTC

In accordance with the MLPA and the Transfer Payment Agreement (“TPA”), the LHIN is required to be
in a balanced position at year end. Thus, any funding received in excess of expenses incurred, is
required to be returned to the MOHLTC.

a) The amount repayable to the MOHLTC related to the current activities is made up of the following
components:

2016 2015
Funding Eligible Excess Excess
received expenses funding funding

$ $ $ $

Transfer payments to HSPs 4,799,105,830 4,799,105,830 -             -             
LHIN operations 5,851,392        5,849,492        1,900     2,807     
LHINC 792,000           792,000           -             -             
E-Health 440,000           440,000           -             -             
ED Lead 75,000             75,000             -             -             
Aboriginal Health Transition Planning 20,000             20,000             -             -             
ER/ALC 100,000           100,000           -             -             
Critical Care Lead 75,000             75,000             -             -             
ALC Resources Matching 125,000           125,000           -             -             
FLHS 106,000           106,000           -             -             
French Planning Entities 568,713           568,713           -             -             
Primary Care lead 75,000             75,000             -             -             
Diabetes RCC 1,106,715        1,106,715        -             -            
Pan and Parapan Am Games 207,249           207,249           -             -             
EMCT 500,000           500,000           -             -             

4,809,147,899 4,809,145,999 1,900     2,807     

During the year, the LHIN was provided net funding of $568,713 (Note 9) (2015 - $568,713) from 
the MOHLTC for the French Planning Entities which was flowed directly to “Entité de planification 
pour les services de santé en français de Toronto Centre”. 

b) The amount due to the MOHLTC related to current activities at March 31 is made up as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Due to MOHLTC, beginning of year (2,807)        (13,607)      
MOHLTC payment - 13,607       
Funding repayable to the MOHLTC related

to current year activities (Note 4a) (1,900)        (2,807)        
Due to MOHLTC, end of year (4,707)        (2,807)        



Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

5. Deferred capital contributions

2016 2015
$ $

Balance, beginning of year 2,213,523  2,503,058  
Capital contributions received during the year 581,953     1,090,044  
Amortization for the year (1,280,484) (1,379,579) 
Balance, end of year 1,514,992  2,213,523  

6. Tangible capital assets

2016 2015
Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value
$ $ $ $

Office furniture and fixtures 560,463       450,952          109,511      171,266      
Computer equipment 6,786,290    5,380,809       1,405,481   1,872,336   
Leasehold improvements 2,032,454    2,032,454       - 169,921      

9,379,207    7,864,215       1,514,992   2,213,523   

7. Budget figures

The budget figures reported in the Statement of operations reflect the initial budget at April 1, 2015. The
figures have been reported for the purposes of these statements to comply with PSAB reporting
requirements. Budget amount for amortization is included for comparison purposes.

The following reflects the adjustments for the LHIN during the year:

$

Initial HSP Funding budget 4,761,002,833 
Adjustment due to announcements made during the year 38,102,997      
Total HSP Funding 4,799,105,830 

The total HSP funding is $4,799,105,830. 

TC LHIN operating budget, excluding HSP Funding is $9,003,798. 



Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

8. Transfer payments to HSPs

The LHIN has authorization to allocate funding of $4,799,105,830 (2015 - $4,761,002,833) to the various
HSPs in its geographic area. The LHIN approved transfer payments to the various sectors in fiscal 2015-
2016 as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Operation of hospitals 3,580,546,410 3,584,903,808 
Long-term care homes 274,101,551    267,424,716    
Community care access centre 250,907,414    244,702,630    
Community support services 104,091,661    93,459,523      
Assisted living services in supportive housing 57,894,669      53,669,470      
Community health centres 93,491,259      91,699,161      
Community mental health addictions program 138,782,566    127,118,591    
Addictions program 38,299,857      37,861,791      
Specialty psychiatric hospital 260,990,443    260,163,143    

4,799,105,830 4,761,002,833 

9. Operations of LHIN - Project Initiatives

The LHIN received funds for various initiatives listed in the Statement of operations. The following table
classifies the initiatives expenses by object:

2016 2015
$ $

Salaries and benefits 2,287,025        3,102,353        
Professional services 158,180           197,164           
Funding transferred (Note 4) 568,713           568,713           
Other 384,759           375,282           

3,398,677        4,243,512        

Diabetes Regional Coordination Centre operational expenses included in the project fund expenses 
above are as follows: 

Actual Actual
2016 2015

$ $

Salaries and benefits 930,944    954,043    
Others 175,771    175,258    

1,106,715  1,129,301  



Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

10. General and administrative expenses

The Statement of operations presents the expenses by function; the following classifies general and
administrative expenses:

2016 2015
$ $

Salaries and benefits 4,239,667 3,954,564
Occupancy 387,313     263,686     
Amortization 316,271     204,342     
Shared services 235,978     317,718     
LHINC 47,500       50,929       
Consulting services 206,106     77,246       
Translation services 48,371       55,390       
Professional services 15,560       15,900       
Supplies 45,398       48,865       
Computer expenses 27,397       144,955     
Governance 56,884       39,346       
Mail, courier and telecommunications 33,099       42,131       
Other 189,948     242,995     

5,849,492  5,458,067  

The following lists the Board Chair and Directors per diem costs as well as their travel and development 
expenses, which are included in governance expense in the general and administrative expenses 
above. 

2016 2015
Budget Actual Actual

$ $ $

Board Chair per diem cost 36,408       17,675       15,050       
Directors per diem cost 61,677       38,375       23,950       
Board travel and development expenses 1,915         834            346            

100,000     56,884       39,346       



Toronto Central Local Health Integration Network 
Notes to the financial statements 
March 31, 2016 

11. LHIN Shared Services Office

The following presents the financial position and financial activities, by object, of the LHIN Shared
Services Office (LSSO) for the year:

LHIN Shared Services Office
Statement of financial position
as at March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Financial assets
Cash 543,202       326,821       
Due from LHINs 70,118         132,107       
Harmonized Sales Tax receivable 172,071       235,921       

785,391       694,849       

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 863,577       649,741       
Due to TC LHIN* 10,109         96,153         
Deferred capital contributions 1,087,211    1,401,857    

1,960,897    2,147,751    

Net debt 1,175,506    1,452,902    

Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 88,295         51,045         
Tangible capital assets 1,087,211    1,401,857    

1,175,506    1,452,902    
Accumulated surplus - - 

* Amounts due to/from TC LHIN and LHINC are eliminated upon combination.
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11. LHIN Shared Services Office (continued)

LHIN Shared Services Office
Statement of financial activities
year ended March 31, 2016

2016 2015
Budget Actual Actual

$ $ $

Revenue
Amounts recovered/recoverable from the LHINs 5,663,296 4,761,343 4,783,818 
Amortization of deferred capital contributions 1,040,008 896,599    1,040,008 

6,703,304 5,657,942 5,823,826 

Expenses**
Salaries 1,821,346 1,501,996 1,603,744 
Benefits 375,643    287,247    299,551    
Supplies 29,314      28,266      29,164      
Telecommunications 19,055      10,479      11,357      
Recruitment and staff development 10,623      36,884      20,040      
Consulting fees 8,000        21,275      21,244      
Professional services 23,500      20,580      21,970      
Meeting expenses 7,479        1,114        1,582        
Amortization 1,040,008 896,599    1,040,008 
Occupancy 184,185    145,620    167,812    
Other 35,715      31,432      20,530      
Outsourcing services and computer expense 3,148,436 2,676,450 2,586,824 

Total common LHIN services expenses 6,703,304 5,657,942 5,823,826 
Less: inter-entity transactions

eliminated on combination*** - (381,664)   (401,661)   
6,703,304 5,276,278 5,422,165 

** Included in total expenses above are $755,297 (2015 - $750,151) related to legal department 
expenses, of which $658,794 (2015 - $637,313) are salaries and benefits expenses. 

*** Included in total expenses above are $381,664 (2015 - $401,661) related to inter-entity transactions 
and are eliminated upon combination. 
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12. LHIN Collaborative

The following presents the financial position and financial activities, by object, of the LHIN Collaborative
(LHINC) for the year:

LHIN Collaborative
Statement of financial position
as at March 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

Financial assets
Cash 90,893         188,446       
Harmonized Sales Tax receivable 578              1,055           

91,471         189,501       

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 87,323         46,229         
Due to TC LHIN* 5,051           149,596       
Deferred capital contributions - 67,614         

92,374         263,439       

Net debt 903              73,938         

Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 903              6,324           
Tangible capital assets - 67,614         

903              73,938         
Accumulated surplus - - 

* Amounts to TC LHIN are eliminated upon combination.
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12. LHIN Collaborative (continued)

LHIN Collaborative
Statement of financial activities
year ended March 31, 2016

2016 2015
Budget Actual Actual

$ $ $

Revenue
Amounts recovered/recoverable from the LHINs 709,000     665,000     713,000     
MOHLTC funding 670,000     792,000     670,000     
Amortization of deferred capital contributions 135,229     67,614       135,229     

1,514,229  1,524,614  1,518,229  
Funding repayable to the MOHLTC

related to operations - - -
1,514,229  1,524,614  1,518,229  

Expenses**
Salaries 932,452     1,038,056  984,087     
Benefits 189,633     201,543     197,613     
Supplies 17,456       11,157       5,292         
Telecommunications 10,283       7,638         8,589         
Recruitment and staff developments 17,474       10,370       5,231         
Computer expense 7,596         8,356         3,696         
Consulting fees 32,885       27,871       8,871         
Meeting expenses 13,826       5,271         7,547         
Amortization 135,229     67,614       135,229     
Occupancy 95,044       94,406       111,454     
Other 17,951       7,932         6,220         
Shared services 44,400       44,400       44,400       

1,514,229  1,524,614  1,518,229  
Less: inter-entity transactions

eliminated on combination - (47,500)      (50,929)      
- 1,477,114  1,467,300  

** Included in total expenses above are $47,500 (2015 - $50,929) in inter-entity transactions that are 
eliminated upon combination. 

MOHLTC funding of $30,000 (2015 - $30,000) was attributed to the Provincial End-of-Life Network. 
MOHLTC funding of $122,000 (2015 - nil) was attributed to the Personal Support Service Initiative. 

13. Pension agreements

The LHIN makes contributions to the Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan (“HOOPP”), which is a multi-
employer plan, on behalf of approximately 62 members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit plan,
which specifies the amount of retirement benefit to be received by the employees, based on the length
of service and rates of pay. The amount contributed to HOOPP for fiscal 2016 was $598,304
(2015 - $616,320) for current service costs and is included as an expense in the Statement of
operations. The last actuarial valuation was completed for the plan as of December 31, 2015. At that
time, the plan was fully funded.
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14. Guarantees

The LHIN is subject to the provisions of the Financial Administration Act. As a result, in the normal
course of business, the LHIN may not enter into agreements that include indemnities in favour of third
parties, except in accordance with the Financial Administration Act and the related Indemnification
Directive.

An indemnity of the Chief Executive Officer was provided directly by the LHIN pursuant to the terms of
the Local Health System Integration Act, 2006 and in accordance with s. 28 of the Financial
Administration Act.

15. Commitments

The LHIN has commitments under various operating leases related to building and equipment. Lease
renewals are likely. Minimum lease payments due over the remaining term of existing leases is as
follows:

$

2017 690,158       
2018 726,478       
2019 755,250       
2020 763,749       
2021 386,059       

3,321,694    

The LHIN also has funding commitments to some HSPs associated with accountability agreements for 
fiscal 2016 and 2017. The actual amounts, which will ultimately be paid, are contingent upon actual 
LHIN funding received from the MOHLTC. 
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METROPOLITAN TORONTO CONVENTION CENTRE CORPORATION 

Management Report 

The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of the management of Metropolitan 

Toronto Convention Centre Corporation.  The financial statements have been prepared by management 

in accordance with the accounting requirements of the Financial Administration Act including Ontario 

Regulation 395/11. The statements include certain amount based on estimates and judgments. 

Management has determined such amounts on a reasonable basis in order to ensure that the financial 

statements are presented fairly, in all material respects. 

Management maintains a system of internal accounting and administrative control that is designed to 

provide reasonable assurance the financial information is relevant, reliable and accurate and that the 

Corporation’s assets are properly accounted for and adequately safeguarded. 

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, a firm of independent external auditors 

appointed by the Board of Director, whose report follows.  

Imtiaz Dhanjee  

Vice President Finance 

June 17, 2016 
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